NOTICE - VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
MEETING OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a regular Committee of the Whole Meeting of the Village of

Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois will be held on Tuesday, April 5, 2022, beginning at 6:00
p-m. in Council Chambers, located in the Tinley Park Village Hall, 16250 South Oak Park Avenue,
Tinley Park, Illinois 60477.

THE AGENDA IS AS FOLLOWS:

1.

2.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

CALL MEETING TO ORDER.
ROLL CALL.

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE
MEETING HELD ON MARCH 15, 2022.

CONSIDER ADOPTION OF 2021 INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODES.

CONSIDER PURCHASE & SALE AGREEMENT WITH GSP DEVELOPMENT, LLC
FOR PROPERTY LOCATED 7551 191 STREET.

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF FUNDING FOR THE VISITTINLEYPARK.COM TOURISM
WEBSITE.

CONSIDER RENEWAL OF AGREEMENT FOR VARIOUS FINANCE RELATED
PROJECTS.

CONSIDER AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE
OF TINLEY PARK AND KIRBY SCHOOL DISTRICT 140 FOR SCHOOL SAFETY
LIGHTS.

CONSIDER A FIRST AMENDMENT TO AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK AND COOK COUNTY FOR AN
ADDITIONAL ENGINEERING REQUEST FOR 175™ STREET AND RIDGELAND
AVENUE.

CONSIDER QUALIFICATION BASED SELECTION (QBS) PROCEDURES.

CONSIDER A CONTRACT WITH AQUAMIST PLUMBING AND LAWN SPRINKLING,
INC. FOR IRRIGATION MAINTENANCE.

CONSIDER A CONTRACT WITH CARDNO, NOW STANTEC, FOR NATURALIZED
STORMWATER AREA MAINTENANCE.

CONSIDER A SERVICE CONTRACT WITH CITY ESCAPE GARDEN AND DESIGN,
LLC FOR LANDSCAPE BED MAINTENANCE.

RECEIVE COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC.

ADJOURNMENT

NANCY M. O’CONNOR, VILLAGE CLERK




ROLL
CALL




MINUTES
Meeting of the Committee of the Whole
March 15, 2022 - 5:00 p.m.
Village Hall - Council Chambers
16250 S Oak Park Ave.
Tinley Park, IL 60477

Item #1 — At 5:00 p.m. the special meeting of the Committee of the Whole was called to order.
Item #2 - Clerk O’Connor called the roll. Present and responding to roll call were the following:

Members Present: W. Brennan, President Pro Tem
N. O’Connor, Village Clerk
W. Brady, Village Trustee
D. Mahoney, Village Trustee (Arriveddat 5:01 p.m.)
M. Mueller, Village Trustee
C. Sullivan, Village Trustee
M. Glotz, Village President

Members Absent: D. Galante, Village Trustee

Staff Present: P. Carr, Village Manager
H. Lipman, Assistant Village Manager
K. Clarke, Community:Development Director
J. Urbanski, Public Works Director
P. O’Grady, Village Attotney
Others Present:

Item #3 - CONSIDERAPPROVAIL OF THE MINUTES OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE
MEETING HELD MARCH.1, 2022 — Motion was madesby Trustee Muller, seconded by Trustee Brady
to approve the minutes of the. Commiittee ofithe Wholemeeting held on March 1, 2022. Vote by roll call.
Ayes: Brady, Brennan, Mueller, Sullivan. Nays: None. Absent: Galante, Mahoney. President Pro Tem
Brennan deélared the'motion carried.

Item#4 — CONSIDER MILITARY STATIC DISPLAYS ON VETERANS PARKWAY - Pat Carr,
Village Manager, explained the Tinley/Park Veterans Commission is requesting approval to acquire
decommissionedymilitary equipment through the U.S. Army Tank-Automotive & Armaments Command
(TACOM). Displayed equipment will be on public-owned property to honor veterans and current service
members. The designated area for display is Veterans Parkway. There is no cost to acquire this equipment
but it will require some maintenance and transportation costs that have been previously budgeted.

Trustee Brady asked if the Commission knows which equipment will be received. Mr. Carr replied at this
time they do not. This request is to be on the list to receive the equipment.

Trustee Sullivan stated equipment offers may be declined, resulting in the Commission returning to the
list.

Approval was granted to permit the Village Manager to execute the request for decommissioned military
equipment by the Committee.



Item #5 — CONSIDER CANNABIS USE REGULATION REVISIONS - Kimberly Clarke,
Community Development Director, presented the Cannabis Regulation revisions. The Village adopted
cannabis zoning and licensing regulations on August 4, 2020. Currently, there is an application for a
dispensary that will be proceeding to the Plan Commission for review of the Special Use within the next
month. As part of that review for a new dispensary, staff has identified some outdated regulations related
to cannabis in the Village Code of Ordinances (most regulations passed in 1978-80). These regulations
include prohibiting the use and possession of both cannabis and related paraphernalia. While State law
now supersedes these regulations, it is prudent to modernize the Village Code to avoid any future confusion
or misunderstandings. Staff plans to review the regulations in Sections 132.5 (Cannabis) and 132.6 (Drug
Paraphernalia) to ensure they do not conflict with the current state law and«reate some flexibility when
state or federal laws change in the future. An Ordinance will be drafted#o be presented at the April 19,
2022, Village Board meeting.

President Pro Tem Brennan asked if members of the Committee had any questions. There were none.

Item #6 — CONSIDER SURPLUS FLEET VEHICLE AND EQUIPMENT LIST — John Urbanski,
Director of Public Works, presented the surplus list. When the Village replaces vehicles or equipment,
staff establishes outdated and unused vehicles or eqitpment as surplus to be sold or disposed of. Staff
requested authorization to declare the following Village-owned vehicles/equipment as surplus:

Vehicles/Equipment
2012 Ford Taurus 2008 Ford Crown Vic
2009 Chevrolet Tahoe 1991 Chevrolet ["Ton,Step Van
2014 Ford Explorer 2011 Ferd Crown Vie (Qty. 6)
1986 Chevrolet Suburban, 2004 Chevrolet Tahoe
2015 Ford Explorer 2011 Ford F350 Pickup 4X4

2007 Chevrolet Suburban 2003 Chevrolet Tahoe

The Village uses multiple methods|to achieve the highest compensation for its surplus vehicles or
equipment. Most items soldwill be threugh Public Auctions or salvage and recycling companies.

President ProfTem Brennan asked if members of'the Committee had any questions. There were none.
Motion was made by Trustee Sullivany, seconded by Trustee Mueller to recommend the Surplus Fleet
Vehicle'and Equipment List be,forwardedito.the Village Board. Vote by roll call. Ayes: Brady, Brennan,
Mahoney, Mueller, Sullivany Nays: None. Absent: Galante. President Pro Tem Brennan declared the
motion carried:

Item #7 — CONSIDER AWARDING A CONTRACT FOR LAWN MAINTENANCE TO CITY
ESCAPE GARDEN AND DESIGN, LLC — Mr. Urbanski presented the contract for mowing services
for 234 acres of lawn throughout the Village. The contract has the option of two (2) —one (1) year renewals.
This would be the first year out of a possible three (3) year contract.

Two (2) bids were received and recorded by the Village Clerk’s office.

Contractor Location Bid Amount
City Escape Garden and Design, LLC | Chicago, IL $252,189.02
Ridge Landscape Services, LLC Frankfort, IL | $308,990.72

Funding is budgeted in the FY23 Budget.

Page 2 of 3



Budget Available $260,000.00
Year 1 of 3 contract $252,189.02
Difference $ 7,810.98

Trustee Brady asked if this includes the Park District. Mr. Urbanski replied no.

Motion was made by Trustee Brady, seconded by Trustee Mahoney to recommend awarding a contract
for Lawn Maintenance to City Escape Garden and Design, LLC, be forwarded to the Village Board. Vote
by roll call. Ayes: Brady, Brennan, Mahoney, Mueller, Sullivan. Nays: None. Absent: Galante. President
Pro Tem Brennan declared the motion carried.

Item #8 — CONSIDER AWARDING A CONTRACT FOR{ LAWN TREATMENTS TO
TRUGREEN — Mr. Urbanski presented the contract renewal with TruGreenfor lawn treatments for 234
acres of lawn throughout the Village. The scope varies by location:The contracthas the option of two (2)
—one (1) year renewals. This would be the first renewal out of'a possible three (3) year contract.

Funding is budgeted in the FY23 Budget; Road and Bridge.

Budget Available $45,000
Bid Amount $41.1007
Difference $ 3,893

President Pro Tem Brennan asked if membersyof the Committee hadyany questions. There were none.
Motion was made by Trustee Mahoney, seconded by, Trustee Brady to recommend awarding a contract
for Lawn Treatments to TruGreen be forwarded to the Village Board. Vote by roll call. Ayes: Brady,
Brennan, Mahoney, Mueller, Sullivan. Nays: None. Absent: Galante. PreSident Pro Tem Brennan declared
the motion carried.

Item #9 — RECEIVE COMMENTS EROM THE PUBLIC —
President Pro Tem Brénnamasked if there were any comments from the public. There were none.

Motion was made by TrusteeMueller, seconided by Frustee Mahoney to adjourn the Committee of the
Whole. Votedby roll call. Ayes: Brady, Brennan, Mahoney, Mueller, Sullivan. Nays: None. Absent:
Galante. Pfesident Pro Tem'Brennan declared the motion carried and adjourned the meeting at 5:08 p.m.

dm

Page 3 of 3



Interoffice

® Memo

Date: April 5, 2022

To: Committee of the Whole

From: Michael J. Coleman AIA NCARB — Building Official
Subject: Adoption of the 2021 International Building Codes

Background:

Staff is requesting to amend Ordinance 2016 -O-055 in order to adopt the 2021 International Residential Code,
2021 International Property Maintenance code and the 2017 National Electrical Code. The last update to the
Village Code occurred in October 2016, which included the 2012 adoption of the ICC codes specifically the
International Residential Code (IRC), International Building Code (IBC), International Mechanical Code (IMC),
International Energy Conservation Code (IECC) International Fire Code (IFC).

The building code is a minimum standard used to provide the occupants of buildings and the built environment a
safe, healthy structure to habitat, work and recreate in. These minimum standards are reviewed every three
years to provide additional safety standards. The ICC proposed codes go through several committees within the
International Code Council Committee on regulatory standards of which include inspectors, building officials,
architects, engineers and manufacturers to adopt a more adaptive, safe and clear codes. The 2021 ICC codes
have been published for approximately 18 months of which the first six months goes through extensive reprints
for code adjustments and errata revisions. This process is now complete and the code as presently can be
adopted. The Village wants to remain current with the codes to provide a safe environment for the occupants
and citizens of their homes and businesses. With the adoption of the proposed 2021 cycle of standards ICC
codes, the Village can apply and obtain a higher FEMA National Flood Insurance Program rating. The Village
local amendments do provide a language that is relevant to the proposed ICC code language as many of the
local amendments meet or exceed the current minimum standards of the ICC codes.

The Village would be the first in the area to adopt these codes and it is the intention by current staff that these
codes be reviewed and presented roughly 6-12 months past any proposed adoptions. The next publication is
the 2024 ICC codes with a future publication around the last quarter of 2023.

Staff Direction Request: Amend language in Title XV Chapter 155 of the Municipal Code to read as follows:
See Exhibit #1

Attachments:

Exhibit #1: Chapter 155 Tinley Park Comprehensive code

Exhibit #2: Spreadsheet of local Villages code adoptions

Exhibit #3: Interoffice memo indicating most common local changes to the 2021 International Residential Code,
2021 International Property maintenance code & 2017 National Electrical Code.

3

Life Amplified



Exhibit #1

All deleted are designated as red-strikce-outs
All new language to code is bold and yellow highlights

All new sections relocated have section line item highlighted and bolded

Section 1:
ADOPTION OF BUILDING CODES

That a certain code, one of which is now available on the Village’s website for a period of not
less than 21 days in the office of the Village Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will
Counties, Illinois, being entitled and designated as the International Building Code (2012);
International Energy Conservation Code (2015); International Fire Code (2012), including
Appendix B&D of the International Fire Code; International Fuel Gas Code (2012) including
Appendix A of the International Fuel Gas Code; International Mechanical Code (2012);
International Property Maintenance Code 26042)-(2021); International Residential Code 2642}
(2021), including Appendix F Radon Control Methods; International Swimming Pool and Spa
Code (2012)-Illinois State Plumbing Code (2014); National Electrical Code 204+H—(2017)
(NFPA 70); National Fire Protection Association (03) (NFPA 101); and Illinois Accessibility Act
(1997) be and is hereby incorporated and adopted as the Building Code of the Village of Tinley
Park (2016) (2022), Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, except as hereinafter deleted, modified or
amended.

This document shall set out the rules and regulations governing the construction, alteration,
relocation, enlargement, replacement, repair, equipment, use and occupancy, location,
maintenance, removal and demolition of every building or structure or any appurtenances
connected or attached to such buildings or structures and other items as enumerated in the Table
of Contents of this document repealing Ordinance 2007-0-040, Ordinance 2009-0-022,
Ordinance 2009-0-055, Ordinance 2010-0-010, Ordinance 2010-0-048, Ordinance 2011-0-028,
Ordinance 2011-0-034, and Ordinance 2011-0-036 of the Village of Tinley Park and all other
ordinances or parts of laws in conflict therewith and replaced with the Building Code of Tinley

Park (2016)(2022).

Section 2:
Deletions to the International Building Code 2012

CHAPTER 1-SCOPE AND ADMINISTRATION

Section 101.4.3 - reference to the “International Plumbing Code” and the entire last sentence.



Section 105.2 - under “Building” items numbered 1, 2, 3,4, 5, and 6
Section 111.2 - items numbered 3,4,5,7,9, 10 and 11

CHAPTER 5- GENERAL BUILDING HEIGHTS AND AREAS

Section 507.2

CHAPTER 7- FIRE AND SMOKE PROTECTION FEATURES

Section 706.6- exceptions 2, 2.1,2.2,2.3
Section 708.3- exception 2

Section 708.4- exceptions 1 and 5 only
Section 711.3- all exceptions

CHAPTER 9 - FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS

Section 903.3.1.1.1
Section 903.3.1.2.1
Section 904.11 — number 2
Section 910.1 — exception 1

CHAPTER 10 — MEANS OF EGRESS

Section 1014.2 — number 4 exception number 2 (2.4)

CHAPTER 29 — PLUMBING SYSTEMS

All Sections

CHAPTER 31- SPECIAL CONSTRUCTION

Section 3107

CHAPTER 34- EXISTING STRUCTURES

All Sections

CHAPTER 35- REFERENCED STANDARDS

Standards ICC IEBC-12; IPC-12; IPSDC -12; IWUIC - 12

SECTION 3



Amendments to the International Building Code 26012-2021

CHAPTER 1- SCOPE AND ADMINISTRATION

Section 101.1. Title. — To read as follows: These regulations shall be known as the Building
Code of the Village of Tinley Park, hereinafter referred to as “this code” or “Building Code” or
“Building Code of Tinley Park (26+6)"-(2022)

Section 101.4.3 Plumbing. To read as follows: The provisions of the Illinois Plumbing Code
2014 as amended shall apply to the installation, alteration, repair and replacement of plumbing
systems, including equipment, appliances, fixtures, fittings and appurtenances, and where
connected to a water or sewage system and all aspects of a medical gas system.

Section 105.2 Work Exempt from Permit. Under “Building” number 8 shall read as follows:
Temporary motion picture, television and theater stage sets and scenery less than four hundred
(400) square feet.

CHAPTER 7- FIRE AND SMOKE PROTECTION FEATURES

Section 708.2 Materials. The walls shall be of materials permitted by the building type of
construction and/or amended by Chapter 5 of the International Building Code 2012.

Section 708.3 Fire-Resistance Rating. Fire partitions shall have a fire resistance rating of not
less than one (1) hour unless noted elsewhere in this code as amended. Also see Chapter 5 of the
International Building Code 2012.

Section 711.1 General. Floor and roof assemblies required to have a fire resistance rating shall
comply with this section and Chapter 5 of the International Building Code 2012, as amended.

CHAPTER 10 — MEANS OF EGRESS

Section 1009.3.1.2 Stairways, Fire Resistant Rating. That the following is added as an
Exception:  In Group R-1 and R-2 interior egress stairways are required to have a 2-hour
minimum fire resistance rating.

Section 1014.2 Number 4 (Exception #2 (2.4) Exist Access, Egress Through Intervening
Spaces. Shall read as follows: The floor shall have a minimum of 44 inches wide aisle without
obstructions by striping with a contrasting color distinguishable from other areas for the full
length of the access.

CHAPTER 12 —_INTERIOR ENVIRONMENT

Section 1208.2 Interior Space Dimensions, Minimum Ceiling Heights Shall read as follows
with the Exceptions to remain as is: Occupiable spaces, habitable spaces and corridors shall have
a ceiling height of not less that 8’-0”. Unfinished basements (in other than one- and two-family
dwellings) shall be permitted to have a ceiling height of not less that 7°-6”. For one- and two-



family dwellings, the minimum clear height to the underside of the floor assembly above shall be
7°-6 and the minimum clear height to the underside to a beam shall be 6°-8”.

CHAPTER 16 -STRUCTURAL DESIGN

Section 1612.3 Establishment of flood hazard areas. — Insert: The Village of Tinley Park as the
name of jurisdiction and 8/19/2008 (Cook County), 3/17/2003 (Will County) for the date of
issuance of “The Flood Insurance Study”.

CHAPTER 32 -ENCROACHMENTS INTO THE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY

Section 3412.2. Applicability — Shall read as follows “Structures existing prior to (adoption
date) in which there is work involving additions, alterations or changes of occupancy shall be
made to comply with the requirements of this section or the provisions of Sections 3403 through
3409. The provisions in Sections 3412.2.1 through 3412.2.5 shall apply to existing occupancies
that will continue to be, or are proposed to be, in Groups A, B, E, F, M, R, S, and U. These
provisions shall not apply to buildings with occupancies in Group H or L.

SECTION 4
Deletions to the International Residential Code 2012 2021

CHAPTER 1 - SCOPE AND ADMINISTRATION

Section R105.2 Work exempt from permit, under Building. Numbers 1,2,3,4,5, & 10.

CHAPTER 3 — BUILDING PLANNING

Section R310.1 Emergency escape and rescue required

Section R310:2:2—exeeptionR310.1 Exceptions 2.2
CHAPTERS 25 THROUGH 32 (PLUMBING)

CHAPTERS 34 THROUGH CHAPTER 43 (ELECTRICAL)

All sections
SECTION 5
Amendments to the International Residential Code 20122021

CHAPTER 1 - SCOPE AND ADMINISTRATION




Section R105.2 Work exempt from permit, under Building. Reroofing for Single Family Detached
structures are exempt from permit.

Add language

R105.3 Application for permit.
8. Complete scope of work if no architectural plans for minor repair work & fire damage permits.

SECTION 6

Supplemental Regulations

In addition to the International, National, and State Codes all construction, alteration, relocation,
enlargement, replacement, repair, equipment, use and occupancy, location, maintenance, removal
and demolition of every building or structure or any appurtenances connected or attached to such
buildings or structures in the Village of Tinley Park shall also be subject to the regulations set
forth in Chapters 1-13set forth below and shall be read in their entirety as follows:

CHAPTER I - ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT

SECTION 100 - GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

A.

Standards and Regulations

1.

The standards and regulations contained in this Code shall be deemed and
considered as minimum requirements for the construction of buildings for the
protection of public health and safety. Any materials or methods of construction
not specifically mentioned in this Code which give the same protection to public
health and safety from the standpoint of strength, fire protection and other factors
relevant thereto may be used in substitution for the specific materials or methods
prescribed in this Code, when approved by the Corporate Authority, provided,
however, if specific methods of construction or materials are prohibited in this
Code, then this provision shall not authorize the use of such materials or methods
of construction regardless of whether they give the same protection.

Requests for variations, or for use of substitute materials or methods of
construction, shall be submitted to the Building Committee via the Building
Official. The Building Official shall advise the Building Committee regarding
acceptance or rejection of such requests.

These regulations shall be known as the Building Code of the Village of Tinley
Park, hereafter referred to as “this Code” or “Building Code” or the “Building
Code of Tinley Park (20+6)(2022)”



4. The provisions of this code shall apply to the construction, alteration, relocation,
enlargement, replacement, repair, equipment, use and occupancy, location,
maintenance, removal and demolition of every building or structure or any
appurtenances connected or attached to such buildings or structures, except
detached one and two-family dwellings and multiple single-family dwellings
(townhouses) not more than three stories above grade in height with a separate
means of egress and their accessory structures shall comply with the International
Residential Code, as amended.

5. The provisions of the National Electrical Code 2011 (NFPA 70) shall apply to the
installation of electrical systems, including installation, alterations, repairs,
replacement, equipment, appliances, fixtures, fittings and appurtenances thereto.

6. The provisions of the State of Illinois Plumbing Code as amended shall apply to
the installation, alteration, repair and replacement of plumbing systems, including
equipment, appliances, fixtures, fittings and appurtenances where connected to a
water or sewage system and all aspects of a medical gas system.

7. The Department of Building Safety also known as the Building Division in the
Community Development Department is hereby created and when there are
conflicting requirements with the adopted codes, the Building Official or designee
shall have the authority to enforce the most restrictive language.

Zoning

All buildings or structures shall conform to the Zoning Ordinances of the Village of
Tinley Park, Illinois. All requirements in said ordinance including but not limited to
building set-backs, building lines, side yards and rear yards must be observed.

Licensing

All contractors and/or sub-contractors shall be licensed by the Village or submit the
required copy of the State licensing to the Village prior to performing any work in the
Village of Tinley Park, Illinois.

Bonding

All contractors and/or sub-contractors shall submit a $20,000 Surety Bond, with the
Village of Tinley Park, prior to performing any work in the Village of Tinley Park,
Illinois

Guarantee/Warranty:



All builders, developers, contractors and sub-contractors shall guarantee, in
writing, all of their work to be free from all defects of material and/or
workmanship for a period of one year from the date of occupancy of any building,
dwelling or addition thereto, or from the date of completion of the erection of any
structure, enclosure or addition thereto, unless the manufacturer's standard
warranty is for a longer period. In such case the longer period shall apply.
Copies of all manufacturer's warranties or guarantees shall be delivered to the
purchaser.

All materials, systems, equipment, devices or components which are a part of or
which service any building, structure, dwelling, enclosure, addition or
improvement, shall be installed and shall function according to the manufacturer's
written instructions and recommendations, and in absence thereof shall be
installed and shall function in accordance with the generally accepted standards of
the industry or trade which manufacturers, installs or provides such components
of the building, structure, dwelling, enclosure or addition thereto.

Defects Excluded from Guarantee:

a. The purchaser has supplied defective design or materials to the builder,
contractor or sub-contractor.

b. Defects that have been caused by normal wear and weathering.
c. Normal shrinkage, or normal settlement occurs.
d. The purchaser has failed to maintain adequate ventilation and has caused

abnormal dampness or condensation.
e. Disputes over landscaping, other than finish grades.

f. The purchaser has been negligent in properly maintaining and operating
the home, dwelling, building, structure, enclosure or addition thereto.

g. The purchaser suffers loss caused by fire, explosion, or other Acts of God.
h. Insect damage occurs.
1. Small hairline cracks in foundations or slab, which do not leak water. See

Section 303-3 for cracks which allow infiltration of water.
J- Small cracks in walks, slabs, driveways or other flat work on grade.

k. Surface flaking when caused by de-icing salts or mechanical abuses.



1. The purchaser suffers secondary damage, such as property damage or
personal injuries resulting from the defect.

m. There has been a technical breach of approved standards, but no actual
damage has occurred or is likely to occur.

All claims for defects under this guarantee shall be made by purchaser, in writing,
to the developer, general contractor, or builder from whom the dwelling or
building was purchased, or, in the case of a structure, enclosure, or addition
thereto, to the contractor who installed, constructed or erected said structure,
enclosure or addition thereto. A copy of such claim shall be furnished to the
Village building department. All claims of a breach of warranty shall be made by
purchaser, in writing, to the Village Building Official.

Developers, buildings, contractors and sub-contractors who fail to make
corrections, replacement or repairs in accordance with this warranty shall be
subject to revocation of their license to do business in the Village of Tinley Park.
Said license revocation shall be in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other
remedies which may be available under the provisions of this Building Code or
the Tinley Park Municipal Code.

F. Authority

1.

The Building Official or officer/inspector/employee is hereby authorized and
directed to administer and enforce all of the provisions of this Code.

Relief from Personal Responsibility: The Building Official, officer or employee
charged with the enforcement of this Code, while acting for the municipality,
shall not thereby render themselves liable personally, and is hereby relieved from
all personal liability for any damage that may accrue to persons or property as a
result of any act required or permitted in the discharge of their official duties.
Any suit instituted against any officer, or employee, because of an act performed
by the employee in the lawful discharge of their duties and under the provisions of
this Code, shall be defended by the legal representative of the municipality until
final termination of the proceedings. In no case shall the Building Official or any
of their subordinates be liable for costs in any action, suit or proceeding that may
be instituted in pursuance of the provisions of this Code; and any officer of the
department of building inspection, acting in good faith and without malice, shall
be free from liability for acts performed under any of its provisions or by reason
of any act or omission in the performance of their official duties in connection
therewith.

Rule making authority: The Building Official shall have power as may be
necessary in the interest of public safety, health and general welfare, to adopt and
promulgate rules and regulations to interpret and implement the provisions of this



Code to secure the intent thereof and to designate requirements applicable
because of local climatic or other conditions; but no such rules shall have the
effect of waiving working stresses or fire-resistive requirements specifically
provided in this Code or violating accepted engineering practice involving public
safety.

4. Wherever in this Code, a provision is made that work be done subject to the
approval of the Building Official, or to their satisfaction, or in a manner
prescribed by the Building Official, this shall be construed as authorizing the
Building Official only to determine whether or not the work or materials
involved, comply with the provisions of this Code; and no such provision shall be
construed as giving the Building Official discretionary authority or power under
this Code.

Right of Entry

Where it is necessary to make an inspection to enforce the provisions of this Code, or
where the Building Official or designee has reasonable cause to believe that there exists
in a structure or upon a premises a condition which is contrary to or in violation of this
Code which makes the structure or premises unsafe, dangerous or hazardous, the
Building Commissioner or designee is authorized to enter the structure or premises at
reasonable times to inspect or to perform the duties imposed by this code, provided that if
such structure or premises be occupied that credentials be presented to the occupant and
entry requested.

Police Assistance

Whenever, in the opinion of a Village Official or Inspector it shall be necessary to call
upon the Department of Police for the aid and assistance in carrying out or enforcing any
of the provisions of this Code, they shall have the authority to do so, and it shall be the
duty of any member of the Department of Police when called upon by said Building
Official or Inspector to act according to the instructions of and to perform such duties as
may be required by such Building Official or Inspector in order to enforce or put into
effect the provisions of this code.

Power to Stop Work

No registered electrical contractor shall install any electrical conduits, electrical wires,
equipment, or apparatus in any building or structure for which a permit is required, until
such permit shall have been secured. In case any work is begun on the installation of
electrical conduits, raceways, or the installation, alteration, or repair of electrical wires or
apparatus in any building or structure without a permit authorizing the same, being first
issued therefore, or the aforesaid installations are being made in violation of the electrical
regulations of this Code, the Electrical Inspector shall have the power to stop such work
at once and to order any and all persons engaged therein, to stop and desist until the
proper permit is secured.



No registered plumbing contractor shall perform work in any building or structure for
which a permit is required, until such permit shall have been secured. In case any work is
begun in any building or structure without a permit authorizing the same, being first
issued therefore, or the aforesaid installations are being made in violation of the plumbing
regulations of this Code, the Plumbing Inspector shall have the power to stop such work
at once and to order any and all persons engaged therein, to stop and desist until the
proper permit is secured.

Compliance Required

It shall be unlawful to erect, construct, repair or alter, remove or demolish any building or
structure in the Village in violation of any of the provisions of this Code, or without
complying with the provisions of this Code. It shall be unlawful to vary from the terms
of any building permit, including the approved plans and specifications relative thereto,
in connection with any such work; provided that a building permit may be amended upon
proper application as provided herein.

Violations and Penalties

1. It shall be unlawful for any person, firm or corporation, whether as owner,
beneficiary of a trust, assignee, general or sub-contractor, lessee, sub-lessee or
occupant to erect, construct, enlarge, alter, repair, improve, remove, add to,
convert, demolish, equip, use, occupy, or maintain any building or structure in the
Village, or cause or permit the same to be done, contrary to or in violation of any
of the provisions of this Code.

2. It is hereby declared that any violation of this Code constitutes a public nuisance,
and in addition to any other remedies provided by this Code for its enforcement,
or for any penalties, the Village may bring civil suit to enjoin the violation of any
provisions of this Code.

3. If for any reason any one or more sections, sentences, clauses, or parts of this
Code are held invalid, such judgment shall not affect, impair or invalidate the
remaining provisions of this Code.

4. Any person, firm or corporation violating any of the provisions of this Code shall
be guilty of a misdemeanor and each such person shall be deemed guilty of a
separate offense for each and every day or portion thereof, during which any
violation of any of the provisions of this Code is committed, continued or
permitted, and upon conviction of any such violation such person shall be
punishable by a fine not to exceed Seven Hundred Fifty Dollars ($750.00).

Right of Appeal



1. All persons shall have the right to appeal the Building Official’s decision
pertaining to the Code as outlined in this Section. All Appeals shall be directed to
the Building Committee which is appointed by the Board of Trustees of the
Village. An Application for Appeal shall be based on a claim that the true intent
of this Code or the rules legally adopted there under has been incorrectly
interpreted.

2. The Application for Appeal shall be filed in writing by the Building Owner or
designated agent, addressed to the Building Official, who will forward it on to the
Chairperson of the Building Committee, and shall contain the following

information:

a. Name and address of Appellant.

b. Location of property or premises in question.

c. Chapter and Section of Code being contested.

d. Interpretation being contested.

e. Appellants reasons for challenging the Code Officials interpretation

stating relief or solution requested.
f. Request for a hearing by the Building Committee to review the matter.

3. The Chairperson shall respond to the Appellant, and shall establish a date and
time for a hearing to be held within twenty-one (21) business days of receipt of
the Appeal.

4. The Building Committee shall conduct an open hearing allowing the Appellant an
opportunity to be heard, and shall have the right to seek counsel from professional
and technical staff and consultants who may be called upon to offer testimony
which will aid the Committee in attempting to arrive at a just decision in the
matter being heard. The procedures shall not require compliance with strict rules
of evidence but shall mandate that only relevant information be received.

5. The Building Committee, after due deliberation, shall render a decision in writing
within twenty-one (21) business days of completion of the hearing process. A
simple majority vote by the Committee shall constitute the Committee decision.

Alternate Materials:
The provisions of this Code are not intended to prevent the use of any material or method
of construction not specifically prescribed by this Code, provided any such alternative

has been approved.

The Building Official may approve any such alternative, provided, he finds that the
proposed design is satisfactory and complies with accepted design criteria.

The Building Official may require that evidence or proof be submitted to substantiate any
claims that may be made regarding its use. The applicant shall be responsible for the



procuring, and submittal, of all data and reports necessary to evaluate such alternate
materials. The applicant shall pay all costs incurred in the presentation of all tests and/or
investigations required under these provisions.

SECTION 101 - PERMITS

A.

A permit shall be obtained before beginning excavation, grading, construction, additions,
reconstruction, remodeling, alteration or repair, and/or demolition using application
forms provided by the Building Official. Permit fees shall be as established herein.

Revocation of Permits: The Building Official may revoke a permit or approval issued
under the provisions of this Code, in case of any false statement or misrepresentation of
fact in the application, or on the construction documents, on which the permit or approval
was based.

Posting of Permit: A true copy of the building permit shall be kept on the site of
operations open to public inspection during the entire time of prosecution of the work and
until the completion of the same.

Compliance with Code: The permit shall be a license to proceed with the work and shall
not be construed as authority to violate, cancel or set aside any of the provisions of this
Code, except as specifically stipulated by modification or legally granted variation as
described in the application.

Time limitation of application: FimeLimit—of Permits: If, after such permit has
been granted, the operation covered by said permit shall not be started within three (3)
months of the date thereof, or if such operations are not diligently pursued to completion
without any extensive delays (more than thirty (30) days) in the construction process,
then such permit shall expire by the terms thereof, and no operations there under shall be
started or completed until a renewal of said permit shall be obtained. Whenever delays
which leave the site, building or structure in a condition which presents a potential hazard
to the public either by means of access (whether implied, authorized or unauthorized) or
as an attractive nuisance to any persons, under those circumstances the permittee shall
secure the site, building or structure in order to protect the public from an accident or
injury. The actual life of a permit for other than one and two-family dwellings, decks,
sheds, garages and other accessory structures is one (1) year from the date of issue, which
includes a maximum of two 3-month extensions. The actual life of a permit for one and
two-family dwellings, decks, sheds, garages and other accessory structures is 180 days
from the date of issue.

A permit may be renewed for three (3) months when requested within ten (10) days of
expiration of permit. An application for renewal must be made to the Building Official
with payment of the renewal fee. A permit may be renewed two (2) times for a total
length of six (6) months after which time a new permit will be required. The first permit
renewal fee shall be free. The second permit renewal fee shall be 50% of the original
permit fee.



No permit shall be issued to any applicant who is indebted to the Village for any fees or
charges, for a period exceeding thirty (30) days after billing, resulting from work
executed under a previous permit, or any other fees or fines owed the Village.

Permit and Inspection Fees: On buildings, structures, electrical, gas, mechanical and
plumbing systems or alternations requiring a permit, a fee for each permit shall be paid as
required, in accordance with the schedule as established in Chapter XIII of the Building
Code.

All construction documents submitted, with a permit, that require checking by the
Building official shall be subject to a check fee and / or filing fee as called for in this
Code. Construction documents that are incomplete, or require excessive corrections shall
be subject to double the amount of the plan check fee.

Those portions of charges made to the Village by an approved third-party plan review
firm, or by engineers, for examination of plans which exceed the normal plan check fees
shall be added to the plan check fee and shall be paid by the owner and/or applicant prior
to issuance of an occupancy permit.

Application for Permits

1. Application shall be made by the Owner or Lessee of the building or structure, or
the agent of either, or by the licensed engineer or architect employed in
connection with the proposed work. If application is made by a person other than
the owner in fee, it may be required to be accompanied by a duly verified affidavit
of the owner or the qualified person making the application that the proposed
work is authorized by the owner in fee and that the applicant is authorized to
make such application. The full names and addresses of the owner, lessee and
applicant shall be stated in the application.

2. Such application shall:

a. Identify and describe the work to be covered by the permit for which
application is made.

b. Describe the land on which the proposed work is to be done by legal
description, street address or similar description that will readily identify and
definitely locate the proposed building or work.

c. Indicate the use and occupancy for which the proposed work is intended.

d. Be accompanied by construction documents and other information as required
in Section R106 of the International Residential Code or Section 107 of the
International Building Code.

e. State the valuation of the proposed work.

f. Be signed by the applicant, or the applicant’s authorized agent.

g. Give such other information as required by the Building Official.



h. Application for permit shall also be accomplished by written proof or
evidence that the project has been approved by all applicable federal, state,
county and local jurisdictions, including, but not limited to EPA, DNR, Corp
of Engineers, MWRD.

i.  All applications for building permits shall be accompanied by a copy of a
“Plat of Survey” attested and sealed by a land surveyor registered in the State
of Illinois.

No Permit shall be issued to any applicant who is indebted to the Village for any
fees or charges resulting from work executed under a previous permit or any other
fees, fines owed the Village of Tinley Park.

Description of Work: The application shall contain a general description of the
proposed work, its location, the use and occupancy of all parts of the building or
structure and of all portions of the site or lot not covered by the building, and such
additional information as may be required by the Building Official.

Construction Documents:

a. The application for the permit shall be accompanied by copies of
specifications as indicated in Section 101 I and of plans drawn to scale,
when required, with sufficient clarity and detail dimensions to show the
nature and character of the work to be performed, statement of special
inspections and other pertinent information. As built are required for all
commercial, office, industrial, single family attached and multi-family.
(Single family as built are only required if requested by the Building
Official) When quality of materials is essential for conformity to the Code,
specific information shall be given to establish such quality; and in no case
shall the Code be cited or the term "legal" or its equivalent be used as a
substitute for specific information. The Building Official may waive the
requirement for filing plans when the work involved is of a minor nature.

b. All construction documents shall be required to be stamped with a seal,
signed and dated by a registered architect or structural engineer licensed
by the State of Illinois and showing the registration number. All drawings
shall bear the statement "These construction documents were prepared
under my direct supervision and to the best of my knowledge comply with
the ordinances and codes of the Village of Tinley Park, Illinois", signed
(Signature of Architect or Structural Engineer responsible for preparation
of the construction documents). No stamp or seal shall be required on
drawings for detached private garage plans; or for detached secondary
buildings or for fences; or for additions/remodeling to a single-family
dwelling when no structural or ventilation changes are made to an existing
single-family dwelling or at the discretion of the Building Official. The
Building Cemmissioner Official is authorized to waive the submission of
construction documents and other data not required to be prepared by a



registered design professional if it is found that the nature of the work
applied for is such that review of construction documents is not necessary
to obtain compliance with this code.

Additions, Alterations, Remodeling and Repairs: Applications for Permit
for additions, alterations, repairs, and/or remodeling shall be accompanied
by construction documents giving the same information that may apply the
same as new building construction.

Private garage plans shall show location of buildings to other buildings
and to lot lines on a legal plat of survey. Private garages, attached or
detached, shall comply with the provisions of Section 213 and 308 of this
Code.

Sheds, Decks, Gazebos, Fences, Pergolas, Trellises, Pools, Driveways,
Sidewalks, Patios, Pavers and Mailboxes: plans shall be submitted that
show location of buildings to other buildings and to lot lines on a legal plat
of survey.

Mailboxes: A permit is required for any decorative or brick mail boxes in
the public right-of-way and a waiver form must be signed by the
homeowner. See Section 315 of this Code for requirements.

Lawn Sprinklers: A permit is required for any lawn sprinkler system
installed. A plat of survey with the layout of the sprinkler system must be
included with the permit application. Lawn sprinklers installed in the
public right of way will require a waiver form to be signed and submitted.

Demolition permits do not require plans except when attached to one or
more buildings, or when removal of structure will affect adjacent
buildings. Plans of demolition may be required for buildings other than
single family dwellings, private garages, or secondary buildings.
Demolition permits for multi family/single family homes, commercial or
industrial buildings require a copy of the County Demolition Permit prior
to release of a Village permit. See Chapter XII of this Code for
requirements.

All construction documents submitted for permit, that requires checking
by the Building Official, shall be subject to the plan check fee and/or filing
fee as called for in this Code. Construction documents that are
incomplete, or require excessive corrections shall be subject to double the
amount of the plan check fee.

Those portions of charges made to the Village by an approved third-party
plan review service, or by Engineers, for examination of plans which



5-6.

6-7.

7-8.

exceed the normal plan check fees shall be added to the plan check fee and
shall be paid by the owner and/or applicant.

Site Plan: There shall also be filed five (5) copies of a site plan, and an electronic
copy if requested, showing to scale the size and location of all new construction
and all existing structures on the site, the proposed grades for such structures and
the site, distances from lot lines and the established street grades; and it shall be
drawn in accordance with an accurate boundary line survey. In case of
demolition, the site plan shall show all construction to be demolished and the
location and size of all existing buildings and construction that are to remain on
the site or plot. The site plan shall show location and size of driveway and/or
parking areas when not submitted with new building construction.

Engineering Details: The Building Official may require adequate details of
structural, mechanical, and electrical work including computations, stress
diagrams and other essential technical data to be filed. All engineering plans and
computations shall bear the seal, date and signature of the engineer or architect
responsible for the design. Drawings shall indicate all design load information,
the bearing capacity of the soil; the fiber stress (f), and the deflection (E) for all
structural members (i.e.: concrete, steel and lumber); and the compressive stress
values of all masonry and concrete.

Survey: All applications for building permits shall be accompanied by a copy of a
"Plat of Survey" attested and sealed by a land surveyor registered in the State of
[llinois and an electronic copy of said survey.

Approved Construction Documents:

1.

When construction documents have been approved by the Building Official he
shall affix a stamp indicating approval on the cover page of each set of said
drawings and shall affix his signature, and shall return one set of such approved
drawings to the applicant. One of these sets, with a signed cover page shall be at
the job site at all times and be available for the use of the Village Inspectors. One
set of approved drawings shall be retained in Building Department files.

a. The following stamped plans, and as-builts for all commercial, office,
industrial, multifamily, and mixed use and one (1) electronic copy of the plans
and as-builts shall be required.

Commercial-5 (2) sets

Footing & foundation- 5 (2) sets

Shell only-5 (2) sets

Commercial tenant buildouts-5 (2) sets
Multi-family dwellings-5 (2) sets
Single-family dwellings-5 (2) sets

S



No deviations or changes shall be made in the construction from the approved
construction documents unless such change is expressly and specifically
requested in writing by the applicant and the approval of said change is granted in
writing by the Building Official.

The Building Official is authorized to waive the submission of construction
documents and other data not required to be prepared by a registered design
professional if it is found that the nature of the work applied for is such that
review of construction documents is not necessary to obtain compliance with this
Code.

SECTION 102 - INSPECTIONS:

A.

For on site construction the Building Official upon notification from the permit holder or
their agent shall make or cause to be made any necessary inspections and shall either
approve that portion of the construction as completed or shall notify the permit holder or
their agent wherein the same fails to comply with this Code.

1.

Job Access: A safe and reasonable access shall be provided to all sites, buildings
and/or structures. This includes a dry gravel walkway, secured platforms having a
slip-resistant walking surface so they do not move around or any other item the
Inspector considers safe. If a safe access is not provided, the inspector may not
perform the required inspection until a safe access is provided. Approved guards
shall protect all floor and foundation openings.

Job Site Conditions: Any building or structure that is to be inspected shall have all
floors and levels accessible and shall be clean of all debris and obstructions so a
visual inspection of all work can be performed. Ladders or changes in levels greater
than 24 inches are not considered accessible.

Footing Inspection: Commonly made after excavations are complete and footing
forms are set but prior to pouring concrete.

Foundation Wall: Commonly made after forms are set and braced and all
reinforcing is in place and tied and all inserts are placed, but before pouring of
concrete.

Rough Inspection: Commonly made after the roof, masonry, all framing, fire-
stopping, and bracing are in place and all electrical, plumbing and
mechanica/lHVAC, chimneys, and fireplaces are complete, but prior to the
installation of any insulation, lath or gypsum board.

(Add language)

All penetrations shall be sealed as required per code and shall be part of the
required rough inspections. No rough framing inspections shall be performed
prior to electrical, plumbing and HVAC inspections are inspected and approved.



6. Insulation Inspection: Commonly made after rough inspection but prior to lath or

gypsum board.

(Add line item)

7. Nailing or screw pattern inspections necessary for any lateral shear or bracing
walls.

Plumbing, Mechanical & Electrical:

1. Under slab: All work installed under a slab on fill or in concrete work shall be
left open until inspected and approved.

2. Rough Inspection: Commonly made prior to covering or concealment and before
fixtures are set — prior to any electrical wiring installation

Other Inspections:

In addition to the called inspections above, the Building Department may make or require
any other inspections to ascertain compliance with this Code and other requirements or
laws enforced by the Village.

Work shall not be done on any part of the building or structure beyond the point indicated
in each successive inspection without first obtaining the written approval of the Building
Official. Such written approval shall be given only after an inspection has been made of
each successive step in the construction as indicated by each of the inspections required
above.

Requests for inspections shall be made to the Building Department, by telephone not less
than forty-eight (48) hours (excluding Saturdays, Sundays and Holidays) before
inspection is requested. Exception: All concrete inspections require a two-hour (2) notice
but no later than 2:30 p.m. of each day. Notice received after 2:30 p.m. will be scheduled
for the following day.

Final Inspection: Commonly made after the building is completed and ready for
inspection. Request for final inspection must be made in writing on forms provided by
the Building Department.

SECTION 103 - STOP WORK ORDERS:

A.

Notice to Owner: Upon notice from the Building Official that the permit has been
revoked or work on any building or structure is being constructed contrary to the
provisions of this Code or the approved construction documents or in an unsafe and
dangerous manner, such work shall be immediately stopped. The stop work order shall
be in writing and shall be posted in a conspicuous location of the subject building or
property and also shall be provided to the owner of the property.



Unlawful Continuance: Any person who shall continue any work in or about the site or
building after having been served with a stop work order, or after having received actual
notice thereof, except such work as he is directed to perform to remove a violation or
unsafe condition, shall be liable to a fine of not less than One Hundred ($100.00) Dollars
or more than Seven Hundred Fifty ($750.00)

SECTION 104 — CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY:

A.

New Buildings:

No building hereafter erected shall be used or occupied in whole or in part until the
Certificate of Occupancy has been issued by the Building Official.

Existing Buildings - Use Group or Occupant Changes:

With the exception of single-family and multi-family dwellings, when the ownership, or
when the occupant of all or part of a building changes, or when the use of all or part of a
building changes from one use group to another, said building, or part thereof in relation
to which the change in occupant or use has occurred, shall not be occupied or used until a
Certificate of Occupancy has been issued by the Building Official.

For multi-family homes, when the ownership of the entire building changes, including
ownership of common areas, said building shall not be occupied or used unless a new
Certificate of Use and Occupancy has been issued by the Building Official within
thirty (30) days after the change of ownership. The inspection required for a new
Certificate of Use and Occupancy for multi-family homes because of a change of
ownership, shall be limited to the common areas of the building and shall not include
individual dwelling units. Further, said inspection shall take place at the same time as
the inspection required for issuance of a Residential Rental License under Article XI,
Chapter 129F of the Village Code. For purposes of this Section, a multi-family home is
defined as a building of three (3) stories or more that contains three (3) or more
individual residential units.

No building hereinafter occupied regardless of occupancy, enlarged, extended or altered
to change from one occupant or use group to another, in whole or in part, and no building
hereafter altered for which a Certificate of Occupancy has not been heretofore issued
shall be occupied or used until the Certificate shall have been issued by the Building
Official certifying that the work has been completed in accordance with the provisions of
the approved permit; except that any use or occupancy which was not discontinued
during the work of alteration shall be discontinued within thirty (30) days after the
completion of the alteration unless the required certificate is secured from the Building
Official.

Changes in Use and Occupancy - Prohibited Uses - Re-establishment:



After a change of use has been established in a building, the re-establishment of a prior
illegal or prohibited use that would not have been legal in a new building of the same
type of construction is prohibited, unless all the applicable provisions of this Code and
Zoning Ordinances are complied with. A change from one prohibited use, for which a
permit has been granted to another prohibited use, shall be deemed a violation of this
Code.

Femperary Conditional Certificate of Occupancy:

Upon the written request of a holder of a permit, the Building Official may issue a
Conditional Certificate of Occupancy for a building or structure, or part thereof, before
the entire work covered by the permit shall have been completed, provided such portion
or portions may be occupied safely prior to full completion of the building without
endangering life or public welfare.

Contents of Certificate:

When a building or structure is entitled thereto, the Building Official shall issue a
Certificate of Occupancy.

Penalties:

1. It shall be unlawful for any owner, builder, contractor, or other person who has
constructed a building or structure under this Code for which a Certificate of
Occupancy is required, to deliver possession to another person to whom the
building has been sold or leased or for whom it has been built without having
exhibited a Certificate of Occupancy.

2. Any person who violates this requirement shall be subject to a penalty not to
exceed Seven Hundred Fifty Dollars ($750.00) for each offense, each day the
violation continues shall be construed as a separate offense.

SECTION 105 - SITE WORK, DEMOLITION & CONSTRUCTION

A.

General — Whenever a building or structure is erected, altered, repaired, removed or
demolished, the operation shall be conducted in a safe manner and suitable protection for
the general public shall be provided.

Fences — Every excavation or area of construction on a site located within the village
boundaries shall be enclosed with a barrier not less than six (6) feet high (four (4) feet
high for single-family & multi-family dwellings) to prevent the entry of unauthorized
persons. All fences and barriers shall be of adequate strength to resist wind pressure, as
specified in the International Building Code 2642 2021 Chapter 16.



C. Site Maintenance — Every construction site must be kept in a safety environment, free
from hazards and maintained so as not to allow debris to blow onto other property. All
dumpsters must be kept from being over filled to avoid debris from dropping onto the
property or blowing onto other property.

D. Protection of Adjoining Property — Adjoining public and private property shall be
protected from damage during construction, remodeling and demolition work. Protection
must be provided as outlined in the International Building Code 2012 Section 3307.

SECTION 106 — DEFINITIONS

Unless otherwise expressly stated, the following terms shall, for the purpose of this Code,
have the meanings indicated in this section. For other definitions not contained in this
Section, see other Codes as adopted.

Words used in the present tense include the future; the singular number includes the
plural and the plural the singular. Where terms are not defined in this section they shall
have either ordinarily accepted meanings or such as the context may imply.

A. 1. Apartment. A dwelling unit as defined by this Code.

B-2. Approved. Approved refers to approval by the Building Official as the result of
investigation and tests conducted by him, or by reason of accepted principles or
tests by nationally recognized organizations.

€-3. Area Building. The total area of all floors or stories contained within the building
perimeter. Areas of the building not provided with surrounding walls shall be
included in the building area if included within the horizontal projection of the
roof or floor above. Also see definition in Section 702 of the IBC for fire
suppression requirements.

D-4. Area, Total. For purposes of calculating total square feet (area), the total floor
area includes mezzanines and basements contained within the surrounding
exterior walls of the building on all floors and levels which are added together.
The area included within the surrounding exterior walls of a building includes
canopies, when in the opinion of the Code Official the canopy creates or may
create a hazardous situation, and all enclosed extensions are also added to the
calculation. Areas of a building not provided with surrounding walls shall be
included within the building area if such areas are included within the horizontal
projection of the roof or floor above. Interior walls, including fire walls, and
horizontal fire walls (floors), fire separation walls and party walls, shall not be
considered as walls which divide a structure into two or more separate buildings,
but structures containing such interior walls shall be considered as one building
for the purposes of this chapter. This definition shall only be used to determine
whether or not a fire & life safety system is required.




E-S.

E 6.

7.

H- 8.

£ 9.

¥+ 10.

K- 11.

12.

=

15.

14.

Area Useable. The sum of the net horizontal area of all floors within outside walls
of a residential building exclusive of areas in cellars, basements, unfinished attics,
garages, open porches and accessory structures, but including any area that is
roughed in (rough framing & electrical) but not completed which is designed and
intended for human occupancy.

Basement. A story of a building partially underground, and having more than half
of its story height below the grade plane.

Board of Trustees. The corporate authority of the Village of Tinley Park.

Building Code. The building code and its amendments, as adopted by the Village
of Tinley Park.

Building Official. The officer charged with the administration and enforcement
of this Code.

Ceiling Height. Ceiling heights shall be the clear vertical distance from the
finished floor to the finished ceiling.

Crawl Space. An unfinished space beneath the 1st Floor or under a roof of a
building, intended for access to piping, ductwork, wiring, or other utilities, and
not intended for habitable space.

Existing legal non-conforming. A structure that complied with the zoning or
building codes at the time it was built but no longer conforms to the adoption,
revision or amendment of the present building codes.

. Family. A family includes one or more persons occupying a premise and living

as a single housekeeping unit, and related to each other by birth, adoption, or
marriage, as distinguished from a group occupying a boarding house, hotel or
motel, as herein defined; a number of persons but not exceeding four (4) living
and cooking together as a single housekeeping unit, though not related by birth,
adoption or marriage shall be deemed to constitute a family.

Listed and Listings. Terms referring to equipment which is shown in a list
published by an approved testing agency qualified and equipped for the conduct
or supervision of experimental testing and maintaining an adequate periodic
inspection of current productions and whose listing shows that the equipment
complies with the provisions set forth in this Code.

Motor Vehicle. A machine propelled by power other than human power designed
to travel along the ground by use of wheels, treads, runners, or slides and
transport persons or property or pull machinery and shall include, without
limitations, automobiles, trucks, tractors, trailers, or semi-trailers, motorcycles,
buggies and wagons or any other similar vehicle.




16.

|Z

18.

O-19.

P-20.

21.

17,

Ordinance: a local law adopted by a municipality.

Permittee. Person, Firm, Corporation or Organization to whom a building permit
has been issued.

Plat of Survey. A map prepared by an Illinois Licensed surveyor giving legal
descriptions of the property by lot, street number or block numbers. Survey also
shows official measured and recorded sizes of property.

Ranch Style Home. A single-story house with less than a 4:12 pitch roof and shall
include a three-step ranch.

Story. A story is that portion of a building included between the upper surface of
a floor and upper surface of the floor or roof next above, regardless of portions
being below grade.

Tenant. The occupant of a building, house, apartment or land that is owned by
someone else.

CHAPTFER H-MINIMUM-PEANNING REQUIREMENTS

CHAPTER II - INTERNATIONAL RESIDENTIAL CODE.

SECTION 260 R303 - LIGHT, VENTILATION & SAFEFYHEATING:

A. General:

1. Install windows in outside walls to provide natural light and ventilation in all
habitable rooms, except kitchens.

2. Windows in habitable rooms, whose areas provide the light and ventilation
necessary to comply with the following requirements, are considered required
windows. All windows in addition to these, and also windows in rooms other
than habitable rooms, are considered non-required windows.

B. Habitable Rooms: Rooms designed to be used for living, sleeping, eating or cooking;ret

s eluding | ;  (Sent 0



1. Insect screens: Shall be installed, for ventilated portions of all windows in all
exterior walls, in all residential buildings.

2. Bars, grilles or screens placed over emergency escape windows shall be releasable
or removable from the inside without the use of a key, tool or force greater than
that which is required for normal operation of the window.

3. The minimum net clear opening for grade floor windows shall be 5 square feet.

4. Basement habitable rooms shall be designed for min. 10% natural light & 5% natural
ventilation. Sill height of opening shall not exceed 36 above finished basement floor

Bathrooms and Water Closet Compartments:

1. Provide ventilation in or near ceiling with continuous metal (or other approved
material) duct connection to outside air, and with a mechanical exhaust fan. Min.

exhaust rates shall be determined by section M 1505 havinga-—capaecityequal-tonot
less—than—ene{(1)-CEM-persquarefoot: If duct is located in an unconditioned

space, it must be insulated to a minimum R6 value.
Open Basements:

1. Provide light and ventilation by windows or doors, in exterior walls with both
glazed and ventilating area not less than (one) 1 percent of the floor area.

Utility Room Ventilation:

1. Combustion & dilution air must be provided in accordance with the International
Mechanical Code and/or equipment manufacturer’s specifications.

2. Each appliance exhaust duct metal duct or ducts to the outside shall be provided
with a backdraft damper or per equipment manufacturer’s specifications.

Rooms having a Gas-fired Appliance:

1. A minimum of two (2) properly placed sprinkler heads shall be provided. They
must be supplied by the domestic water system in the area of the gas-fired furnace
and/or hot water tank (exception — garages and unconditioned spaces.)

Crawl Spaces:

1. In crawl spaces ground shall be covered with (four) 4 inches of coarse granular
material (sand, gravel, or stone) reasonably level over which a vapor barrier or
minimum (six) 6 mil polyethylene film or better (or material of equal perm rating)
lapped (twelve)12 inches and a minimum of (two) 2 inches of rough finished
concrete.



H.

Attic and Other Enclosed Spaces

2.1. Vents or ducts from kitchens, baths or laundry rooms shall not discharge into attic
spaces, but shall discharge direct to the outside via listed metallic flexible or rigid
ducts

SECTION 264-R304 - SPACEREQUIREMENTS-MINIMUM ROOM AREAS:

A.

Minimum room sizes:

1. Refer to Tinley Park Zoning Ordinance Section V.C.2. for minimum usable floor
area requirements per dwelling type.

2. Senior Housing requirements:
a. 300 square feet per unit
b. 600 square feet overall per unit when common area of the facility is
included and divided among the dwelling units.



Except as otherwise provided by ordinance, rooms for the following uses shall
meet the standards specified below.

Area Minimum Square Feet

Living, dining, cooking:

a. Living, dining and cooking when in one room 220
(includes area occupied by equipment)

b. Living, dining, when in one room 180
c. Living only in one room, when dining space

is provided in kitchen or separate room. 160
d. Kitchen cooking only (including area occupied

by equipment) 60
e. Dining only 100
f. Family or Recreation Room 180
Sleeping:
a. Majer Primary bedroom 120
b. Other sleeping rooms 100
Bathroom:
a. Size should be adequate for water closet, lavatory, and tub or

shower.  The water closet may be located in a separate
compartment adjoining the bathroom.

b. Arrange fixtures so that door will swing not less than 950 degrees
when open.
c. There shall be no opening between a room in which a water closet

(toilet, urinal or bidet) is located and a room in which food is
prepared or stored.

Minimum room dimensions:

a. Habitable rooms, except kitchens and bathrooms shall not have any
horizontal dimension less than 10'-0".



Halls and Passages:

a. Minimum width 3'0", arranged to permit access of furniture.
B. General Storage: This storage shall be in addition to required closets and kitchen storage
space.
I. For single family residences provide minimum total volume (interior and exterior
storage) 200 cubic feet plus 75 cubic feet for each bedroom.
2. For multiple units conform to following schedule:
1 bedroom and 1 bedroom = 150 cubic feet
2 bedrooms = 200 cubic feet
3 bedrooms = 250 cubic feet
4 bedrooms = 300 cubic feet

C. Bedroom Closets: Provide each bedroom with at least one closet or wardrobe having a
minimum:

1. Depth: 1Heet10-inches2’- 07
2. Floor area: 5 square feet

3. Heights: 6 feet

C. Escape Areaways, Window Wells:



Minimum width measured perpendicular to face of building wall, 3 feet. Head of
window, in all cases, to be at or above top of area wall.

Exception: Escape windows not required when two (2) or more stairways lead out
of the basement.

Provide drain and connect to sub-soil drainage system and/or discharge to storm
water system.

SECTION 305.1 — CEILING HEIGHTS:

A. Minimum Ceiling Heights:

1.

Minimum ceiling heights for occupiable spaces, habitable spaces and corridors
shall have a ceiling height of not less that 8’-0”. Unfinished basements (in other
than one- and two-family dwellings) shall be permitted to have a ceiling height of
not less that 7°-6”. For one- and two-family dwellings, the minimum clear height
to the underside of the floor assembly above shall be 7°-6” and the minimum clear
height to the underside to a beam shall be 6°-8”.

Basements: 7'6" clear under joists. Recreation Rooms must have 7'6" clear
height for at least 80% of the floor area, with a minimum of 6'6" clear for the
remaining 20% floor area.

Main floor of any living unit 8'0" clear for at least 75% of the total floor area.

Areas other than main floor: 7'6" clear; under sloping roofs, 7'6" for not less than
50% of floor area having 5 feet or more headroom.

SECTION (R309) - (GARAGES AND CARPORTS):

C. General

1.

Refer to Tinley Park Zoning Ordinance for required setbacks and distances from
primary structure.

If the garage is less than ten feet from the primary structure, it will require a
minimum of ’2-inch gypsum board (or equivalent) applied to the interior

Floors



C.

a. Remove all top soil, loose fill and organic matter under entire area of
garage including foundations.

b. Install not less than four (4) inches layer of well compacted gravel,
crushed stone, or sand.

c. Install not less than five (5) inches of concrete (minimum six bag mix),
reinforced with wire mesh; minimum size 6" x 6", #10 x #10. Pull
reinforcing up into slab when pouring. In lieu of wire mesh, fiber mesh
and 2-inch rebar are an acceptable material.

d. Floors shall be pitched to drain effectively.

e. Sill plates in contact with concrete shall be pressure-treated.

Openings/Doors

a. Vehicle door openings shall not exceed ten (10) feet in height. Vehicle
doors shall not be the sole egress from the garage.

b. A communicating door between garage and residence shall not be

considered as a required means of egress from the residence.

A service door shall be provided for all garages. The service door shall be a
minimum of 6 feet 8 inches in height and no less than 2 feet 8 inches in width.

SECTION 309.6 — SINGLE FAMILY DETACHED GARAGES

A. One-story frame detached garages.

1.

2.

Maximum size cannot exceed 720 square feet.

Total height of a pitched roof garage shall not exceed eighteen (18) feet at the
roof peak when measured from the finished floor.

Comply with construction requirements for one-story dwellings in IRC code with
the following exceptions:

a.

Grade beam construction permitted, consisting of a five (5) inches
concrete floor on a minimum four (4) inches of crushed stone, sand or
gravel, poured monolithically, with a minimum ten (10) inches deep outer
edge, a width of twenty (20) inches around perimeter of building with the
5-inch concrete floor bearing on the grade beam.



Concrete under sill plates to be a minimum of six (6) inches above
finished grade.

Studs, maximum spacing twenty-four (24) inches on center.

In lieu of structural panels, wall sheathing shall be installed behind
exterior finish materials and shall have a minimum thickness of ’2-inch.
Where corner bracing is used, each corner shall be braced from top
outward in two directions to a minimum of 72" from corner at sill plate,
and may be applied on the inside surface of studs, minimum 1" x 4"
diagonal bracing

Corner post may be constructed of two (2) 2" x 4".

Top plate shall be single, provided rafters occur directly over studs and
plate at corners is lapped to provide tie.

Rafter ties not less than 2" x 4", maximum spacing six (6) feet on center.

Concrete floor, minimum 5" of concrete on minimum 4" of crushed stone,
sand or gravel.

Ceiling joists shall be a minimum of 2” x 8” and spaced a maximum of
48-inches on center.

No gas-fired appliance shall be installed in any garage, unless AGA
approved, vented, with a sealed combustion chamber and installed in
accordance with the manufacturer’s instructions and the International
Residential Code.

4. Service door heights shall be 6'-8" min. 8'-0" maximum and no less than 2 feet 8
inches in width.

5. Materials for roof construction must be approved roofing, or may match roofing
used on an existing dwelling located on the same lot as the new detached structure
and installed in accordance with the manufacturer’s instructions.

One story solid masonry or masonry veneer detached garages and accessory buildings.

I. Comply with construction requirements for one-story dwellings In IRC code with
the following exceptions:

a.

Spread-type footing, minimum size 10" deep by 20" wide. Bottom of
footing shall be a minimum 3'-6" below finished grade. Foundation walls
to be formed both sides, minimum eight (8)" thick poured concrete, but
not less than the walls being supported



b. For brick veneer framing, top of concrete foundation shall be not less than
4" above finished grade.

SECTION 309.7 — SINGLE FAMILY ATTACHED GARAGES

1.

2.

Construction, and foundation, and all footings, same as required for the dwelling.

If door opening occurs between garage and dwelling, provide four (4) inch curb
at the service door, or construct garage floor four (4) inches lower than adjoining
floor. A basement stairway leading directly to a garage is not permitted unless
stairway is enclosed in minimum one-hour construction (or 1-3/4-inch-thick
solid core wood) door with listed self-closing devices and has not less than a four
(4) inch high concrete curb and sill all around the stair opening and to located at
the top of the stairwell.

Installation of house heating unit or other fuel burning appliance in garage space
not permitted unless AGA approved, vented with a sealed combustion chamber
and installed in accordance with the manufacturer’s instructions and the
International Residential Code.

Wood frame walls common to dwelling and garage to be one (1) hour fire rated
construction. A one (1) hour fire rated bulkhead shall be established in the attic
space directly above the one (1) hour rated garage wall and it shall be continuous
from the fire rated wall to the roof deck. Where rooms occur over the garage
area, ceilings are required to be double layer of 5/8 inch Type X drywall and all
walls shall be one (1) hour fire rated construction. Joints shall be staggered a
minimum of 16-inches. The door opening protectives shall have a 60-minute
minimum fire rating, approved closer and approved latching type hardware.

5. Hot air heat duct openings shall be a minimum of four (4) feet above floor of garage

with a listed fire damper. Return air ducts are not permitted.

SECTION 204 R311 — INGRESS- & EGRESS:-MEANS OF EGRESS

A. Access:

1.

Living Units: Each living unit, having one or more bedrooms shall be provided
with two means of access, as remote as possible from each other, without passing
thru any other living unit. A living unit may have one means of access if it opens
to a hall or passage having two (2) remote means of egress to outside, or two (2)
remote vertical means of egress. (Exception: townhomes)



Attics. Provide access to attics by means of scuttles, minimum 22" x 30"
disappearing or built-in stairways. Reguired—seuttles—notpermitted—in—eloset
1 hich d s writh 20 below.

Crawl Spaces. Provide access of not less than 30 inches wide by 24 inches high
to permit access to all utilities.

Access scuttles to areas above ceilings, and below floors shall be located in areas
where free and unencumbered access is always available.

Basements. Provide direct access to outside by a door, or a window having an
openable area at least 2 feet wide and 30 inches high, stool not more than 3 feet
above floor. Where basement stairway is within 5 feet of exterior entrance door
this will constitute direct access.

A basement stairway leading directly to garage is not permitted unless stair is
enclosed with a 1 hour rated partition, and with a 1 hour rated (or 1-3/4-inch-thick
solid core wood) door located at the top of the staircase with a self-closing device
and has not less than a 4-inch-high concrete curb and sill all around the stair
opening.

Privacy:

1.

Bedrooms:

a. Each bedroom to have access to a bathroom without passing through
another bedroom.

b. Each habitable room to have access to each other habitable room without
passing through a bedroom.

Non-aceeptable Prohibited bathroom arrangements:

a. Bathroom opening directly into a kitchen.
b. Bathroom providing sole access to any other room.
C. Bathroom in the basement as the only one serving a living unit.

SECTION 266 R311.2 - DOORS:

A.

Exterior Doors

1.

Minimum sizes:



B.

a. Main entrance doors: 3' 0" wide.
b. Service entrance doors: 2' 8" wide.

c. Height: 6'8".

Interior Doors:

1.

2.

Provide a door for each opening to a bedroom, bathroom, and toilet compartment.
Minimum sizes:

a. All habitable rooms: 2'6" wide by 6' 8" high.

b. Bathrooms: 2’4" wide by 6' 8" high.

c. Powder rooms: 2'2" wide and 6' 4" high.

SECTION R311.7 — STAIRWAYS: Within individual dwelling units (regulated by the IRC
Code) for Residential Occupancies only.

A.

Design and Location:

1.

Headroom: Continuous clear headroom measured vertically from front edge of
tread to a line parallel with stair run, minimum 6-6"—6’- 8”

Width:

a. Main All stairs: Minimum 2'9" clear of handrail. 3’- 0” actual clear width

4l
o4

Treads: Minimumrun-9-4—<clearoftread-aboeve: Minimum tread 10 1/4".

Rise: 7-3/4" maximum for main stair; 8" maximumfor-basement-stair- All risers
to be the same height in any one story.

Winders: (Permitted in single family residences only)
Tread width 15" from covering end shall at least equal tread width on straight
stair run unless a width of tread at converging end is 6" or more.

Landings:

a. Width equal to that of stair.



b. Vertical rise: No stairway shall have a height rise of more than ten (10)
feet between landings.

7. Handrail: Install continuous handrail on at least one side of each run on all
stairways extending at grasp level on lower floor or landing to grasp level on
upper floor or landing without interruption by any means necessitating a change
of handhold while traversing said stairway run. The grasp level shall remain a
constant height paralleling the stair run and any side directional change shall not
be greater than thirty (30) degrees from the direction of the stair run viewed
vertically. Maximum width and depth of handrails shall be 2 %", unless shaped to
provide a secure handhold.

8. Exterior Stairs: Minimum width of stair 36" clear of handrails. Minimum run
clear of tread above 10 %", maximum rise 7 %”

SECTION R312 — GAURDS AND WINDOW FALL PROTECTION
R312.1.1. - REQUIRED GAURDRAILS

1. On open side walk surfaces, guard rails shall be provided when the vertical change in
elevation is > 24” vertically. Guard rail shall be min. 36 in height.

2. Exterior stairs to basements with a vertical drop > 24” shall require guard rails on
both sides of open stairs

Section R326 - SWIMMING POOLS, SPAS AND HOT TUBS

A.

General Requirements:

The current provisions of the International Residential Code 2012, National Electrical
Code 2011, International Swimming Pool and SPA Code 2012, International Fuel Gas
Code 2012, International Mechanical Code 2012 and International Energy Conservation
2015.

Registration of Contractors
Any contractor engaged in the performance of installing a swimming pool within the
Village of Tinley Park shall be currently registered with Village of Tinley Park.

Bond

All contractors performing electrical work within the Village of Tinley Park shall file
with the building department a surety bond in the amount of $20,000.00 secured by a
surety company which is acceptable to the Village of Tinley Park. Bond shall be payable



to the Village and, in effect, guarantee that the contractor will comply with all
requirements of applicable Village ordinances and codes.

Barrier

The provisions of this section shall control the design of barriers for residential
swimming pools, spa and hot tubs. The design controls are intended to provide protection
against potential drownings and near drownings by restricting access to swimming pools,
spas and hot tubs.

An outdoor Swimming pool, including an in-ground, above-ground or on-ground pool,
hot tub or spa shall be surrounded by a barrier which shall comply with the following:

The top of the barrier shall be at least 60 inches above grade measured on the side of the
barrier which faces away from the swimming pool, spa and hot tub. The maximum
vertical clearance between grade and the bottom of the barrier shall be 2 inches measured
on the side of the barrier which faces away from the swimming pool. Where the top of
the pool structure is above grade such as an above ground pool, the barrier may be at
ground level, such as the pool structure, or mounted on top of the structure. Where the
barrier is mounted on top of the pool structure the maximum vertical clearance between
the top of the pool structure and the bottom of the barrier shall be 4 inches.

Section R328 —- BRICK MAILBOXES & PEDESTALS

A.

Permits Required - A building permit and a signed Right-of-Way waiver is required prior
to any installation of a brick or decorative mail box.

Restrictions - Masonry mailbox structures shall not be more than 24 inches by 24 inches
nor shall they be more than five (5) feet in height and shall be erected as follows:

1. The front edge of the masonry structure shall not be set closer than fifteen
(15) inches from the rear edge of the curb or within two (2) feet of a
Buffalo Box, or within 10 feet of a fire hydrant.

2. The front of the mailbox itself shall not be closer than six (6) inches nor
further than fifteen inches from the rear edge of the curb.

NOTE: Masonry mailbox structures shall comply with United State Postal
Regulations; a copy is available in the Building Department. Incorrect
installation of masonry mailbox structures could result in the United States
Postal Service curtailing mail delivery.

3. There shall be a maximum of two pedestals per address only one of which
may contain a mailbox.



C.

Construction Requirements

1. Contact J.U.L.LE. prior to any excavation.
Install a concrete footing of no less than 42 inches deep and not less than
12 inches thick.

3. Foundations can either be cast-in-place concrete or concrete masonry
units.

4. The first two tiers of masonry shall be tied into the footing with no less

than 5/8-inch re-bar imbedded into the outer footing in concrete.

Section R329 — STORAGE /UTILITY SHEDS

A.

Permits Required — No storage/utility shed shall be erected within the Village of Tinley
Park without first obtaining a permit.

Number limited — No more than one (1) storage/utility shed shall be located on any
residential lot within the Village of Tinley Park.

Limitations — No storage/utility shed shall exceed two hundred (200) square feet in area,
nor exceed fifteen (15) feet in height. No overhead (roll up) doors larger than six (6) feet
in width or seven (7) feet in height are allowed on storage/utility sheds.

Placement — A shed should be placed ten feet from the primary structure, with a
minimum of five (5) feet from same. If the shed is less than ten feet from the primary
structure, it will require a minimum of 2 inch gypsum board (or equivalent) applied to
the interior walls and ceiling that are within this area. The shed must be a minimum of
five (5) feet from the side and rear lot lines.

Construction Requirements — Storage/utility sheds in excess of one hundred (100) square
feet in area shall be constructed on a concrete slab consisting of a minimum of four (4)
inches of concrete on a minimum four (4) inches of crushed stone base. Storage/utility
sheds shall be constructed in compliance with all other applicable provisions of Tinley
Park Comprehensive Building Codes.

SECTION 330 - DECKS, PORCHES, GAZEBOS & PERGOLAS

A.

Permits are required for all decks, porches, gazebos, trellises, pergolas and all accessory
structures.

All structures are required to be a minimum of five (5) feet from all property lines, and
off any utility easement.

Open air front porches cannot extend into the required yard more than 35% (percent) of
the minimum yard setback, not including stairways. In residential districts no porch or
portico shall extend more than fifteen (15) feet from the exterior wall. In no case shall
any porch or portico be placed within five (5) feet of any property line.



All concrete load bearing piers are to be a minimum of eight (8) inches diameter and
forty-two (42) inches below grade.

All design loads to conform to International Building Code 2021 and International
Residential Code 2021.

Guards are required when platforms extend more than 24 inches above grade.
Guards are to be 36 inches in height on residential properties and a minimum of 42 inches
in commercial properties.

Handrails must be provided for all stairways with 4 or more risers; handrails shall not be
less than 30 inches and no more than 38 inches vertically above the leading edge of
threads or above finished floor.

Balusters must be so that a 4-inch sphere may not pass through any opening. No ladder
style balusters allowed.

Section R507 —- EXTERIOR DECKS

R507.5.2.1 Deck beam connections:

1. Notching of 4 x 4 wood post shall be prohibited. Any connections shall be face
mounted and through bolted connections only.

R507.9.3 Lateral Connections required:

1. Any deck where the columns from foundation support to top of finished deck surface
exceeds 48” in height, lateral bracing in conformance to R507.9.2. shall be required.

Section R703 - EXTERIOR COVERINGS

R703.8.6. Weep holes shall be provided @ 24” o.c. and installed to require min. 2 per

masonry opening.

R703.8.4.1.1 Additional metal ties shall be provided around wall openings greater than

16” in either dimension. Metal ties around the perimeter of openings shall be spaced not more
than 24” on center and placed within 6” of the wall opening.

Section R802 - WOOD ROOF FRAMING

R802.8.1. Bridging

1. Ceiling joist exceeding 4 to 1 depth to thickness ration shall be laterally braced by
solid blocking, diagonal bridging or a cont. 1 x 3 wood strip located at top of ceiling
joist.



SECTION R403 FOOTINGS:

1.

General:

a. Design for proper distribution of superimposed loads.

b. Material: cast-in-place concrete.

C. Bear on solid, unfilled ground.

d. Unstable or questionable soils will require a soils report by a state licensed

testing agency.
Wall Footings:

a. Minimum dimensions for spread footings shall not be less than two times
the width of the foundation they are supporting.

Pier, Post and Column Footings:

a. Dwellings: Minimum area 6.25 square feet; thickness minimum 12
inches. (Not permitted under exterior walls).

Chimney Footings:

a. Dwellings: Minimum thickness, 12 inches; minimum projection each
side, 6 inches.

b. Pour integral with wall footing when chimney occurs in outside wall or
inside bearing wall.

6. Attached Garages and Breezeways: Provide spread footings same as for house, no

trench footings.

SECTION R401.3.1 FOOTING DRAIN TILE:

1.

Required outside or inside of basement and crawl space footings. Minimum
diameter is 4 inches.

Cover tile with 8 inches gravel, or crushed stone, (95 percent) passing 3/4-inch
mesh, less than 5 percent passing 3/8-inch mesh.

Connect drain tile to water-tight sump pit (cast iron, fiberglass, or approved
plastic). The sump pump shall discharge through piping approved by the Village
into the rear yard. Such sump pumps shall not be allowed to discharge into either



the front or side yards (minimum ten feet from any lot line) or otherwise in front
of the building, but need not be connected directly to a storm sewer.

L Concrete Foundation Walls Cast in Place.
1. General
a. Materials. See-Seetion303-A-1-See section R404.1.3.
b. Walls supporting frame construction: Extend concrete not less than 4
inches above adjoining outside finish grade.
c. Walls supporting masonry veneered wood frame:
Extend foundation so that wood portion of wall is not less than (four) 4
inches above outside finished grade.
2. Minimum foundation thickness
a. Not less than that of wall supported.
b. Supporting porch slabs, steps and one-story wood frame structures without
basement, minimum eight (8) inches.
c. Masonry veneered walls, minimum nine (9) inches.
d. Eight inches thick solid masonry walls minimum ten (10) inches.
e. Slabs on ground used to support interior bearing walls or  partitions:

Thicken to at least ten (10) inches for a width of twenty ~ (20) inches.

3. Girder pockets. Provide four (4) inch end bearing on main wall for girder. Form
pocket for wood girder one (1) inch wider than girder.

4. Sill anchor bolts to be installed.
a. Diameter, Y2-inch minimum, bent or hooked.
b. Minimum length, ten (10) inches.
C. Provide washer under nuts on bolts.
d. Refer to Section 403.1.6. of the IRC for additional requirements.
5. Anchorage for intersecting walls and slabs. Provide dowel bar anchorage for

porch and terrace slabs, concrete or masonry steps and area walls, which adjoin
foundation walls. For basement-less portions and attached garages embed four %%-



inch round hooked bars four (4) feet long in main wall, two near top and two near
bottoms of attached wall.

6. Chimney foundations: Start at level of lowest adjacent foundation wall footings.
Exception: Projects that are designed by a Licensed Structural Engineer.

7. Damp proofing and waterproofing. See Section R406 of the International
Residential Code 20422021

SECTION R506.1 - CONCRETE FLOOR ON GROUND:
No floor slab to be placed in water or on a soft wet sub-grade.
SECTION R506.1.1 - GENERAL CONSTRUCTION:
a. Fill under slabs: Gravel, sand, screenings, or crushed rock, minimum
thickness 4 inches. Earth under fill should be thoroughly leveled and free

from vegetative matter, thoroughly tamped.

b. Reinforcing: When required, minimum weight 40 lbs. per 100 square feet.
Wire mesh, fiber mesh or rebar are acceptable materials.

c. Bottom of slab: Not lower than top of footing. Provide at least four (4)
inches bearing on footing.

2. Cement floor finish:
a. Finish basement slab with steel trowel.
b. Integral finish on concrete slab.
3. Slabs on ground used as a base for floors or as a finish floor in habitable rooms.
a. Minimum thickness, four (4) inches
b. Provide membrane waterproofing directly under slab, at least 6—mil

polyethylene film, lapped 124 inches and also sealed and taped.

C. Perimeter insulation shall comply with the International Energy
Conservation Code 2012.

4. Basement floor slabs: Minimum thickness, four (4) inches.
5. Garage floor slabs: See Section 308.

SECTION 306 R903.4 - GUFTERS-&DOWNSPOUTS ROOF DRAINAGE:



When a building is provided with a basement, or crawl space, gutters and downspouts must be
installed.

A. Materials:

1. Copper, Galvanized, Aluminum and Vinyl to be installed per manufacturers
specifications.
2 Downspout terminations shall be directed away from the structure and a

minimum of five feet from any lot line.
B. Roof water Disposal:

Provide outlet acceptable to Building Official.

Section M1602 — RETURN AIR

Section M1602.2 Return air openings
8. Return shall be taken from all sleeping rooms through ducted openings meeting the
supply air flow rate. Return grilles shall be installed in closets.

9. Return ducts installed in wall stud spaces shall be sheet metal construction with all
seams sealed per M1601.4.1







/4 ineh
D7 IIITTT

MBI R e =




CHAPTER III - INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE (1.B.C.)

SECTION 312.2 - TRASH ENCLOSURES

A.

on

Where required: Trash and recycling enclosures shall be provided at all new buildings
except single family dwelling units. If owner chooses to have a dumpster instead of
garbage cans this section of the ordinance must be followed. The enclosed area shall be
screened on three (3) sides by a wall from view from public streets and any abutting
properties. There shall not be any types of enclosures or container in the front yard of
any building or use including single family attached and detached units.

Construction Materials: Any wall around a dumpster or trash handling area shall be
constructed in a durable fashion of brick, stone, or other masonry materials with a gate
opening which will accommodate the pickup of the dumpster by the garbage company.
The wall shall be constructed of the same building material and in the same architectural
style as the principal structure. Gate material must be wood or vinyl fencing material.
No chain link fencing is allowed.

Enclosure Height: Any enclosure constructed shall have a height not greater than 6 feet.
Foundation: Any enclosure constructed shall have a concrete foundation capable of
supporting the walls and any other live and dead loads anticipated.

Size of Trash Enclosure. The area of a trash enclosure for a site or business shall be sized
using dimensions, which relate to the size and use of the principal building and as
approved by the building official.




B. Thermal Insulation and Air Infiltration

I. Refer to the 2042 2021 edition of the ICC International Energy Conservation

Code.

SECTION 503- ALLOWABLE HEIGHT AND BUILDING AREAS

TABLE 301
ALLOWABLE HEIGHT AND BUILDING AREAS *#
Height limitations shown as stories and feet-above grade plane.
Area limitations as determined by the definition of “Area, building,” per story
TYPE OF CONSTRUCTION
Type 1 Type 11 Type 111 Type Type V
v
A B A B A B HT A B
HGT (ft)
Group |[HGT(S) UL 160 65 55 65 55 65 50 40
S UL 5 3 2 3 2 3 2 1
A-1
A UL UL | 15,500 | 8,500 | 14,000 | 8,500 | 15,000 | 11,500 | 5,500
S UL 11 3 2 3 2 3 2 1
A-2
A UL UL 15,500 | 9,500 | 14,000 | 9,500 | 15,000 | 11,500 | 6,000
S UL 11 3 2 3 2 3 2 1
A-3
A UL UL | 15,500 | 9,500 | 14,000 | 9,500 | 15,000 | 11,500 | 6,000




UL 11 3 2 3 2 3 2 1
A-4
UL UL 15,500 | 9,500 | 14,000 | 9,500 | 15,000 | 11,500 | 6,000
UL UL UL UL UL UL UL UL UL
A-5
UL UL UL UL UL UL UL UL UL
UL 11 5 3 5 3 5 3 2
B
UL UL 37,500 | 23,000 | 28,500 | 19,000 | 36,000 | 18,000 | 9,000
UL 5 3 2 3 2 3 1 1
E
UL UL 26,500 | 14,500 | 23,500 | 14,500 | 25,500 | 18,500 | 9,500
TYPE OF CONSTRUCTION
Typel Type 11 Type 111 Type Type V
v
A B A B A B HT A B
UL 11 4 2 3 2 4 2 1
F-1 UL UL 25,000 | 15,500 | 19,000 | 12,000 | 33,500 | 14,000 | 8,500
UL 11 5 3 4 3 5 3 2
F-2
UL UL 37,500 | 23,000 | 28,500 | 18,000 | 50,500 | 21,000 | 13,000
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 NP
H-1
21,000 | 16,500 | 11,000 | 7,000 | 9,500 | 7,000 | 10,500 | 7,500 NP
UL 3 2 1 2 1 2 1 1
H-2
21,000 | 16,500 | 11,000 | 7,000 | 9,500 | 7,000 | 10,500 | 7,500 | 3,000
UL 6 4 2 4 2 4 2 1
H-3
UL | 60,000 | 26,500 | 14,000 | 17,500 | 13,000 | 25,500 | 10,000 | 5,000
UL 7 5 3 5 3 5 3 2
H-4
UL UL 37,500 | 17,500 | 28,500 | 17,500 | 36,000 | 18,000 | 6,500
4 4 3 3 3 3 3 3 2
H-5
UL UL 37,500 | 23,000 | 28,500 | 19,000 | 36,000 | 18,000 | 9,000




UL 9 4 3 4 3 4 3 2
I-1
UL 55,000 | 19,000 | 10,000 | 16,500 | 10,000 | 18,000 | 10,500 | 4,500
UL 4 2 1 1 NP 1 1 NP
I-2
UL UL | 15,000 | 11,000 | 12,000 | NP | 12,000 | 9,500 | NP
UL 4 2 1 2 1 2 2 1
I-3
UL UL 15,000 | 10,000 | 10,500 | 7,500 | 12,000 | 7,500 5,000
14 UL 5 3 2 3 2 3 1 1
UL | 60,500 | 26,500 | 13,000 | 23,500 | 13,000 | 25,500 | 18,500 | 9,000
TYPE OF CONSTRUCTION
Type 1 Type 11 Type 111 Type Type V
v
A B A B A B HT A B
UL 11 4 4 4 2 4 3 1
M
UL UL 21,500 | 12,500 | 18,500 | 12,500 | 20,500 | 14,000 | 9,000
UL 11 4 4 4 4 3
R-1 NP NP
UL UL | 24,000 | 16,000 | 24,000 20,500 | 12,000
UL 11 4 4
R-2 NP NP NP NP NP
UL UL 24,000 24,000
UL 11 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
R-3
UL UL UL UL UL UL UL UL UL
UL 11 4 4 4 4 4 3 2
R4
UL UL 24,000 | 16,000 | 24,000 | 16,000 | 20,500 | 12,000 | 7,000
UL 11 4 2 3 2 4 3 1
S-1
UL 48,000 | 26,000 | 17,500 | 26,000 | 17,500 | 25,500 | 14,000 | 9,000
UL 11 5 3 4 3 5 4 2
S-2°
UL | 79,000 | 39,000 | 26,000 | 39,000 | 26,000 | 38,500 | 21,000 | 13,500




S UL 5 4 2 3 2 4 2 1

A UL | 35,500 | 19,000 | 8,500 | 14,000 | 8,500 | 18,000 | 9,000 | 5,500

UL = Unlimited, NP = Not permitted.
a. See the following IBC (2012) sections for general exceptions to Table 503:

1. Section 504.2. (IBC), Allowable height increase due to automatic sprinkler system installation.
2. Section 506.2(IBC), Allowable area increase due to street frontage.
3. Section 506.3(IBC), Allowable area increase due to automatic sprinkler system installation.
4. Section 507(IBC), Unlimited area buildings
b. This table does not apply to buildings designed in accordance with the International Residential Code.

SECTION 707 — FIRE BARRIERS

A Fire Wals-& Partitions Barriers: Provide a minimum two (2) hour fire rated masonry wall
assembly between dwelling/sleeping units, and adjacent public or service areas of R-2
occupancies (Section 707.3 #1, 2012 ICC International Building Code). No openings are
permitted between dwelling/sleeping units. Each wall assembly shall have an Underwriter
Laboratories, Inc. (UL) Design Number listed in the most recent UL Fire Resistance Directory
and meet the continuity requirements of Section 707 of this code. A detail of each fire rated wall
assembly shall be provided on the permit drawings; the UL Design Number must be indicated on
the detail. The automatic sprinkler system must be designed and installed in accordance with
Section 903.3.1.1 or 903.3.1.2 of the 2012 ICC International Building Code or as amended by
Chapter IV of this Code. A Group R-2 use having a maximum of 12 living units and three
stories or less shall only require a one-hour fire separation when an automatic sprinkler system
complying with Section 903.3.1.1 of the 2021 International Building Code and as amended in
Chapter IV is provided.

In lieu of constructing a masonry wall assembly, the following options may be used:

Option 1 - Provide a minimum two (2) hour fire rated shaft wall assembly. A
current International Code Council (ICC) Evaluation Report must be submitted
along with the permit drawings.

Option 2 - Provide a minimum two (2) hour fire rated triple drywall assembly.
Provide a minimum two (2) hour fire rated wall assembly without openings for
the center portion of the triple drywall assembly. The center portion of the triple
drywall assembly shall have a UL Design Number listed in the most recent UL
Fire Resistance Directory. A detail of each triple drywall assembly shall be
provided on the permit drawings; the UL Design Number of the center portion of
the assembly must be indicated on the detail. The outer portions of the triple
drywall assembly shall have metal stud framing spaced a maximum of 24 inches
apart and gypsum board having a minimum thickness of 1/2-inch.



Option 3 - Provide a minimum two (2) hour fire rated autoclaved aerated concrete
wall assembly. A current ICC Evaluation Report shall be submitted along with
the permit drawings.

If any of the above three options to masonry wall assemblies are used, the following
requirements apply:

The automatic sprinkler system shall be designed and installed in accordance with
Section 903.3.1.1 of the 2021 ICC International Building Code and Section 9.7.1
of the 2003 edition of NFPA 101. Sections 8.15.1.2, 8.15.8.1.1 & 8.15.8.2 of the
2013 edition of NFPA 13 shall not apply.

Special inspections shall be provided in accordance with Chapter 17 of the 2012
ICC International Building Code and as required by any ICC Evaluation Report.
A copy of each special inspection report shall be submitted to the Building
Department.

1.

Fire walls and party walls shall comply with Section 706 of the 2021 ICC
International Building Code. Fire walls and party walls shall have
sufficient structural stability under fire conditions to allow collapse of
construction on either side of the wall without collapse of the wall.

Fire partitions shall comply with Section 708 of the 2012 ICC
International Building Code.

Fire walls, party walls, tenant demising walls, fire barriers and fire
partitions shall be constructed of approved, noncombustible
materials.

All other uses not indicated above shall be provided with a one (1)
hour minimum tenant-separation—fire barrier extending full height
from floor to underside of roof or floor structure above

SECTION 711 — FLOOR & ROOF ASSEMBLIES

4- 1.

5- 2.

Provide a minimum two (2) hour fire rated floor/ceiling assembly between
dwelling/sleeping units for Group R-2 occupancies, between
dwelling/sleeping units and other uses or between dwelling/sleeping units
and adjacent public or service areas. Each floor/ceiling assembly shall
have a UL Design Number listed in the most recent UL Fire Resistance
Directory. A detail of each fire rated floor/ceiling assembly shall be
provided on the permit drawings; the UL Design Number must be
indicated on the detail.

Sound transmission through vertical or horizontal separations between
dwelling/sleeping units, between dwelling/sleeping units and other uses or



6-3.

7 4.

between dwelling/sleeping units and adjacent public or service areas shall
comply with Section 1207 of the 2012 ICC International Building Code.
The Sound Transmission Class (STC) shall be not less than 50 for air-
borne noise when tested in accordance with ASTM E 90. The Impact
Insulation Class (IIC) shall be not less than 50 when tested in accordance
with ASTM E 492. All openings (e.g., electrical outlets) shall be boxed or
enclosed, with sound deadening approved material so that the completed
assembly will not transmit more sound than transmitted by a STC/IIC
rating of 50.

Each fire rated wall shall be effectively and permanently identified with

signs or stenciling. Such identification shall:
d. Be located in accessible concealed floor, floor/ceiling or attic
spaces;

e. Be repeated at intervals not exceeding 30 feet measured
horizontally along the wall; and

f. Include lettering not less than 1/2 inch in height, incorporating the
suggested wording: "FIRE RATED ASSEMBLY - PROTECT
ALL OPENINGS" or other approved wording.

When allowed, all through penetrations of fire—rated—walls—and
floor/ceiling assemblies shall comply with Section 712 of the 2012 ICC
International Building Code and Section 8.3.5 of the 2003 edition of
NFPA 101.

8- S.

All other uses not indicated above in multi-story buildings to have a one
(1) hour fire resistance rated tenant floor separation assembly unless
regulated by table 601 “Fire resistance rating requirements for
building elements (hours)

SECTION 302-1803— GEOTECHINICAL INVESTIGATIONS:

A. Bearing Value of Soils

1.

Where required by either the Building Official or Inspector, all applications for
permits for the construction of new buildings, or structures, shall be accompanied
by a statement describing the soil in the ultimate bearing strata, including
sufficient records and data to establish its character, nature, and load-bearing
capacity. Such records shall be certified by a qualified soils mechanics engineer,
who is a professional or structural engineer and is licensed by the State of Illinois
as such.



In the absence of satisfactory data, the owner shall make borings, test pits, or
other soil investigations at such locations, and to sufficient depths, of the bearing
materials to the satisfaction of the Building Official.

All testing shall be done under the supervision of a registered structural or
professional engineer. Copies of all logs, diagrams, records of sample analysis,
and engineering recommendations shall be submitted to the Building Department.

Mud, organic silt, or unprepared fill shall be assumed to have no presumptive
bearing capacity unless approved by test.

B. Design of Footings, Piles, Caissons, Grade Beams, and Other Supports

1.

3.

These shall be designed to support all tributary dead and live loads to be imposed,
on the specific bearing available.

All special designs, requiring reinforcement of spread footings, piles, caissons,
grade beams or other unusual treatment shall be submitted to the building
department with all drawings, calculations, and data for approval, prior to the start
of construction.

Refer to Section Chapter II, Section 200. G. “Crawl Spaces”.

SECTHON-303 SECTION 1804 - EXCAVATION, GRADING & FILL

SECTION 1804.4.1. SITE GRADING:

1.

The finished grade, or elevation heights, shall be determined by the Village
Engineer, in accordance with established grade plans. When required by the
Building Official, the finished grade at building and at each corner of the property
shall be indicated on drawings submitted with application for permit. Courses, or
means of disposal, of all storm water shall also be indicated on above drawings.

All grade stakes and grade elevations shall be established by a registered surveyor
or professional engineer.

Upon completion of finish grading the Village Engineer shall field check the
grades, and certify the propriety of same to the building department. No
Certificate of Occupancy will be issued by the Building Department unless such
certification is received, unless a delay is granted (not to exceed six months) by
the Building Official, because of weather conditions. A minimum refundable
deposit of $500 must be provided when a weather delay is granted.

The permit applicant shall pay all costs for engineering for setting and checking
of grades.



Certificate of Occupancy shall indicate owner's responsibility for installation, and
maintenance of finish grades and landscaping in accordance with subdivision
regulations.

Grading or Drainage or both, shall be performed so that water will drain away
from the building on all sides and off the lot in a manner which will provide
reasonable freedom from erosion and pocketed surface water. Construction such
as walks, driveways and retaining walls shall be installed so that they will not
interfere with drainage. All sidewalks, driveways, patios and other flat work shall
have the top of the finished surface so that it will not create a drainage problem.

After rough grading to a level not less than four (4) inches minimum below

anticipated finish grade, the builder, or developer, shall bring the levels of the
property (excluding areas covered by building, garage, walks, patios or driveways) up
to the established finish grade levels with black earth and/or topsoil. Such soil shall
be not less than four inches deep, and shall be suitable for planting lawns by seed or
sod.

SECTION 1804.4.2 - SEEDING

The following standards are basic requirements for all developed lots:

1.

The property owner of each and every developed lot or parcel shall sod or seed all
areas of the property (including all adjacent public right-of-ways) not improved
by buildings, structures, parking or access-ways.

and side yards of lots developed shall be sodded and rear yards shall be
seeded or hydroseeded within 150 days of issuance of a conditional
occupancy when said occupancy certificate is issued December 1°¢ or later of
the calendar year. When Conditional Certificate of Occupancy is issued
between May 1%t up to December 1%, fronts and side yards shall be sodded
and the rear yard seeded within 60 days of Conditional Certificate of
Occupancy issuance.

SECTION 1804.4.3 - BACKFILLING



Material used shall be clean and free from material subject to decay, wood scraps,
large boulders, large pieces of concrete or stone, frozen clumps, or other
deleterious substances.

No backfill shall be placed against concrete foundation walls before
waterproofing has been applied.

Backfill shall be placed carefully against walls and shall be well compacted.
When backfilling before the first-floor construction is in place, care shall be
exercised in operation of heavy equipment near wall. Brace wall if necessary.

Protect all sewers, water lines and other underground work when placing backfill,
or when grading.

SECTION 1807.1- FOUNDATION WALLS:

1.

Extend bottom of footing to undisturbed, inorganic earth or place footings on a
laboratory controlled engineered fill as recommended and certified by an
approved independent testing laboratory to the Building Official.

Bottom of footing. Not less than 3'6" below finished grade, except where placed
on solid rock.

Footing shall be protected against freezing. No concrete shall be placed on frozen
ground.

SECTION 1807.1.1. - CRAWL SPACES

1.

3.

Ground level at least 24 inches below bottom of floor joists and girders. The
ground under the dwelling shall be approximately level.

Remove all debris, sod, tree stumps and other organic matter within area occupied
by dwelling.

Refer to Section Chapter II, Section 200. G. “Crawl Spaces”.

SECHON304 - SECTION 1901 - CONCRETE WORK:

A.

General:

1.

Materials

a. Cement: for concrete shall comply with approved standards (ACI318).



b. Aggregates: shall be sized and graded in accordance with approved
standards.

1. Sand: clean, sharp and hard, free from deleterious materials, grade
according to intended use.

2. Coarse aggregate (crushed stone or gravel):
Hard, strong, crystalline rock, clean and free from shale or other
soft materials.

3 Lightweight aggregate for structural concrete.
c. Water shall be clean and potable.
d. Reinforcing steel shall conform to approved standards (ACI 318).

Water content, including moisture in the aggregate, shall not exceed 7 gallons of
water per bag of cement (except as noted).

Maximum slump: six-inches (except as noted).

Calcium chloride may be used as an accelerator, but shall not exceed 2 1bs. per
bag of cement, and shall be introduced in solution as part of the mixing water.

All concrete shall be air-entrained, 6% + 1 %. Air entraining admixtures shall
conform to approved standards.

Exterior flatwork is not permitted between December 1% and March 31, unless
placed in accordance with ACI 306 and ACI 318. Exterior flatwork is not
permitted in hot weather unless placed in accordance with ACI 305. Details must
be submitted to the Building Department.

SECTION 1904.1.1 - DURABILITY REQUIREMENTS:

A. Concrete mixes

1. Job Mix shall comply with the International Residential Code 2012 2021 and ACI
318.

2. Commercial Ready-Mix.
a. Minimum Portland cement content: 6 bags/cubic yard and a minimum

specified compressive strength of concrete 3,000 psi.

b. Mixing period shall not extend beyond 1 2 hours per batch.

3. Exposed Concrete (driveways, sidewalks, curbs and gutters, patios, stoops, etc.)



c.B.

b- C.

E-D.

E-E.

a. Minimum Portland cement content: 6 bags/cubic yard, for 3/4 inch to 1-
inch maximum size aggregate and a minimum specified compressive
strength of concrete, 3,500 psi.

b. Maximum slump must be in accordance with ACI 318.

c. Maximum water content, including moisture in the aggregate:
6 gallons per bag of cement.

4. Temperature: Concrete shall not be placed when temperature is below plus 40
degrees F., or when temperature forecast indicates a drop to plus 20 degrees F.
during 24-hour period following placement, unless ACI 318 and ACI 306 is

strictly followed.
Forms:
1. Double forms required for all basement concrete foundation walls.
2 Side forms required for footings.

3. Build tight, straight, plumb, and brace rigidly.

Placing:
1. Place continuously unless otherwise allowed by Building Official.
2. All walls shall be poured to full height, no horizontal joints permitted. When

necessary, provide vertical joints. All vertical joints shall be keyed and caulked
from outside.

3. Spade and rod thoroughly.
Curing and Protection: See ACI 318
Loading:

Allow sufficient time for strength of concrete to develop before subjecting to loads or
traffic.

. Footing Drain Tile:

1. Required outside or inside of basement and crawl space footings. Minimum
diameter is 4 inches.



2. Cover tile with 8 inches gravel, or crushed stone, (95 percent) passing 3/4-inch
mesh, less than 5 percent passing 3/8-inch mesh.

3. Connect drain tile to water-tight sump pit (cast iron, fiberglass, or approved
plastic). The sump pump shall discharge through piping approved by the Village
into the rear yard. Such sump pumps shall not be allowed to discharge into either
the front or side yards (minimum ten feet from any lot line) or otherwise in front
of the building, but need not be connected directly to a storm sewer.

L H. Concrete Foundation Walls Cast in Place.
1. General
a. Materials. See Section 303-A-1+.1901A.1.

b. Walls supporting frame construction: Extend concrete not less than 4
inches above adjoining outside finish grade.

c. Walls supporting masonry veneered wood frame:
Extend foundation so that wood portion of wall is not less than (four) 4
inches above outside finished grade.

2. Minimum foundation thickness
a. Not less than that of wall supported.
b. Supporting porch slabs, steps and one-story wood frame structures without

basement, minimum eight (8) inches.

c. Masonry veneered walls, minimum nine (9) inches.
d. Eight inches thick solid masonry walls minimum ten (10) inches.
e. Slabs on ground used to support interior bearing walls or  partitions:

Thicken to at least ten (10) inches for a width of twenty ~ (20) inches.

3. Girder pockets. Provide four (4) inch end bearing on main wall for girder. Form
pocket for wood girder one (1) inch wider than girder.

4, Sill anchor bolts to be installed.
a. Diameter, Y2-inch minimum, bent or hooked.
b. Minimum length, ten (10) inches.

c. Provide washer under nuts on bolts.



5. Anchorage for intersecting walls and slabs. Provide dowel bar anchorage for
porch and terrace slabs, concrete or masonry steps and area walls, which adjoin
foundation walls. For basement-less portions and attached garages embed four %%-
inch round hooked bars four (4) feet long in main wall, two near top and two near
bottoms of attached wall.

6. Chimney foundations: Start at level of lowest adjacent foundation wall footings.
Exception: Projects that are designed by a Licensed Structural Engineer.

7. Damp proofing and waterproofing. See Section R406 of the International
Residential Code 2012.

Section 1907.1.1 - MINIMUM SLAB PROVISIONS
No floor slab to be placed in water or on a soft wet sub-grade.
1. Construction:
a. Fill under slabs: Gravel, sand, screenings, or crushed rock, minimum
thickness 4 inches. Earth under fill should be thoroughly leveled and free

from vegetative matter, thoroughly tamped.

b. Reinforcing: When required, minimum weight 40 lbs. per 100 square feet.
Wire mesh, fiber mesh or rebar are acceptable materials.

c. Bottom of slab: Not lower than top of footing. Provide at least four (4)
inches bearing on footing.

2. Cement floor finish:
a. Finish basement slab with steel trowel.
b. Integral finish on concrete slab.
3. Slabs on ground used as a base for floors or as a finish floor in habitable rooms.
a. Minimum thickness, four (4) inches
b. Provide membrane waterproofing directly under slab, at least 6—mil

polyethylene film, lapped 124 inches and also sealed and taped.

C. Perimeter insulation shall comply with the International Energy
Conservation Code 2012.



4.

5.

Basement floor slabs: Minimum thickness, four (4) inches.

Garage floor slabs: See Section 308.

K. Exterior Concrete Flat Work

1.

Public sidewalks, curbs, gutters and driveways (aprons), on Public Property, shall
comply with Ordinances regulating Public Improvements within the Village of
Tinley Park.

Private walks, patios and porch slabs.

a.

b.

All vegetative matter and black dirt shall be removed.

Install 4" thick base of compacted gravel, crushed stone, sand or limestone
or limestone screenings fill.

Wire mesh, fiber-mesh or rebar reinforcing required in driveway and
garage floors.

Concrete shall be 6 bag mix, and a minimum of 3,500 psi air entrained
cement. Four (4) inches is the minimum thickness for private walks, patios
and porch slabs.

Pre-formed expansion strips shall be installed at all joints between slabs
and vertical surfaces, i.e.: walls, piers, concrete steps. Also install
expansion strip in each 50 lineal feet of walk or drive and at intersections
with other walks and slabs.

Finishing: Walks and steps shall be lightly troweled or broom finished.
Score at 5'-0" maximum intervals and provide finished edges.

Sealant: All sidewalks, patios, curbs, gutters and driveways shall be cured
with a liquid curing compound sprayed or not later than 24 hours after
pouring of concrete unless sealant is premixed into the product.

Driveways: All driveways and driveway aprons are required to be five (5)
inches in thickness, and meet all requirements of the subdivision
regulations.

Public Sidewalks: All public sidewalks are to be five (5) inches in
thickness, except for the sidewalks used as the driveway area, must be
seven (7) inches in thickness.



] Existing Driveways and Sidewalks: All existing driveways, sidewalks

and concrete replacements must meet the current codes when being
replaced.

k. Exterior concrete flat work tickets must be submitted to the Building
Department upon completion of the work and prior to approval.

Repair of Cracks in Foundation Walls:

1.

Any crack in a foundation wall which permits passage of water into building shall be
cut out, on inside of wall, not less than one inch wide and one inch deep. Clean out
all loose material and fill cuts flush with epoxy cement grout, or approved equal.

2. Concrete stabilization/underpinning — A building permit is required.

SECTION 1907.1.2. - DRIVEWAYS, APRONS & PARKING AREAS:

A.

General

1.

5.

Location of driveways

Driveways shall be located a minimum of one (1) foot from a common private
property line.

Drainage of driveway

Driveways shall not be sloped or pitched so as to cause surface water to drain
onto neighboring property.

Aprons or approaches:

All driveway construction on or over public property, i.e. parkways, between curb
or edge of street and the property line, shall be paved with concrete or asphalt
unless approved otherwise.

Driveways shall have a minimum width of ten feet, unless otherwise approved by
the Building Official. Driveway can be no greater than thirty (30) foot in the
apron at its intersection with the Village Right of Way.

Inspections are required upon completion of the stone base material.

Concrete

The concrete work materials, "construction, expansion joints, and sealing” shall comply
with Section 303 K. “Exterior Concrete Flat Work".



Asphalt Driveways

1.

5.

All materials, size of aggregates, compaction, and installation of same shall
comply with the current edition of "Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge
Construction" issued by the Illinois Department of Transportation (IDOT).

All black dirt, organic matter and loose fill shall be removed.

A six-inch (6") base of compacted crushed stone shall be installed.

Over stone base install not less than a three inch (3) top course of compacted
hot-mix asphalt material.

Roll with heavy machine roller to a smooth, dense surface.

Parking Lots, including Multi-Family Parking Lots

1.

All parking areas which are required to be provided by the Village ordinances

shall be paved with concrete or asphalt paving.

2.

All materials, size of aggregates, compaction, and installation of same shall
comply with the current edition of "Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge
Construction" issued by the Illinois Department of Transportation (IDOT) or in
accordance with the Engineer of Record’s requirements.

All parking areas shall be pitched so as to drain all surface water. Install catch
basins with heavy duty cat iron gratings and frames and connect same with clay
tile or cement pipes to storm drainage system or to ditches if no storm drainage
system is available.

Parking spaces shall comply with the Village Zoning Ordinance and the current
edition of the Illinois Accessibility Code, any parking lot being repaved, seal
coated or re-striped shall comply with the current edition of the Illinois
Accessibility Code.

When application for permit is made, drawings shall be submitted showing all
areas to be paved, grade elevations, drains, catch basins, inverts of drain lines and
all information required to determine run-off of storm water. All drain lines and
basins (and detention when applicable) shall comply with the requirements of the
Metropolitan Water Reclamation District of Greater Chicago.

Drainage of parking lots shall not spill onto adjacent property.



SECTION 2101.1 - MASONRY

A. Fireplaces: - See Chapter 21 of the International Residential Building Codes 2021.
Specifically, Section 2111.1 — 2111.14.6




























SECTION 3001.1 - ELEVATORS:

A. Elevators in Multi-Story Housing Units:

All Multi-Story Housing Units with three (3) stories or more, constructed after September
5, 2001, shall be required to have at least one accessible elevator which provides access
to each floor, story, and /or level where a dwelling unit is located and to all common
areas where residents and/or members of the public are free to go.

SECTION 3108 - TELECOMMUNICATION AND BROADCASTING TOWERS

A. Towers shall be constructed of corrosion resistant non-combustible material. See Tinley
Park Zoning Ordinance for additional requirements



CHAPTER 1V - PLUMBING, SEWERS,
WATER DISTRIBUTION AND RADON

SECTION 460 500 - GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

A.

B.

General

The current provisions of the most recent edition of the Illinois Plumbing Code (current
edition 2014) have been adopted by the Village of Tinley Park and apply to all
installations as though fully written and set forth herein, except as specifically noted
otherwise in this code.

Other Regulations

1. No provisions of this code are intended or shall be construed to negate or over-
rule the applicable regulations of the Metropolitan Water Reclamation District of
Greater Chicago.

Internal Flood Control

1. It shall be unlawful to construct any basement for any structure of any kind within
the Village of Tinley Park unless there is provided internal flood control and
protection in the nature of that commonly known as overhead sewers, together
with such ejector pump or other device as may be necessary to make such
overhead sewers operational. No permit shall be issued for the construction of
any building containing a basement unless the plans provide for the protection as
set forth in this paragraph.

2. Ejector basins shall have gas-tight covers and shall be vented to outside.
Excavations

It shall be unlawful to make any opening, excavation in, or tunnel any public street, alley,
sidewalk, parkway, or other public place in the Village, without having first secured a
permit therefore. Applications for such permits shall be made to the Village Clerk, and
shall specify the intended location and purpose of the excavation. The Village Clerk
shall immediately notify the Director of Public Works of the application for said permit.

In each case the applicant shall agree to pay all of the cost of restoring such street, alley,
sidewalk, parkway or other public place and the surface thereof to the condition that
existed before the opening excavation or tunnel was made. No such permit shall be
issued until the applicant has deposited with the Director of Public Works the sum of
Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00) for each such opening, excavation or tunnel for



residential roads or streets (Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) for major Village roads
or streets, which such deposit shall be deposited by the applicant used by the Village for
the purpose of paying the cost of restoring such street, alley, sidewalk, parkway or other
public place and the surface thereof to the condition that existed before the opening,
excavation or tunnel, was made, provided that the applicant shall, in each case, do all
necessary backfilling or cause the same to be done. All backfilling shall be done with
care and caution and only bank or lake sand shall be used as such backfill. After the
backfilling has been properly done, any materials excavated, or not used, shall be
removed from the location of said excavation to such streets, alley, sidewalk, parkway or
other public place, the Village may use its own employees and equipment and make
reasonable charges therefore, of it may engage the services of other persons and
equipment and charge the cost thereof to the applicant. Any balance of said deposit
remaining after the deduction of such charges of costs shall be returned to the applicant.
In case said applicant shall restore said street to its original condition said applicant shall
be entitled to the return of the deposit after one year from the date of application or
restoration, whichever is later; otherwise said deposit may be used as specified herein.

No such permit shall be issued unless the applicant has on file with the Village and in full
force and effect, a bond in the amount of Twenty Thousand Dollars ($20,000.00) with
surety to be approved by the Village, conditioned to indemnify the Village against any
and all loss or liability resulting from the making of such opening, excavations, or tunnel.

SECTION 401 - CODE MODIFICATIONS & ADDITIONS

A.

Footing Drains required in all structures having a basement and/or crawl space. See
Section 304. H of this code.

Footing drains shall be connected to sump pumps, and discharge may be tied into storm
sewers, if approval is obtained from the Director of Public Works or drainage ditches.
No footing drains, or drainage tile, shall be connected to any sanitary sewer. Plastic pipe
materials are permitted.

Sump pump basins shall have gas tight covers per Radon Act 099-0953.

Downspouts and Window Well Drains

1. All downspouts or roof drains shall discharge on to the ground or may be tied into
storm sewers (if approval is obtained from the Director of Public Works) or drainage
ditches. No downspouts or roof drains shall be connected to a sanitary sewer.
Downspouts or roof drains which discharge on to the ground shall be arranged so as
to be at least five (5) feet from any property line and shall not discharge onto
adjoining property.

2. Window vertical well drains shall be minimum Schedule 40 PVC.

Floor Drains



Floor drains in basements shall be connected to ejector pumps and shall discharge to the
sanitary sewer.

Areaway Drains

Drains are required in all window wells and in all exposed exterior stairwells. They shall
be connected to the sump pump and shall be discharged to a storm sewer or drainage
ditch.

Sump Pumps and Ejector Pumps

Sump pumps installed to receive and discharge ground waters, or other storm waters,
shall be connected to the storm sewer or discharged into the rear yard at least ten (10) feet
from all property lines. Ejector pumps installed to receive and discharge floor drain flow,
or other sanitary sewage shall be connected to the sanitary sewer. A pump shall be used
for one function only, either the discharge of storm water or the discharge of sanitary
sewage.

Any connection made between a building’s drainage and sewer systems shall be a no-
shear type fitting or manufacturer’s fittings-

Water Meters

1. Meters shall be purchased from the Village of Tinley Park Public Works
Department and installation shall be inspected by same.

2. Meters shall be installed by a licensed Plumbing Contractor. Installations shall
comply with Public Works Department regulations.

3. In all buildings, a conduit must be provided through the exterior wall for the
positioning and installation of outside water meters.

Water Service and Distribution

1. No water service to a building shall be provided by less than a one (1) inch diameter
pipe.

2. Minimum size of curb valve (B-box) shall be 1-1/2 inches.

Equipment

1. Hose bibbs and vacuum breakers. All hose bibbs must have a vacuum breaker.
Hose bibbs in or protruding from residences may have the vacuum breaker

attached to the hose bibb or the vacuum breaker may be located on the house side
of the water meter, between the meter and a shut off valve



Radon Control

A Radon Control System shall be provided in accordance with the State of Illinois Public
Act 097-0953 for new residential structures having four or less dwelling units, with a
basement.

1. Radon Control Systems shall also comply with Appendix F of the 2012 edition of the
ICC International Residential Code.

2. Passive Radon Control Systems shall be installed by a licensed Plumbing contractor.
Registration and Bond

All contractors performing plumbing work within the boundaries of the Village of Tinley
Park must have a valid Plumbing 055 State of Illinois license, Prior to the issuance of a
building permit, the contractor shall register with the Building Department and provide a
current copy of their license.

All contractors laying sewer tile or performing sewer work shall be licensed by the
Village of Tinley Park to perform such work.

All sewer contractors performing sewer work shall obtain a permit and file, with the
Building Department, a surety bond in the amount of $20,000.00, secured by a surety
company which is acceptable to the Village of Tinley Park, Illinois. Bond shall be
payable to the Village and in effect guarantee that the contractor will comply with all the
requirements of applicable Village ordinances and codes.

Lawn sprinkler contractors are required to submit a current copy of their 060 State of
Illinois Public Health Registration to the Building Department. Along with the permit
application, Contractor shall submit a current copy of each worker’s State of Illinois 061
license.

Inspections

No underground work, or work under a slab on fill, shall be covered, or concealed, until
work has been inspected and approved by the Village Plumbing Inspector.

All sewer taps and/or water taps shall be approved by the Village of Tinley Park Public
Works Inspector before being covered. Taps shall only be performed by a State of
[linois licensed Plumber.

No piping of any type shall be concealed in walls, partitions, ceilings or furred spaces
until piping has been inspected and approved by Plumbing Inspector.



Plumbing inspector shall make final inspection after fixtures are set and trim is installed
and no Certificate for Occupancy will be issued without Plumbing Inspector's final
approval.

Contractor shall arrange for all inspections required by the Metropolitan Water
Reclamation District of Greater Chicago and shall submit Certification of Approval by
MWRD to the Building Department before a Certificate of Occupancy will be issued.

N. Open Basements

Where window or drain openings are provided below grade, they shall be protected with
approved gratings.

SECTION 402 - DEFINITIONS

Grease trap sludge: shall mean the solid, lighter than water fraction of wastewaters from the
handling, processing, preparation, cooking or consumption of food that are discharged to a pre-
treatment unit or device commonly referred to as a grease trap. The principle components of
grease trap sludge are fats, oils and greases.

SECTION 403 - GREASE INTERCEPTORS
All interceptors shall be installed underground.

All interceptors shall be installed in an accessible location to permit the convenient removal of
the lid and internal contents. All restaurants and food service establishments shall have a grease
interceptor, with size to be determined by State of Illinois Plumbing Code.

The only exception to this would be a coffee shop that serves only coffee and pre-packaged
foods and does not cook or prepare any food on site. If the establishment serves anything other
than coffee and pre-packaged foods (not made on the site), i.e., soup, sandwiches, etc., they shall
be required to have a grease interceptor.

SECTION 404 - GREASE TRAP DISPOSAL

Any contractor performing grease trap cleaning and disposal shall be required to hold a current
State of Illinois Department of Agriculture Bureau of Animal Health and Welfare Class B
License and provide a copy to the Village of Tinley Park. The contractor must empty each
grease trap and dispose of the sludge in an environmentally safe manner. This shall be done on a
monthly basis unless the Village of Tinley Park, upon receipt of proof from the owner or
operator or on the basis of its own inspection of the grease trap, determines that a less or more
frequent maintenance schedule is required to achieve the purpose of this amendment and to
prevent the discharge of fats, oils, and grease to the Village of Tinley Park’s sewer system. The
establishment must maintain a manifest of the cleaning and empting of the grease trap. This
manifest shall be kept on site and made available to Village officials upon request.



CHAPTER YV - ELECTRICAL WORK

SECHON-500—ADMINISTRATON-ARTICLE 90.1.1 PURPOSE

A.

Scope: This chapter governs the electrical components, equipment and systems used in
buildings and structures covered by this code. Electrical components, equipment and
systems shall be designed and constructed in accordance with the provisions of the 2011
National Electrical Code (NFPA70) as amended which applies to all electrical
installations as though fully written and set forth herein, except as specifically noted
otherwise in this code.

Registration of Contractors

Any contractor engaged in the performance of electrical work within the Village of
Tinley shall be currently registered with the Village of Tinley Park in accordance with the
Building Code of Village of Tinley Park. Prior to the issuance of any electrical permit,
the contractor shall file with the Building Department a copy of their current license,
including the company, name, registration number, and current dates of validation.

Bond

All contractors performing electrical work within the Village of Tinley Park shall file
with the Building Department a surety bond in amount of $20,000.00 secured by a surety
company which is acceptable to the Village of Tinley Park, Illinois. Bond shall be
payable to the Village and, in effect, guarantee that the contractor will comply with all
requirements of applicable Village ordinances and codes. The Bond shall indicate the
same company name that is on the license.

Permits

1. Permits are required for all electrical work including low voltage systems such as
communications cable, alarm, security, telephone and other similar type systems.

2. Permits for electrical work will be issued only to duly licensed and bonded
electrical contractors. Electrical permit applications must be signed by the
electrical contractor, when work is to be done by contract.

3. Qualified homeowners who can demonstrate their qualifications to properly
perform such work, to the satisfaction of the electrical inspector may obtain
permits to do electrical work on their own place of residence (excluding multi-
family units) but they must follow all provisions of the electrical code. Such
work will be subject to the inspection and approval of the Chief Electrical
Inspector. When work is to be done by a homeowner, the application shall be
signed by the homeowner. The homeowner must reside within the home for a
minimum of six months.



4. In all cases duly licensed and bonded Electrical Contractors shall install electrical
services.

5. All work performed on commercial property must be done by a licensed and
bonded electrical contractor.

The Electrical Inspector or the Village Board of Tinley Park shall administer the
Electrical Regulations of this Code.

Non-Liability for Damages

The electrical regulations of this Code shall not be construed to relieve from or lessen the
responsibility of any person owning, operating, selling, offering for sale or installing any
electrical wires, appliances, apparatus, construction, or equipment, for damages to anyone
injured by any defect therein by reason of the inspection authorized herein or the
certificate of inspection issued by the Building Department or Electrical Inspector, nor
shall the Village of Tinley Park be held liable for any damages resulting from the
enforcement of the electrical regulations of this code.

Special Permission to Waive Requirements

The electrical regulations of this Code may be modified or waived by special permission
in particular cases where such modification or waiver is specifically permitted or in
particular cases where advancement in the technology of electricity makes such
modification or waiver advisable in the best interest of the Village of Tinley Park. Such
"Special Permission" shall in all cases be obtained from the Electrical Inspector in
writing prior to the commencement of the work.

Breaking Seals

The Electrical Inspector or his designee, are hereby empowered to attach to
electrical cabinets and equipment any official notice or seal to prevent use of
electricity, and it shall be unlawful for any other person to put or attach such seal,
or to break, change, destroy, tear, mutilate, cover, or otherwise deface or injure
any such official notice or seal posed by an inspector or the section of Electrical
Inspection.

Use of Permit Issued to Another

It shall be unlawful for any person to install, alter, or repair any electrical wires or
apparatus by authority of a permit issued to and for the use of some other person.

Permit for Person Not Entitled to One



It shall be unlawful for any registered electrical contractor to secure or furnish a permit
for the installation, alteration and repair of electrical wires and apparatus to any person
not entitled to such permit under the electrical regulations of this Electrical Code.

Purpose and Scope

The purpose of this Code is the practical safeguarding of persons and of buildings and
their contents, from electrical hazards arising from the use of electricity for light, heat,
power, audio or visual communications of signal transmission of convenience. It covers
the electrical conductors and equipment installed within or on public and private
buildings and other premises, including yards, carnival and parking lots, and private
industrial substations; also, the conductors that supply street lighting, together with the
associated equipment necessary to its safe operation.

By specific State of Illinois and Federal Government exemptions it does not cover
installations in mines, ships, railway cars, automotive equipment, or the installations or
equipment employed by a railway, railroad, electric or communication utility in the
exercise of its function as a utility, and located outdoors or in buildings used exclusively
for that purpose.

The provisions of this Code constitute a minimum standard. Compliance therewith and
proper maintenance will result in an installation reasonably free from hazard but not
necessarily efficient or convenient. This Code is to be regarded neither as a design,
specification nor an instruction manual for untrained persons. Good service and
satisfactory results will often require larger sizes of wire, more branch circuits, and better
types of equipment than the minimum which is here specified.

Disturbance of Existing Wires: It shall be unlawful for any person in anyway to cut,
disturb, alter or change any electrical wiring or to permit electrical wiring to be cut,
disturbed, altered or changed unless done in conformity with the electrical regulations of
this Code.

It shall be unlawful for any person in any way to cut, alter, disturb or change any
electrical, appliance, device or equipment or to permit any electrical, appliances, devices
of equipment to be cut, altered, disturbed or changed in any manner to render it unsafe or
not in accordance with its approved use.

Enforcement and Interpretation.

This Code is an integral part of the Municipal ordinances and as such its provisions are
mandatory and are enforceable by the electrical inspection department in exercising its
legal jurisdiction over electrical installation.

The Electrical Inspector, supervising such enforcement of the Code, has the responsibility
for making interpretations of the rules, for deciding upon the approval of equipment and
materials, and for granting special permission contemplated in a number of rules.



SECHONSH—SINGEE-FAMILY- & MUEH-FAMIEY DPWELLHINGS:
ARTICLE 110 - REQUIREMENTS FOR ELECTRICAL INSTALLATIONS

A. Smoke detectors shall be installed in accordance with State of Illinois requirements, with
the addition of:

1.

Smoke detectors shall be dual voltage type (120V with battery back-up) and wired
in series are required on all levels, and in every bedroom.

A 120V smoke detector shall be installed in the vicinity of all heating units in
normally unoccupied areas (attics, crawl spaces, basements, etc.).

Conduits to smoke detectors, heat detectors and carbon monoxide detectors shall
be sealed to avoid condensation problems in detector.

Carbon monoxide alarm detectors are required effective January 1, 2007 in all
new buildings containing bedrooms and sleeping facilities as required by State of
Illinois Carbon Monoxide Detector Act (Public Act 094-0741), based on the
following criteria:

a.

Every dwelling unit must be equipped with at least one operable carbon
monoxide alarm within 15 feet of every room used for sleeping purposes.

The alarm may be combined with smoke detecting devices provided the
unit complies with respective standards and the alarm differentiates the
hazard.

A dwelling unit means a room or suite of rooms used for human
habitation, and includes single family residences, multiple family
residences, and mixed-use buildings.

If a structure contains more than one dwelling unit an alarm must be
installed within 15 feet of every sleeping room in each dwelling unit.

The owner must supply and install all required alarms. A landlord must
ensure that the alarms are operable on the date of initiation of a lease. The
tenant is responsible for testing, battery replacement and maintaining the
alarm after the lease commences.

A landlord is required to furnish one tenant per dwelling unit with written
information regarding alarm testing and maintenance.

Willful failure to install or maintain in operating condition any alarm is a
Class B criminal misdemeanor



A listed detection device shall be installed in laundry rooms. The detector shall be
interconnected with the smoke detectors. A list device shall be in addition to any other
required devices.

Listed heat detection shall be installed in attached garages. The detector(s) shall be
interconnected with the smoke detectors.

If a low voltage fire alarm system is used in non-accessible concealed spaces, wiring
shall be piped in conduit point to point only, with free air in ceiling with D rings to
support wires.

All single-family dwelling units shall have front and rear electrically operated doorbells.
All concealed wiring MUST be in conduit to an accessible area.

Multi-family dwelling units shall have an electrically operated remote door latch
switching system.

All garages shall be required to be on their own circuits (attached or unattached).
Bathroom exhaust required to be on timers.

Private or residential garages shall have not less than one (1) ceiling light, one (1) switch
and one (1) receptacle. The garage or building shall be on a separate circuit.

1. The electrical feeder or branch circuit to garage shall be underground (in threaded
galvanized conduit not less than 6 inches below finished grade). If direct burial
cable is used a non-current carrying bonding conductor shall be connected between
the supply cabinet and the first junction box in the garage, and shall be not less than
24 inches below finished grade. Conduit and/or cable run underground shall not be
covered until inspected and approved by the electrical inspector.

ARTICLE 210 - BRANCH CIRCUITS

PART III. REQUIRED OUTLETS

A.

GFCI Receptacles

1. Double basin bathroom sinks require GFCI receptacles on both ends and within
36 inches of a basin.

2. All bathroom GFCI outlets must be on a 20-amp separate circuit.
3. GFCI type outlets must be used on all countertop height outlets.

4. NEC 210-8A (7) shall be amended to read:



Locations with open water - All general use receptacles installed within 6 feet of
plumbing fixtures shall be GFCI protected.

a. NEC 210.52 (C) (2) “Island countertop spaces” shall be amended to read:

At least one receptacle shall be installed at each end of an island countertop space with a
long dimension 6’- 0” or greater and a short dimension of 12” or greater.

ARTICLE 230- SERVICES

A

In dwelling units 2,200 square feet or larger a 200-amp service shall be required. All
dwelling units under 2,200 square feet shall have a minimum of a 100-amp service.

Service upgrades and/or service changes will require:

1. A minimum of 100-amp service.

2. GFCI protected receptacles shall be required as per NEC 2011.
3. 115V smoke detectors shall be installed as per code.

4. No panel shall be more than 80% full.

ARTICLE 410 - LUMINAIRES

A.

B.

All attic fixtures shall be installed before rough inspection.

All light fixtures shall have at least one light bulb installed for final inspection.



Stairways, halls, passageways, corridors, garages, and rooms accessible by more than one
entry or exit shall be lit by a ceiling light or lights controlled by three-way or four-way
switch.

Storage space of 5 sq. ft. or more shall be illuminated.

GFCI protection is required on recessed can lights over tubs and showers.

SECTION 502 — APPROVED EQUIPMENT & INSTALLATION METHODS:

A.

e

=

()

Only electrical equipment, appliances and devices, which are listed and approved for use
by an approved, independent testing agency (e.g., Underwriters Laboratories) shall be
installed in the Village of Tinley Park.

All electrical wiring shall be copper. No aluminum or copper clad aluminum wire shall
be installed in any electrical installation without written permission from the chief
electrical inspector prior to installation. Exception: Service feeders owned and
maintained by Commonwealth Edison.

1. All commercial/industrial branch circuit wiring shall be a minimum of #12
AWG.

Where rework or rewiring of any building or structure is 50% or more, then all wiring in
the entire building shall be as per code.

It is the expressed intent of this code that NEC Article 320 to and including Article 322,
324, 326, 328, 330, 332, 334, 336, 338, 340 Part 4 through 7, Article 352, (shall only be
used outdoors), Article 353 (shall only be used outdoors), Article 354, 355, 356 and 362.
Article 368.56 (A) 1,2,3,8,9,10,12 and 16. Article 372, 378, 382, 388, Article 392 Cable
Tray shall only be used to support low voltage wiring, Articles 394 & 398 shall not be
adopted.

All conductors shall be installed in an approved metal raceway.

Electrical metallic tubing shall not be installed outside, underground, or in concrete that
is in contact with earth.

All services shall be rigid metal conduit, intermediate conduit or aluminum rigid.
All multiple electric services to a single address must have a single disconnect.
Rigid non-metallic conduit may be used only underground or in concrete. Note:

Schedule 80 is required when installed under any vehicular traffic.
NEC Article 210.5 shall be amended to read as:



All single phase 120 volt or 240-volt circuits shall have phases marked Black (A) Red
(B) and White for neutral grounded conductor.

All three Phase 208V or 240V system shall have phases marked black for A Phase, red
for B Phase, and blue for C Phase.

All three Phase 277V or 480V system shall have the phases marked brown for A Phase,
orange for B Phase, and yellow for C Phase.

NEC 210-8 shall be amended to apply to all structures.

It is the expressed intent of this code that NEC Article 300-4 (A-2) (Exception) not be
adopted. All holes shall be drilled.

NEC Article 300-13B shall be amended to read:

In branch circuits the continuity of a conductor shall not be dependent upon device
connections, such as lamp holders, receptacles, etc., where removal of the device would
not interrupt continuity.

NEC Article 450-21A shall be amended to read:

Dry-type transformers installed indoors shall be installed at a minimum of 7 feet above
the finished floor, (or) dry-type transformer installed indoors shall have a physical
separation of 2 feet vertically in all directions and 4 feet horizontally.

It is the expressed intent of this code that NEC Articles 604 and 605 be deleted.

All motor of 2 horsepower or larger, or any heating system, sump pumps and or ejector
pumps shall be on its own circuit.

Each tenant space shall have direct access to the breakers or fuses that protect all
electrical devices in that tenant unit. (Direct access means a common area that has no
locks or the tenant can get to the panel or switchboard without going through another
tenant space.)

When a sump pump or ejector pump is installed in an area not illuminated, a light shall be
provided.

All fire alarm systems shall have a lock out device on the over-current device. Fire alarm
system piping in unconditioned spaces shall be installed to prevent condensation from
entering the fire alarm system devices.

In buildings over two floors above grade, a special purpose, non-energized inlet (No.
HUBBLE 47CM16 or equal) shall be installed outside the main entrance two feet above
finished grade and no more than five feet from the front entrance. This outlet shall be



visible from the entrance (no obstruction shall be located in front of this inlet as bushes,
decorations and the like). This special purpose inlet shall be wired with a minimum wire
size of #12 copper wire to opening(s) with outlet (No. HUBBLE 4710 or equal). Install
outlets at each floor level so as to provide at least one such outlet in all stairwells at each
floor level and no more than one hundred feet of travel distance from any point at each
floor level to at least one such outlet. Device shall be tested prior to final acceptance in
the presence of the Electrical Inspector and Fire Marshal. Designer shall contact the Fire
Marshal for specific design criteria.

If a low voltage fire alarm system is used in non-accessible concealed spaces, wiring
shall be piped in conduit point to point only, with free air in ceiling with D rings to
support wires.

Wiring
1. All wiring, fittings and electrical materials not in use shall be removed.
2. All electrical service must have grounding bushings on both meter and

main disconnect ends.

3. No wiring shall be installed in any raceway prior to the installation of wall
covering (prior to drywall)

4. All fusible disconnects shall be fused at the amperage rating of the switch; no fuse
reducers are allowed.

5. No tandem circuit breakers are permitted, including duplex, slimline, twin, half-
height, half-inch, double and wafer breakers).

6. All commercial, industrial and warehouse electrical service panels must be “Panel
Board” type (Bolt on circuit breakers).

All electrical piping on the inside is required to be in rigid conduit in slab. PVC Schedule
80 can be used on the outside.

Any electrical equipment installed in the public right of way will require a permit and a
signed waiver prior to installation.

A conduit shall be installed with pull wire for the outside water meter read out. The
conduit shall be installed within 6' of the water meters and run to the area by the gas
meter, and flush with the outside finished wall. No pull box(es) or pulling type fittings
shall be installed in this conduit system without the approval of the Public Works
Department.

Conduits to smoke detectors, heat detectors and carbon monoxide detectors shall be
sealed to avoid condensation problems in detector.



ARTICLE 680 - SWIMMING POOLS:

A.

See electrical requirements from the 2021 ICC International Residential Code and
National Electrical Code 204+ 2017.

Refer to Section 312

CHAPTER VI- HEATING, VENTILATING, AIR
CONDITIONING AND FUEL GAS PIPING SYSTEMS

SECTION 660 700 - GENERAL REQUIREMENTS:

A. Scope
I.
2.
3.
4.
B.

Mechanical appliances, equipment and systems shall be constructed, installed and
maintained in accordance with the International Mechanical Code as amended and
the International Fuel Gas Code as amended. Masonry chimneys, fireplaces and
barbecues shall comply with the International Mechanical Code as amended and
Chapter of this code.

Air Pollution Control:

All equipment and installations of fuel burning appliances shall be made in
compliance with the provisions and regulations of the Illinois Pollution Control
Board and the requirements of Cook and Will Counties.

Liquefied Petroleum Gases:
The installation of all equipment, tanks and systems shall be following the State

of Illinois Fire Marshal's regulations and requirements, and the Fire Prevention
Code of the Village of Tinley Park, Illinois.

Piping:

The use of combustible piping materials shall be permitted when installed in
accordance with the limitations of the International Mechanical Code and
International Fuel Gas Code.

Heating Equipment:



1. Heating equipment fuel gas systems shall be constructed and installed in strict
accordance with the International Mechanical Code 2012 and International Fuel
Gas Code 2012.

State Boiler Certification, Hot Water or Steam Systems:

1. All boilers or water heaters, having an input rating of 200,000 BTU or more, or
water heaters with a capacity of more than 120 gallons, shall be inspected and
certified by the State of Illinois Boiler and Pressure Vessel Safety Division, in
accordance with Boiler Safety Act and Boiler Rules and Regulations of the State
of Illinois.

Electric Heating

1. All electrical heating and their control and safety systems shall be installed in
conformance to the applicable provisions of the National Electrical Code 2011
(NFPA 70), as amended.

License and Bond

1. All contractors installing heating, ventilating, air conditioning, or fuel gas systems
(except low horsepower exhaust fans) are required by Village ordinance to be
licensed by the Village of Tinley Park.

2. All contractors installing heating, ventilating, air conditioning, or fuel gas
systems, prior to issue of a permit, must furnish to the Village a bond, in the
amount of $20,000.00 secured by a surety company which is acceptable to the
Village of Tinley Park. Bond shall be payable to the Village and shall, in effect,
guarantee that the contractor will comply with all requirements of applicable
Village ordinances and codes.

Permits

1. No contractor shall install any heating, ventilating, air conditioning, fuel gas
systems replacement of low horsepower exhaust fans without first having secured,
from the Building Department, a permit to perform the work.
Exception: Replacement of low horsepower exhaust fans.

Inspections

1. When installation of work has been completed, but before pipes, ducts, stacks,
vents, etc., are concealed, the contractor shall request that installation be inspected

by the Building Department, and no such systems or work shall be enclosed or
covered until same is approved by the Building Commissioner.



Electrical.

1.

The use of electrical wiring methods with combustible insulation, tubing,
raceways and related components shall be permitted when installed in accordance
with the limitations of the National Electrical Code 2011 (NFPA70), as amended.

CHAPTER VII - FIRE PREVENTION

SECTION 7800 SCOPE AND ADMINISTRATION; TINLEY PARK FIRE

PREVENTION BUREAU
1. SCOPE

In addition to Section F101.2 of the 2012 International Fire Code, include the following

duties:

a. Inspection of permanent and temporary buildings, processes, equipment, systems,
and other fire and related life safety situations.

b. Investigations of fires, explosions, hazardous materials incidents, and other
related emergency incidents.

C. Review of design and construction plans, drawings, and specifications for life
safety systems, fire protection systems, access, water supplies, processes and
hazardous materials and other fire and life safety issues.

d. Education of fire brigades, employees, responsible parties, and the general public
related to fire and life safety.

e. Review of existing occupancies and conditions, the design and construction of
new buildings, remodeling of existing buildings, and additions to existing
buildings.

f. Conduct the design, alteration, modification, construction, maintenance, and
testing of fire protection systems and equipment.

g. Access requirements for fire department operations.

h. Investigate hazards from outside fires in vegetation, trash, building debris, and
other materials.

1. Manage the regulation and control of special events including, but not limited to,
assemblage of people, exhibits, trade shows, amusement parks, haunted houses,
outdoor events, and other similar special temporary and permanent occupancies.

J- Review interior finishes, decorations, furnishings, and other combustibles that
contribute to fire spread, fire load, and smoke production.

k. Analyze and review storage, use, processing, handling, and on-site transportation
of flammable and combustible gases, liquids and solids and hazardous materials.

1. Monitor the conditions affecting fire fighter safety.

2. APPLICABILITY

Delete Section F102.7.1, F102.7.2, of the International Fire Code 2012 and substitute
therefore:



a. When there are conflicting requirements with the adopted codes, the Deputy Chief
of Fire Prevention or designee shall have the authority to enforce the most
restrictive language.

DEPARTMENT OF FIRE PREVENTION
Delete Sections F103.1, F103.2, F103.3, of the International Fire Code, 2012 and
substitute there for:

a. The Fire Prevention Code shall be enforced by the Bureau of Fire Prevention in
the Village of Tinley Park which is hereby established and which shall be
operated under the supervision of the Deputy Chief of Fire Prevention.

b. The Deputy Chief of Fire Prevention in charge of the Bureau of Fire Prevention
shall be recommended by the Fire Chief to the Village President who shall
annually appoint with the advice and consent of the village trustees. The
appointment of the Deputy Chief of Fire Prevention shall continue during good
behavior and satisfactory service, and shall not be removed from office except for
cause.

c. The Deputy Chief of Fire Prevention may utilize such members of the Fire
Department as inspectors as shall from time to time be necessary. The Deputy
Chief of Fire Prevention shall recommend to the Fire Chief the employment of
technical inspectors and office staff, which, when such authorization is made,
shall be selected through an examination to determine their fitness for the
position, with credit for fire department and/or fire inspection experience. The
examination shall be open to members and non-members of the Fire Department,
and appointments made after examination shall be for an indefinite term with
removal only for cause.

d. A report of the Bureau of Fire Prevention shall be made annually and transmitted
through the Fire Chief to the President and Board of Trustees of the municipality;
it shall contain all proceedings under this code, with such statistics as the Deputy
Chief of Fire Prevention may wish to include therein; the Deputy Chief of Fire
Prevention shall also recommend any amendments to the code which, in his
judgment, shall be desirable.

MODIFICATION
Delete Section F104.8 of the International Fire Code 2012 and substitute therefore:

a. The Deputy Chief of Fire Prevention shall have the power to modify any of the
provisions of the Fire Prevention Code, upon application in writing by the owner
or lessee, or his duly authorized agent, when there are practical difficulties in the
way of carrying out the strict letter of the code, provided that the spirit of the code
shall be observed, public safety secured, and substantial justice done. The
particulars of such modifications when granted or allowed and the decision of the
Deputy Chief of the Bureau of Fire Prevention thereon shall be entered upon the
records of the department and a signed copy shall be furnished to the applicant.



BOARD OF APPEALS
Delete Section F108 of the International Fire Code 2012 and substitute therefore:

a. Whenever the Deputy Chief of Fire Prevention disapproves an application or
refuses to grant a permit applied for, or when it is claimed that provisions of this
ordinance do not apply or that the true intent and meaning of this ordinance have
been misconstrued or wrongly interpreted, the applicant may appeal from the
decision of the Deputy Chief of Fire Prevention to the Chairman of the Building
Committee as prescribed in Chapter I, Section 100.L of the Tinley Park Building
Code.

PENALTIES
Delete Section F109.4 of the International Fire Code 2012 and substitute therefore:

a. Any person, firm or corporation who shall violate any of the provisions of this
Ordinance or fail to comply therewith, or who shall violate or fail to comply with
any order made hereunder, or who shall build in violation of any detailed
statement of specifications or plans submitted and approved hereunder, or any
certificate or permit issued hereunder, and from which no appeal has been taken,
or who shall fail to comply with such an order as affirmed or modified by the Fire
Prevention Administrator of the Fire Prevention Bureau or by a court of
competent jurisdiction, within the time fixed herein, shall separately for each and
every such violation and noncompliance respectively, be guilty of a misdemeanor.
The penalty for such a misdemeanor is a fine not to exceed $750.00 or
imprisonment not to exceed six (6) months, or both. In addition to the imposition
of a penalty, any and all such persons shall be required to correct or remedy such
violations or defects within a reasonable time, and when not otherwise specified,
each day that prohibited conditions exist or are maintained shall constitute a
separate offense. The application of the penalty shall not be held to prevent the
enforced removal of prohibited conditions.

b. Establishment of minimum penalties/fines/fees. For the following violation
types, persons in violation can be fined the minimum specified amount up to $750
and the specified fine can be applied on a per day basis as specified by the Deputy
Chief of Fire Prevention.

i. LIFE SAFETY
1. Means of Egress Components
a. Any component of a means of egress that obstructs the ability of
someone exiting shall be fined $750
b. Any component of a means of egress that is in disrepair, but does
not obstruct someone from exiting shall be fined $250.
2. Fire Detection & Protection Systems
a. Lack of any required system shall be fined $750 per day.



1il.

1v.

ii.

b. Any system that is impaired and does not transmit to assigned
alarm receiving station shall be fined $750 per day.
c. Any system that is impaired, but transmits to assigned alarm
receiving station shall be fined $750.
d. Any system that is not properly maintained shall be fined $750.
e. Lack of proper maintenance documents shall be fined $750.
3. Portable Fire Extinguishers
a. Lack of portable fire extinguishers shall be fined $250.
b. Improperly maintained fire extinguishers shall be fined $100.
4. Village Fire Alarm Radio Transmitter Equipment
a. Evidence of vandalism or tampering shall be fined $750.
b. Failure to properly maintain Radio Alarm Documents shall be
fined $750.
HOUSEKEEPING
1. Heating Systems/Heat Producing Devices/Open Flames
a. Improperly maintained, installed or use shall be fined $250.
c. Devices too close to combustible materials shall be fined $250.
d. Lack of required boiler certificate shall be fined $250.
e. Improperly maintained required separations shall be fined $250.
2. Flammable Liquids/Compressed Gases
a. Improper storage or use shall be fined $500.
b. Improper use of spray applications shall be fined $500.
3. Electrical/Extension Cords
a. Improper use shall be fined $250.
b. Panels/equipment not accessible shall be fined $250.
c. Improperly maintained non-energized outlets shall be fined $250.
4. Trash Receptacles
f.  Improper type or use shall be fined $250.
KNOX BOX
1. None Provided
a. No KNOX BOX shall be fined $500.
2. Improper Keys/Maintenance
a. Fines shall be $250.
ELEVATORS
1. Equipment Room
a. Improper use or storage shall be fined $250.
b. Equipment not maintained, no certificate shall be fined $250.
2. Elevator Car and Shaft
a. Improper or lack of Maintenance shall be fined $250.
b. Lack of keys to operate overrides and open doors shall be fined
$250.
c. Elevator phone not working or not to a 24-hour service shall be
fined $250.
FIRE BARRIERS (HORIZONTAL AND VERTICAL)
1. Walls, Doors, Opening Protections
a. Opening not protected shall be fined $750.



b. In disrepair shall be fined $500.
c. Missing required self-closing devices shall be fined $250.
vi. WATER SUPPLY
1. Fire Hydrants, Fire Appliance, Fire Equipment
a. Obstruction, removal, tampering with or otherwise disturb
(private or Village owned) shall be fined $750 per occurrence.
vii. FALSE FIRE ALARMS
1. False fire alarm in excess of three (3) in any calendar year from any
alarm system, the alarm user shall be charged a false alarm service

charge as follows:

# of Alarms False Alarm Fee
1-3 No Charge
4-6 $75.00 each
7-9 $100.00 each
10-12 $150.00 each
>13 $200.00 each

SECTION 701-DEFINITION

In addition to Section F202 of the 2012 International Fire Code, include (and replace as

necessary) the following definitions:

Area Total

For purposes of determining fire protection requirements “Area Total” is defined as the
total square footage of floor area including mezzanines and basements contained within
the surrounding exterior walls of the building on all floors and levels added together. The
area included within the surrounding exterior walls of a building shall include roof
overhangs and extensions and all enclosed extensions. Areas of a building not provided
with surrounding walls shall be included within the building area if such areas are
included within the horizontal projection of the roof or floor above. Interior walls,
including fire walls and party walls, shall not be considered as walls which divide a
structure into two or more separate buildings, but structures containing such interior walls
shall be considered as one building for the purposes of this Section.

Corporate Council

Wherever the term "Corporation Counsel" is used in the Fire Prevention Code, it shall be
held to mean the Attorney for the Village of Tinley Park.

Discharge

Any leakage, seepage, or other release.

False Alarm

The activation of a required fire alarm system, non-required fire alarm systems or other
means of communicating a potential fire event where none exists that result in the



initiation of a response from the fire department or supervising monitoring station. These
activations can be a result of:

mechanical failure.

malfunction.

improper installation or operation.

failure to notify the supervising monitoring station prior to testing, inspection or
maintenance of a fire alarm or fire protection system.

negligence of the owner or lessee of an alarm system or of his employees, agents
or contractors.

Malicious mischief or criminal damage to property.
Resetting of fire alarm systems prior to investigation by Emergency Responders.

Such terminology does not include, for example, alarms caused by hurricanes, tornadoes,
earthquakes or other violent conditions, nor by outside agencies or external forces not
under the control of owner or lessee.

Fire Official

Wherever the words "Fire Official" are used in the Fire Prevention Code they shall be
held to mean the Deputy Chief of Fire Prevention, unless the context clearly indicated
otherwise.

Fireworks

The term fireworks shall mean and include any explosive composition or any
substance or combination of substances, or article prepared for the purpose of
producing a visible or audible effect of a temporary exhibition nature by
explosion, combustion, deflagration or detonation, and shall include blank
cartridges, toy cannons, in which explosives are used, the type of balloons which
require fire underneath to propel the same, firecrackers, torpedoes, skyrockets,
Roman candles, sparklers, smoke bombs, snakes or facsimile or other fireworks of
like construction and any fire works containing any explosive compound, or any
tablets or other device containing any explosive substance, or containing
combustible substances producing visual effects: provided, however, that the term
“fireworks” shall not include toy pistols, toy canes, toy guns, or other devices in
which paper or plastic caps containing twenty-five hundredths grains or less of
explosive compound are used, providing they are so constructed that the hand
cannot come in contract with the cap when in place for the explosion, and toy
pistol paper or plastic caps which contain less than twenty hundredths grains of
explosive mixture, the sale and use of which shall be permitted at all times.”

Hazardous chemical
Any chemical or substance which is a physical or health hazard to employees.

Hazardous materials
A substance or material in a quantity and form determined by the United States
Department of Transportation, Illinois Department of Transportation, and the



Metropolitan Water Reclamation District to be capable of posing an unreasonable risk to
health and safety or property, whether the materials are in usable or waste condition.

Hazardous materials access route
Any street which has been designated pursuant to this section for the purpose of
providing vehicular access from the primary hazardous material route to locations within
the Village of Tinley Park where hazardous materials are used, produced, or stored.

Hazardous Materials Placard
The placard which a motor vehicle transporting hazardous materials is required to display
under regulations enacted by either the United States or Illinois Department of
Transportation pursuant to the Hazardous Material Transportation Act, 49 USC 1801 et
seq.

Hazardous Substance
Any material that can produce an adverse effect on or safety of persons exposed.

Hazardous Waste
Any material that is ignitable, corrosive, reactive or toxic and which may pose a
substantial hazard to human health and safety when improperly managed.

High Rise Building
A building with an occupied floor located more than 55 feet above the lowest level of fire
department vehicle access.

Municipality
Wherever the word "Municipality" is in the Fire Prevention Code, it shall be held to mean
the Village of Tinley Park.

Person
Any natural person or individual, governmental body, firm, association, partnership, co-
partnership, joint venture, company, corporation, joint stock company, trust, estate, or
any other legal entity, or their legal representative, agent, or assigns.

Primary Hazardous Materials Route
The system of streets when signs are posted identifying that the street(s) is acceptable for
transporting hazardous materials.

Pyrotechnic Display
The detonation, ignition, or deflagration, either indoors or outdoors, of display
fireworks or flame effects to produce visual or audible effects of a exhibition
nature before the public, invitees, or licensees, regardless of whether admission is
charged, and as may be further defined in the Fireworks Use Act (425 ILCS
35/0.01 et seq.), and Pyrotechnic Distributor and Operator Licensing Act (225
ILCS 227/1 et seq.) (Collectively, for purposes of this Chapter the “State Acts”).



SECTION 702-GENERAL REQUIREMENTS
Delete Sections F304.1.2 of the International Fire Code 2012 and substitute therefore:

1. Weeds, grass, vines or other growth that is capable of being ignited and endangering
property, shall be cut down and removed by the owner or occupant of the premises.
Ground cover or similar material within 24-inch radius of gas service meters and
equipment must be non-combustible.

SECTION 703-EMERGENCY PLANNING AND PREPAREDNESS
Reserved

SECTION 704-FIRE SERVICE FEATURES

1. ACCESS TO BUILDING OPENINGS AND ROOFS

Addition to Section F504 of the 2012 International Fire Code:

a.  For new construction, where HVAC and similar mechanical, electrical or building
service equipment is located on the roof of a normally occupied structure, an
approved permanent ladder capable of supporting Fire Department personnel and
the equipment they use must be installed.

2. KEY BOXES
Delete Section F506.1 of the International Fire Code 2012 and substitute therefore:

a. Fire Department Access: Where access to or within a structure or an area is
restricted because of secured openings or where immediate access is necessary for
life-saving or fire-fighting purposes, the fire code official is authorized to require a
key box manufactured by Knox Company to be installed in an approved location.
The key box shall be of an approved type listed in accordance with UL 1037, and
shall contain keys to gain necessary access as required by the fire code official.

b. EXCEPTIONS:

i. Private fire alarm systems not required, approved or monitored by the
Village of Tinley Park. Property owners must accept responsibility when
the Fire Department is called to respond to an alarm condition by a private
alarm monitoring contractor. The responsibility of the Fire Department is
to investigate the alarm. Entry may be made to determine the nature of the
alarm. Any damage occurred at the time of entry is the sole responsibility
of the alarm owner.

il. Property owner can petition in writing not to have this required Knox Box
system if they can provide documentation that their premise doors are not
secured or locked in any way on a twenty-four (24) hours per day, 365
days per year.

Add the following text in addition to Section 506 (506.1.3) of the International Fire Code
2012:

c. Knox Box Specifications and Installations:



i. The location of the Knox Box shall be by the main entrance unless an
alternate location is approved in writing by the Fire Department.
i1. Unless specified by the fire code official, the Knox Box shall be mounted
between 60-72 inches above the immediate surrounding grade in which a
person can stand on without any assistance.
iii. Unless specified by the fire code official, when a building is required to
have a supervised fire alarm system, the Knox Box must be monitored.
The monitored device must be programmed to transmit a “supervisory”

signal.

3. FIRE PROTECTION WATER SUPPLY SYSTEMS
Delete Section F507.5, F507.5.1, F507.5.4 and F507.5.5 of the International Fire Code
2012 and substitute therefore:

a.

A vehicle shall not be driven or propelled over any unprotected fire hose of the fire
department when laid down on any street, alley-way, private drive or any other
vehicular roadway without the consent of the fire official in command of said
operation.

A person shall not obstruct, remove, tamper with or otherwise disturb any fire
hydrant or fire appliance required to be installed or maintained under the provisions
of the Fire Prevention Code except for the purpose of extinguishing fire, training or
testing purposes, recharging, or making necessary repairs, or when permitted by the
fire official. Whenever a fire appliance is removed as herein permitted, it shall be
replaced or reinstalled as soon as the purpose for which it was removed has been
accomplished. Defective and non-approved fire appliances or equipment shall be
replaced or repaired as directed by the fire official.

Standard Fire Hydrants shall be provided within three hundred (300) feet of all
exposed parts of all buildings. Distance between hydrants shall be no more than
300 feet as measured along the street right-of-way. Approved hydrants must be
within 100 feet of a fire department connection.

It shall be illegal to block, park or otherwise interfere with the use of any fire
hydrant on public or private water supply systems. A 10 (ten) (foot) minimum clear
space distance in any direction must be kept at all times.

A person shall not use or operate any fire hydrant intended for use of the fire
department for fire suppression purposes unless such person first secures a permit
for such use from the fire official and the water company having jurisdiction. This
section shall not apply to the use of such hydrants by a person employed by, and
authorized to make such use by, the water company having jurisdiction.

The Deputy Chief of Fire Prevention shall recommend to the chief administrative
official of the municipality the location or relocation on new or existing fire
hydrants and the placement or replacement of inadequate water mains located upon
public property and deemed necessary to provide an adequate fire flow and
distribution pattern. A fire hydrant shall not be placed into or removed from service
until approved by the Deputy Chief of Fire Prevention.

All new and existing ship yards, oil storage plants, lumber yards, amusement or
exhibition parks, and educational or institutional complexes and similar



occupancies and uses involving high fire or life hazards, and which are located
more than 150 feet from a public street or which require quantities of water beyond
the capabilities of the public water distribution system shall be provided with
properly placed fire hydrants. Such fire hydrants shall be capable of supplying fire
flows as required by the fire official and shall be connected to a water system in
accordance with accepted engineering practices. The fire official shall designate
and approve the number and location of fire hydrants. The Deputy Chief of Fire
Prevention may require the installation of sufficient fire hose and equipment housed
in accordance with the approved rules and may require the establishment of a
trained fire brigade when the hazard involved requires such measures. Private
hydrants shall not be placed into or removed from service until approved by the fire
official.

SECTION 705-BUILDING SERVICES AND SYSTEMS
Add Section F604.7 of the International Fire Code 2012 for non-energized outlets. See also
Section 5044 VoTP Building Code.

1. NON-ENERGIZED OUTLETS

a. General. In multi-story buildings of over 2 floors a special purpose, non-energized,
inlet Hubble # 47CM16 or equal shall be installed outside the main entrance no more
than three feet above grade and no more than five feet from the main entrance. There
shall be no obstructions in front of this inlet such as bushes, decorations, or the like.

b. Technical requirements. This inlet shall have an identifying water-proof cover. This
special purpose inlet shall be wired with No. 12 copper wire in a %" conduit to an
opening with outlet, Hubble # 4710 or equal. Install outlets at each floor level so as to
provide at least one such outlet in all stairwells at each floor level and no more than one
hundred feet of travel distance from any point at each floor level to at least one such
outlet.

c. Acceptance Testing. All equipment must field inspected and tested using power
generating equipment located on fire apparatus.

Add Section 607.1.1 of the International Fire Code 2012 for Elevator Operation, Maintenance
and Fire Service Keys

2. ELEVATOR OPERATION, MAINTENANCE AND FIRE SERVICE KEYS
a. In all buildings which exceed two (2) stories in height and in which an elevator or
elevators are installed, at least one elevator shall be of a reasonable size to
accommodate all emergency medical patient transport equipment.
No changes

SECTION 706-INTERIOR FINISH, DECORATIVE MATERIALS AND FURNISHINGS

Delete Section F806.1.1 and its exceptions of the International Fire Code 2012 and substitute
therefore:

1. Natural cut trees shall be prohibited in Groups A,B,E,LM,R-1,R-2,R-3, and R-4.



SECTION 707-FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS
Delete the following Section of the International Fire Code 2012:
F903.6 and delete Section F901.2 of the International Fire Code 2012 and substitute therefore:

1. CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS
a. The fire code shall have the authority to require construction documents and
calculations for all fire protection and fire alarm systems and to require permits be
issued for the installation, rehabilitation or modification of any fire protection or fire
alarm system.

i. Fire Alarm Construction Documents:

1. Construction document or shop drawings, or both, for the installation of fire
alarm systems shall be submitted to indicate conformance to adopted codes and
shall be reviewed by the Fire Department prior to issuance of the permit.
Required documents must be submitted per applicable requirements of the
NFPA 72, Fire Alarm Code.

2. Three (3) sets of drawing documents for the installation/modification of a fire
alarm system along with a properly submitted permit application shall be
submitted for review and approval prior to the installation of a fire protection
system. One (1) electronic copy of submitted documents will also be required.

b. Fire Protection Construction Documents:

1.

il

Where applicable submissions must conform to 225/LCS325/Professional
Engineering Practice Act of 1989. Five (5) sets of construction documents for fire
protection systems shall be submitted for review and approval prior to system
acceptance. One (1) electronic copy of submitted documents will be required.
Required documents must be submitted per applicable NFPA 13, Standard for the,
Installation of Automatic Sprinkler Systems. Submission for fire protection systems
shall include but not be limited to:

Permit application

Scope of work document

System design

Equipment specification sheets

Hydraulic calculations (if required)

Included on the shop drawings shall be information showing the basis for
compliance with the design density, the specific arrangement of the system, the
devices and their method(s) of operation, and the suppression agent. The details
on the construction documents or shop drawings for the fire protection system
shall include design considerations, spacing and arrangement of fire protection
devices, protection, agent supply and discharge requirements, calculations with
sizes and equivalent lengths of pipe and fittings, and protection agent source.
Sufficient information shall be included to identify the apparatus and devices
utilized and other information as required by this code.



1il.

1v.

Construction documents for the fire protection systems permit shall include
information on the contents, the occupancy, the location and arrangement of the
structures and the contents involved, the exposure to any hazard and the extent of
the system coverage, the suppression system design criteria, the supply and
extinguishing agents, the location of any standpipes, and the location and method
of operation of detection and alarm devices.

All plans for new installations or significant alterations of existing automatic
sprinkler systems shall be initially approved by a third-party vendor as designated
by the Village. Plan review service or a recognized plan review service approved
by the Village of Tinley Park and the Deputy Chief of Fire Prevention. The
builders, building owners or their agents shall then submit the initially approved
and stamped plans for proposed sprinkler systems to the Deputy Chief of Fire
Prevention for additional approval. Said plans shall show the size, capacity and
location of all sprinkler heads, pumps, tanks or pipes, and any other apparatus
which is to be used in connection with such sprinkler systems. Said plans, when
approved by the Deputy Chief of Fire Prevention, shall also be stamped by him to
that effect before such system shall be installed. The Deputy Chief of Fire
Prevention shall not have authority to determine what sprinkler systems shall be
installed, but only to approve plans for such proposed systems.

Amend Section F901.6.2 of the International Fire Code 2012 and substitute therefore:

2. RECORDS

a.

Records of all required life safety system inspections, tests and maintenance required
by the referenced standards shall be maintained on the premises for a minimum of
three years and electronics copies sent to the Deputy Chief of Fire Prevention using
approved methods.

The contractor shall provide the Deputy Chief of Fire Prevention with a document
indicating that the system is installed in compliance with this code and that the
appropriate acceptance tests have been conducted. These systems shall be certified
to U.L. or F.M. certification standards.

Delete Section F903.2 through F903.2.10.1, F903.2.11.3 exceptions, F903.3.1.1.1 items 3-6, of
the International Fire Code 2012 and substitute therefore:

3. AUTOMATIC SPRINKLER SYSTEMS

a.

All automatic fire protection systems shall be installed so as to provide reasonable
safety to person and property and in accordance with all applicable provisions of this
Fire Prevention Code and the other applicable codes and ordinances of the Village of
Tinley Park. An approved complete automatic fire protection system shall be
installed in all buildings except the following:

1. Buildings less than three thousand (3,000) square feet.

ii. Detached gazebos and other similar structures for residential and public use.
iii. Independent buildings such as restrooms or snack shops 600 square feet or less

that are associated with golf courses, parks and similar uses.



1v.

Vi.

Detached guard houses that are less than 300 square feet in size used to control
access to or within residential and/or commercial developments.

Detached non-combustible canopies used exclusively for automotive, motor
fuel-dispensing stations for private passenger vehicles not exceeding 5,000
square feet.

Existing/new Single family detached.

b. Regardless of size, the following require approved fire protection:

1.
1i.
1ii.
1v.
V.
VI.

Vil.
viii.

iX.

Xi.
Xil.

Xiii.

High Hazard Use Group Classifications (H-1, H-2, H-3, H-4 and H-5)
Institutional Use Group Classification (I-1, I-2, I-3, [-4)
Child Care, Day care, pre-school facilities
Infirmaries, nursing homes, orphanages, shelter care, home for the aged,
retirement complexes, group homes (all types)
Bed and breakfast, boarding house facilities.
Historical buildings regardless of size when located in the recognized Historical
District and if designated a historical site by the Village of Tinley Park
Historical Commission within the community. Any site/occupancy that
presently exists will not be required to meet the requirements of this section
unless there is a change in the present occupancy, ownership, or any permit
required remodeling.

a. Exception: single family dwellings when used as single-family

dwellings.
Residential mixed use (R-1, R-2, R-3, R-4)
Type IV and V Construction as defined in 2012 International Building Code,
Section 602.
New single family attached (Townhomes and Condos)
Existing single family attached residential structures damaged by fire or other
causes so that, at any time, its value is less than one-half its market value,
exclusive of the value of the foundation.
All buildings installing rooftop solar installations outside the scope of F605.11.
New normally occupied residential structures built on streets and access roads
not dedicated to or not maintained by the Village of Tinley Park or not meeting
the specifications as defined in the Village of Tinley Park Subdivision
regulations.
Residential buildings converted from rental income property to condominium
ownership or existing multi-family condominium buildings where condominium
units are rented to others owned by one person/organization and being sold to
individual owners.

4. ADDITIONAL REQUIRED FIRE PROTECTION EQUIPMENT

a.

b.

Intermediate Landings. Where applicable approved automatic sprinklers must
be installed on intermediate landings of all stairwells.

Electrical Rooms. Water based fire protection in electrical rooms or any room
containing equipment that has a serious life hazard shall be provided with a
separate supervised control valve located outside the entrance into the room.




Location of the supervised control must be no higher than 80 inches above the
floor.

Water_supplies. Water supplies for automatic sprinkler systems shall comply
with this section and the standards referenced in Section 903.3.1 of the IBC. The
potable water supply shall be protected against backflow in accordance with the
requirements of this section and the Illinois Plumbing Code. Safety factors for
water-based fire protection system design must be a minimum of 10 pounds per
square inch (psi) or 10 percent of the demand whichever is greater.

. NFPA 13R and 13D fire protection systems. NFPA 13R and 13D fire protection
systems are prohibited in hotel, motel and new boarding house type occupancies
unless specified by the Deputy Chief of Fire Prevention.

Discharge of Inspector’s Test Connections and Main Drains. Inspector’s Test
Connections and Main Drains_shall discharge directly to the outside to an area
capable of handling a full system flow. Unless authorized by the Deputy Chief of
Fire Prevention discharge into a floor drain or sink is prohibited.

Rubbish and Linen Chutes. An automatic sprinkler system shall be installed at
the top of rubbish and linen chutes and in their terminal rooms. Chutes extending
through two or more floors shall have additional sprinkler heads installed within
such chutes at alternate floors. Chute sprinklers shall be provided with listed
guards and be accessible for servicing.

Buildings 55 feet or More in Height. An automatic sprinkler system shall be
installed throughout buildings with a floor level that is located 55 feet or more
above the lowest level of fire department vehicle access.

. Alternate Power Source Required. New buildings or structures regulated by the
International Building Code and the IFC which are equipped with a fire pump
shall have an alternate power source designed, installed and maintained to
properly power and operate such fire pump in the event of an interruption of usual
and customary electric power service.

During construction. Automatic sprinkler systems required during construction
and demolition operations shall be provided in accordance with the International
Fire Code.

Other required suppression systems. In addition to the requirements of Section
903.2 of the IBC, the provisions indicated in Table 903.2.11.6 shall also require
the installation of a suppression system for certain buildings and areas.

STORZ REQUIREMENTS. When approved by the Deputy Chief of Fire
Prevention, a 5-inch STORZ fire department connection is required for all fire
sprinkler installations.

TABLE 903.2.11.6
ADDITIONAL REQUIRED SUPPRESSION SYSTEMS



SECTION SUBJECT
F402.8 Covered malls
F403.2, F403.3 High-rise buildings
F404.3 Atriums
F405.3 Underground structures
F407.5 Group 1-2
F410.6 Stages
F411.4 Special amusement buildings
F412.2.5, Aircraft hangars
F4.2.2.5
F415.6.2.4 Group H-2
F416.4 Flammable finishes
F417.4 Drying rooms
F507 Unlimited area buildings
F508.2 Incidental use areas
F1025.6.2.3 Smoke-protected assembly seating IFC
IFC Sprinkler system requirements as set forth in
Section F903.2.11.6 of the International Fire
Code

5. VARIANCE FOR FIRE PROTECTION COMPLIANCE
a. Inregard to existing buildings that are a minimum of three thousand 3,000 square feet
in area which were made subject to the requirements of Section 709 pursuant to
amendments adapted during 2007, said existing buildings shall be brought into
compliance with Section 709.3 on the following dates:
i. Within five (5) years of a change in the ICC Use Group applicable to said
existing building, based on the use of said existing building;
i1. Within five (5) years of a change in the ownership of said existing building.

Delete Section F903.4.1 and F907.6.5 of the International Fire Code 2012 and substitute
therefore:

6. MONITORING
a. All required fire protection and or life safety systems detection systems shall be
connected to the approved wireless fire alarm transmission system authorized and
supervised by the Village of Tinley Park. As required, alarm, supervisory, trouble and
water flow signals shall automatically transmit distinctly different signals to the
approved supervising station. All transmitting equipment installed on the premises of
the alarm holder shall be maintained at all times and in good working order. Any
required fees or charges for such systems or system connections shall be paid when
due.
b. EXCEPTIONS:
1. Single and Multi-Station Smoke Alarms required by Section 907.2.11 of the 2012
International Fire Code.
ii. Smoke detectors in Group I-3 occupancies
iii. Automatic Sprinkler systems in one- and two-family dwellings



c. Temporary (30 days or less) use of approved third party central station monitoring or
approved licensed and contracted fire watch personnel is allowed should the failure of
an approved fire alarm signal be received at the Village of Tinley Park Alarm Center
during the final inspection process for a new occupancy. Approval is based on NFPA
72 (2010 edition) requirements for Central Station:

e Installation of fire alarm transmitters

Alarm, guard, supervisory, and trouble signal monitoring

Retransmission

Associated record keeping and reporting

Testing and maintenance

Runner service: Granting a temporary exception must be applied for in writing by

the alarm holder and approved by the Fire Prevention Administrator.

Delete Section F907.2 of the International Fire Code 2012 and substitute therefore:
7. REQUIRED FIRE ALARM SYSTEMS
a. An approved fire alarm system installed in accordance with provisions of this code and
NFPA 72 shall be required in all buildings located in the Village of Tinley Park and
shall be supervised by the Village of Tinley Park. The type and quantity of initiating
and notification devices shall be approved by the Fire Prevention Bureau. Occupant
notification shall be in accordance with Section 907.5, unless other requirements are
provided by another section of this code.
i. EXCEPTIONS:
1. Attached and Detached Single Family dwellings occupied as a residential
occupancy.
2. Buildings or structures classified as Utility and all levels are above grade.
3. Normally unoccupied structures or buildings.

8. ADDITIONAL REQUIRED FIRE ALARM EQUIPMENT

a. Unless allowed by the Deputy Chief of Fire Prevention or designee all required
commercial fire alarms authorized and supervised by the Village of Tinley Park 911
Dispatch Center shall be approved addressable type systems. This shall include
connection of, for alarm signal purposes, water flow, heat/smoke detection (when
applicable), duct detection, hood and duct extinguishing systems, any fixed
extinguishing system, manual pull stations and any supervisory signaling equipment
such as valve tamper devices, low air etc.

b. Required fire alarm panels shall be located directly adjacent to the main entrance of a
building or structure. Approved remote annunciator equipment can be provided in a
location designated by the Deputy Chief of Fire Prevention. Remote annunciator
panels shall be provided and located at the discretion of the Deputy Chief of Fire
Prevention. The Deputy Chief of Fire Prevention may also require additional
equipment signaling as necessary.

c. Occupant Notification: Occupant notification using approved notification devices of a
fire alarm condition must be provided for all occupancies where fire alarm systems
are required. Means of initiation must be by manual and automatic means as approved
by the Deputy Chief of Fire Prevention.



d. The secondary power supply capacity for supervising station facilities and equipment
shall be capable of supporting operations for a minimum of 60 hours.

9. PRIVATE OR NON-REQUIRED FIRE ALARM SYSTEMS

a. Private properties with Fire Alarm Systems not required or approved by the Village
of Tinley Park must accept responsibility for Fire Department accessibility to the
property. When the Fire Department is called and responds to a fire alarm condition
by a private alarm contractor or equipment, the responsibility of the Fire Department
is to investigate the alarm. Entry may be made to determine the nature of the alarm.
Any damage incurred at the time of entry is the sole responsibility of the alarm
owner.

b. Fire Alarms (commercial or residential) which are not required by the Village shall
register with the Fire Prevention Bureau. Licensed Alarm Contractors must provide
the following information for new installations and any existing installations. If the
information is not available through the contractor it is the property owners/tenant’s
responsibility to provide the following:

J Property owner/business owner’s name.
Alarm location and type.
Emergency contacts — cell phone numbers and mailing address.
Licensed Contractor responsible for maintenance.
Any additional information as needed as determined by the Deputy Chief
of Fire Prevention.

10. SMOKE DETECTOR AND ALARM SYSTEMS
a. In addition to Occupant Use Groups (defined by the 2012 International Building Code)
that require approved smoke/early warning detection systems, the following Use
Groups/Occupancies must have approved early warning systems installed throughout
the premises and in each sleeping unit. It shall be the responsibility of the owner of
each new and existing occupied building of the following Use Groups, as defined in
the International Building Code 2012, to install smoke detectors that are wired in
series, powered by house current and with a battery back-up:
e Residential Mixed Use

All Institutional Use Groups

Educational Facilities

Use Group R-1, residential

Use Group R-2, residential

Residential Care Facilities

Bed and Breakfast Occupancies

Daycare including Adult Day Care

b. As required, all systems must comply with requirements of Section 709 of this code,
System Connection to Central Station. It shall be the responsibility of the owner of
each new and existing occupied building of use group R-2 (residential multi-family -
as defined in the International Building Code 2012 (State of Illinois Smoke detector
Act, 425ILCS60), use group R-3 residential one and two-family residences - as
defined in the International Building Code 2012 (State of Illinois Smoke Detector



Act, 4251LCS60), and all other single family and multiple-family housing units in the
Village, to install smoke detectors that are wired in series and powered by house
current with battery back-up in each unit and each sleeping area within a unit.

All existing and occupied buildings covered by this Ordinance shall be placed in
compliance with all the terms and provisions of this Ordinance no later than July 1,
1988; all buildings of new construction which are covered by this Ordinance and for
which the first day of occupancy is after December 31, 1987, shall comply with all
the terms and provisions of this Ordinance.

Delete Section F905.3 and exception of the International Fire Code 2012 and substitute

therefore:

11. STANDPIPES
a. Unless specified in the adopted codes and standards or otherwise approved by the Fire
Code Official, manual wet Class I standpipe systems shall be required:

1.

ii.

1il.

In all multi-story buildings regardless of construction type classification which
exceed either two (2) stories above the lowest level of fire department vehicle
access, or twenty-seven (27) feet above the lowest level of fire department vehicle
access.

The building is arranged/constructed to exceed one-hundred fifty feet (150°)
vertically and horizontally from any entrance to the most remote portion of the
building. All standpipe systems shall be installed in accordance with all applicable
provisions of the International Fire Code, 2012 and NFPA 14 Standards.

All required standpipe systems shall be installed in accordance with NFPA standards
and be capable of being reached within one-hundred fifty feet (150°) from each hose
outlet. The distance shall be measured along the normal path of unobstructed travel
including vertical travel. Additional Class I standpipes outlets shall be installed
adjacent to all exit discharge doors and required by the adopted code and as
approved by the Fire Code Official.

Delete Sections F910.1 exception F910.2.1 of the International Fire Code 2012.

12. SMOKE AND HEAT REMOVAL

a.

b.

Emergency heat and smoke venting shall be required for the following ICC
Occupancy Use Groups:
i. ICC Factory Occupancy Use Group
ii. ICC High Hazard Occupancy Use Group
iii. ICC Storage Occupancy Use Group
iv. ICC Mercantile Occupancy Use Group, where buildings exceeding 20,000
square feet as defined in Section 706-B.4.
v. Any building exceeding 35 feet in height from the lowest Fire Department
access or three stories ground level.
Where Section 709.12.a applies, venting shall be required for roof attic areas of
combustible construction.



c. Venting may be accomplished by gravity and/or mechanical methods. All venting
shall be designed in accordance with nationally recognized standards. All venting
methods shall be approved by the Fire Prevention Bureau.

d. In addition to Section F910.4 for compartmented areas, mechanical venting shall be
based on the cubic square footage of exit components, an expected fire area, area(s)
directly adjacent to an expected fire area as approved by the Fire Prevention
Administrator.

e. Mechanical Venting Control Panel. Manual controls shall be located at a designated
panel and only be available to fire personnel. Location of controls shall be determined
by the Fire Prevention Administrator.

f.  Manual Controls. Depending on equipment design, smoke and heat removal shall
have control capabilities as detailed in Section F909.16.2.

g. Venting requirements by gravity shall be a ratio of 1:200 for all occupancies except

use groups F, S, and H which shall be a minimum of 1:100, unless otherwise

specified in the ICC International Building Code 2012.

Where required smoke and heat vents shall be installed in the roofs of one-story
buildings or portions thereof occupied for the uses set forth:
1. Building and portions thereof used as Group F, H. and S regardless of size.

ii. Buildings and portions thereof used in Group M exceeding a total area of
20,000 square feet as defined in Section 706 B 4 of the Tinley Park
Comprehensive Building Code.

iii. Any building of any use group except R-3 exceeding 35 feet in height from the
lowest Fire Department access or three stories above ground level.

iv. Where Section 912 of this code applies, smoke venting is required for any
combustible roof (attic) area for any use group except R-3.

v. Smoke and heat vents shall be listed and labeled to indicate compliance with
U.L. 793. Gravity venting requirements for all use groups shall have 1:200
ratio.

vi. EXCEPTION:

See Table F910.3 for Groups F, S. and H. If an occupancy use group is not
indicated it shall have a minimum 1:100 ratio

=3

SECTION 708-MEANS OF EGRESS
Add the following to Section F1006.3.1.2 of the International Fire Code 2012:

1. All circuit breakers or approved means of disconnect utilized for emergency lighting or
other emergency egress components shall be labeled using approved methods.

Add the following to Section F1006.3.1.3 of the International Fire Code 2012 and substitute
therefore:

2. For new construction, an on-site generator shall be the source of the exit and emergency
lighting system for all new occupancies where the construction of said structure exceed
more the four (4) stories above grade. Generators designated as the source of emergency
lighting shall be installed in an approved weather-proof type enclosure.



Delete Section F1011.3 of the International Fire Code 2012 and substitute therefore:

3. Exit signs shall be internally or externally illuminated. Installation of all new and
replacement internally illuminated, one hundred and twenty (120) volt and totally self-
contained battery-operated installations of required exit sign devices shall be of LED type
fixtures. All circuits breakers utilized for exit signs or other emergency egress
components must be labeled using approved methods.

Delete Section F1024.1 of the International Fire Code 2012 and substitute therefore:
4. For new construction, approved luminous egress path markings delineating the exit path
shall be provided in buildings greater than four stories above grade and greater than one
story below ground for all occupancies.

SECTION 709-CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS FOR EXISTING BUILDINGS
Delete Sections F1103.5 -F1103.6, F1103.7 —F1103.7.7, F1104.3 -F1104.4 of the International
Fire Code 2012.
SECTIONS 710-722

RESERVED

SECTION 723-SELF SERVICE GAS STATION
See Illinois Administrative Code Section 170.150, Self-Service — No Self-Service without a
Permit; Procedures and Regulations should be referenced for requirements.

The following requirements are in addition to the requirements of Chapter 23 of the Adopted
2012 International Fire Code. Any conflicts in code language shall be resolved as specified in
Section 701.2.a of the VoTP amended code.

Delete Section F2304.1 of the International Fire Code 2012 and substitute therefore:

1. Supervision of dispensing: the dispensing of fuel at motor fuel-dispensing facilities shall
be conducted by a qualified attendant or shall be under the supervision of a qualified
attendant at all times in accordance with F2304.3. Service station attendant must have a
clear and unobstructed view of self-service pumps and must have an approved means to
communicate at all service islands.

2. Attendant Location: Service station attendant must have a clear and unobstructed view
of self-service pumps and must have an approved means to communicate at all service
islands.

Add Section F2305.2.4.1 of the International Fire Code 2012:

3. Emergency Disconnect switches. Switches as required in Section 2302.2 must be
installed in a visible and accessible location on the outside and inside of the building. The
interior location of the disconnect switch must be located in at the service counter within
reach of the attendant.

Delete Section F2305.5 of the International Fire Code 2012 and substitute therefore:
4. Approved portable fire extinguishers complying with Section 906 shall be provided,
located and installed in the following locations. All fire extinguisher locations must be



plainly marked using approved signs or stencils. Minimum height of letters, numerals or
symbols should be no less than 1 inch.

a.
b.

2-A:20-B:C sized extinguisher shall be provided at each service island.
4-A:60-B:C sized extinguisher shall be provided at the attendant control
station.

4-A:60-B:C sized extinguisher shall be provided adjacent to the emergency
shut-off switch installed on the exterior of the building.

Delete Section F2305.6 of the International Fire Code 2012 and substitute therefore:
5. Warning signs: Warning signs using one-inch letters shall be conspicuously posted at
each service island within sight of each dispenser/service island in the fuel-dispensing
area and shall state the following:

a.
b.
C.

&

=0 O

No Smoking.

Shut off motor

Discharge your static electricity before fueling by touching a metal surface
away from the nozzle.

To prevent static charge, do not reenter your vehicle while gasoline is
pumping.

It a fire starts, do not remove nozzle-back away immediately

It is unlawful and dangerous to dispense gasoline into unapproved containers.
It is unlawful and dangerous to dispense gasoline without attendant on duty.
No filling of portable containers in or on a motor vehicle. Place container on
ground before filling.

SECTIONS 724 — 749 :RESERVED

SECTION 750-HAZARDOUS MATERIALS

The following requirements are in addition to the requirements of Chapter 50 of the Adopted
2012 International Fire Code. Any conflicts in code language shall be resolved as specified in
Section 701.2.a of the VoTP amended code.

1. ROUTING

a. The purpose of this section is to establish hazardous material transportation routes
within the Village of Tinley Park which will enable those who transport hazardous
materials to and from locations within the Village to do so in compliance with the
requirements as they may from time to time be amended which are hereby
incorporated herein as if enacted by the President and Board of Trustees of the
Village of Tinley Park.

b. Hazardous materials access route. As used herein, the phrase "hazardous material

access route" shall mean any street which has been designated pursuant to this section
for the purpose of providing vehicular access from the primary hazardous material
route to locations within the Village of Tinley Park where hazardous materials are
used, produced, or stored.



c. Primary hazardous materials route. As used herein, the phrase "primary hazardous
materials route" shall mean when signs are posted giving notice thereof, the system of

streets composed of the following:

STREET FROM TO
Duvan Drive 175th Street Harlem Avenue
Oak Park Avenue 159th Street Harlem Avenue
Harlem Avenue 159th Street Vollmer Road
183rd Street Ridgeland Avenue LaGrange Road
175th Street Route 45 Central Avenue
94th Avenue 183rd Street 171st Street
171st Street Route 45 Oak Park Avenue
159th Street 8800 West 6600 West
80th Avenue 159" Street St Francis Road
Route 45 171% Street Interstate 80
Oak Forest Avenue 167™ Street South Street
Ridgeland Avenue Vollmer Road Oak Forest Avenue
167th Street 8800 West Oak Forest Avenue
Interstate 80 Route 45 Interstate 57

2. GENERAL PROHIBITIONS

a.

Every person who uses, produces, or stores hazardous materials at a location within
the Village of Tinley Park, shall request from the Fire Prevention a hazardous
materials access route to and from such location.
Every motor vehicle which displays or is required to display a hazardous materials
placard, shall be operated within the Village only on the primary hazardous material
route or upon a hazardous material access route established pursuant to the provisions
of this section.
Every operator of a motor vehicle which displays or is required to display a hazardous
material placard, who does not know the primary hazardous material route of the
Village of Tinley Park, or the hazardous material access route to and from the
location in the Village from which he is coming or to which he is destined, shall
request directions concerning said routes from the Tinley Park Fire Prevention
Bureau, before operating said vehicle in the Village of Tinley Park.
No motor vehicle which displays or is required to display a hazardous material
placard shall be operated on any street within the Village of Tinley Park unless such
vehicle is coming from or destined for a location within the Village of Tinley Park.
Over night parking should be prohibited unless delivery to company receiving goods
has been made and said parking is at the site of the delivery.
Exceptions. The following types of vehicles are exempt from the provisions of this
section:

i. Placarded vehicles making residential deliveries of home heating fuel.

il. Placarded vehicles making residential deliveries of medical supplies.



iii.  For purposes of picking up or delivering non-hazardous materials at a location
within the Village which is not required under the provisions of this section to
request a hazardous materials access route, placarded vehicle may use the
most direct route to and close as possible to said location on the primary
hazardous materials transportation route or a hazardous materials access route
assigned to a business in the vicinity of said location.

3. PROCEDURE FOR ASSIGNING A HAZARDOUS MATERIAL ACCESS ROUTE

a.

Any person who uses, produces, or stores hazardous materials at a location within
the Village shall be assigned a hazardous materials transportation route after he has
submitted a request for such a report to the Tinley Park Fire Prevention Bureau on a
form provided by the Fire Prevention Bureau. Upon receipt of such a request, the
Fire Prevention Bureau shall assign to such person, a route which in the judgment of
the Fire Prevention Bureau and all other interested Departments, is consistent with
and implements the purpose of this section. Temporary routes may be approved
when deemed necessary by the Tinley Park Fire Prevention Bureau.

4. PENALTY FOR VIOLATING THIS SECTION

a.

Any person who violates any provision of this section shall upon conviction be
subject to a fine of no less than one-hundred dollars ($100.00) and no more than
seven hundred fifty dollars ($750.00).

Any person who uses, produces, or stores hazardous materials and who fails to
request a hazardous materials access route, shall be deemed in violation of this
division for each and every day after the effective date of this section during which
such person was engaged in such use, production, or storage, until such time as he
submits such a request to the Fire Prevention Bureau. Each day that such a person is
deemed in violation of this section shall constitute a separate offense which upon
conviction shall subject the person to a fine of no less than one hundred dollars
($100.00) and no more that seven hundred fifty dollars ($750.00).

Any operator of a motor vehicle which is required to display a hazardous materials
placard who violates any provision of this division while operating said vehicle
without said placard properly displayed, shall, upon conviction be subject to a fine of
no less than One Hundred dollars ($100.00) and no more that Seven Hundred Fifty
dollars ($750.00). Delete Section F5003.3.1.4 of the International Fire Code 2012
and substitute therefore

5. DISCHARGE EMERGENCIES

a.

b.

Declaration of nuisance: The actual or threatened discharge of hazardous materials
within the Village of Tinley Park is hereby declared a nuisance.

Liability for abatement of nuisance (Spiller Pays): Any person who owns, leases,
operates, or controls any facility, equipment, or vehicles from which a discharge of
hazardous materials has occurred or is threatened to occur, shall be liable to the
Village for any expenses incurred by the Village in connection with preventing,
cleaning up, or disposing of or attempting to prevent, clean up, or dispose of any
such discharge or threatened discharge.



6. DISPOSAL
Definitions. Unless the context otherwise clearly requires, as used in this section:

a.

1.

ii.

iil.

1v.

Prohibition: It shall be unlawful for any person to dispose of hazardous
materials within the Village of Tinley Park unless such disposal is
conducted in accordance with applicable state and federal and Village of
Tinley Park, and Metropolitan Water Reclamation District rules and
regulations and regulations pertaining to the disposal of such materials.
Declaration of nuisance: The unlawful disposal of hazardous material
within the Village of Tinley Park is hereby declared a nuisance.

Liability for abatement of nuisance: Any person who engages in the
unlawful disposal of hazardous Materials shall be liable to the Village for
any and all expenses incurred by the Village of Tinley Park in connection
with cleaning up and lawfully disposing of said materials.

Penalties and fines: In addition to the liability imposed by the preceding
section, any person who unlawfully disposes of hazardous material within
the Village of Tinley Park shall upon conviction, be subject to a fine of no
less than One Hundred dollars ($100.00) and no more than Seven Hundred
Fifty dollars ($750.00).

7. RIGHT TO KNOW

a. Definitions: Unless the context otherwise clearly requires, as used in this section:

1.

1l

Hazardous material means a substance or material in a quantity and form
determined by the United States Department of Transportation, Metropolitan
Water Reclamation District to be capable of posing an unreasonable risk to
health and safety or property.

Person means any natural person or individual, governmental body, firm,
association, partnership, co-partnership, joint venture, company, corporation,
joint stock company, trust, estate, or any other legal entity, or their legal
representative, agent, or assigns.

b. References

1.
il.

1il.

1v.

The Code of Federal Regulations, 29, C.F.R. 1910.1000 through 29 C.F.R.
2920.2500, inclusive.

The Illinois Revised Statutes, Chapter 48, Paragraph 2515.

The United States Department of Health and Human Services, Public Health
Service National Toxicology Program, Second Annual Report on Carcinogens
- December, 1981and its periodic updates.

A list of toxic substances promulgated by the Director of the Illinois
Department of Labor pursuant to Illinois Revised Statutes, Chapter 48,
Paragraphs 2503 and 2504. (Ordinance. No.1986-118-, 6-2-86)

8. DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS
Every person who used, produces, or stores hazardous materials or toxic substances at a
location within the Village, shall provide the Fire Department of the Village with all
information concerning the use, production, and storage of such materials which such a
person is required to provide a local Fire Department under all governing laws and



regulations enacted or promulgated from time to time by either the State of Illinois or the
United States of America and Departments thereof.

9. PENALTIES
Any person who violates the provisions of this section shall upon conviction be subject to
a fine of no less than One Hundred dollars ($100.00) and no more than Seven Hundred
Fifty dollars ($750.00).

Each day that a person is deemed in violation of this section shall constitute a separate
offense which upon conviction shall subject the person to a fine of no less than One
Hundred dollars ($100.00) and no more than Seven Hundred Fifty dollars ($750.00) for
each offense.

10.

STORAGE
Every person who stores hazardous materials at any location within the Village of
Tinley Park shall store such material in accordance with the requirements
established for such storage by the Fire Prevention Code of the Village of Tinley
Park.

SECTIONS 751-755 RESERVED

SECTION 756-FIREWORKS AND EXPLOSIVES

The following requirements are in addition to the requirements of Chapter 56, Explosives and
Fireworks, Sections 5608 and 5609 of the Adopted 2012 International Fire Code. Any
conflicts in code language shall be resolved as specified in Section 701.2.a of the VoTP
amended code.

1. DEFINITIONS

a.

“STATE ACTS.” For purposes of this Chapter, the term State Acts shall be
used to collectively refer to the Fireworks Use Act (425 ILCS 35/0.01 et seq.)
and Pyrotechnic Distributor and Operator Licensing Act (225 ILCS 227/1 et

seq.).”

2. UNLAWFUL TO SELL, POSSESS OR USE EXCEPTIONS

a.

Except as otherwise provided herein, it shall be unlawful for any person, firm, co-
partnership, corporation, or other entity to possess, sell at retail, offer for sale, store,
use, manufacture, set-off or explode any fireworks, as defined above, and including
display fireworks, flame effects, or consumer fireworks, as those terms are defined in
the Fireworks Use Act (425 ILCS 35/0.01), in the Village at any time, or to allow
any such acts on property owned by that person, firm, co-partnership, corporation or
other entity within the Village. Where the definition of fireworks set forth above in
this Section is more restrictive than the definitions set forth in the State Acts, the
definition in this Section shall control.

The Chief of the Fire Department shall have the right to issue a permit for
pyrotechnic displays of fireworks, provided the applicant for such a permit complies
with the regulations established for the issuance of such a permit.



Nothing contained in this Section shall be construed to prohibit the use of fireworks
by railroads, public utilities, public and private carriers, or other transportation
agencies, for signal purposes or illumination, or the sale or use of blank cartridges
for show or theater, for signal or ceremonial purposes in athletics or sports, or for use
by veteran or military organizations.

The fire official shall seize, take, remove, or cause to be removed at the expense of
the owner, all stocks of fireworks possessed, offered or exposed for display or sale
which are stored or held in violations of this Section.

3. PERMITTED PYROTECHNIC DISPLAYS

a.

Permit Required for Pyrotechnic Displays. Pyrotechnic displays of fireworks, as
such displays are defined herein and in the State Acts, may take place within the
Village only with a permit issued by the Village in compliance with this Chapter,
the State Acts, and other applicable State and local regulations.

Pyrotechnic Display Applications. An application for a pyrotechnic display permit
must be submitted to the Village Clerk in writing by a person eighteen (18) years
old or older at least fifteen (15) days in advance of the date of the planned
pyrotechnic display, unless such 15-day requirement is waived by the Chief of the
Fire Department. The application must identity the lead pyrotechnic operator and
pyrotechnic distributor, as those terms are defined in the State Acts. The
application must contain, and any permit issued shall be subject to, an undertaking
by the pyrotechnic operator and sponsoring organization to indemnify and hold
harmless the Village and its officers, employees and agents from and against any
and all liability in any way arising out of or resulting from the pyrotechnic display.
In addition, no permit for a pyrotechnic display shall issue without:

i. Payment of a fee in the amount of $500. Units of local government, whose
jurisdiction includes a portion of the Village of Tinley Park shall be exempt
from the payment of such fee. The State and Counties are not considered to be
units of local government for purposes of this exemption.

ii. A certificate of insurance indicating that the applicant has general liability
insurance covering bodily injury, property damage, and other claims related to
the pyrotechnic display in a sum not less than $1,000,000 with an insurer
licensed to do business in the State of [llinois. The insurance coverage shall be
an occurrence-based policy, and shall cover all periods of time when
pyrotechnic materials are in the insured’s actual and constructive possession.
The certificate of insurance shall name the Village and its officers, employees
and agents as additional insured. In addition, the certificate shall explicitly
state on its face that the general liability coverage includes coverage relative to
firework displays and that the policies shall remain in effect for at least 30 days
after the firing;

1ii.  Verification that the lead pyrotechnic operator and distributor listed in the
application possess valid State pyrotechnic operator and distributor licenses;

iv. Verification that all pyrotechnic assistants will be at least 18 years of age at the
time of the display;

v. An inspection of the site by the Chief of the Fire Department or his designee
and submission by the Chief or his designee of his written determination, that




the display shall not be hazardous to property or endanger any person or
persons and that the display can be performed in full compliance with
applicable State and local regulations and the rules adopted by the State Fire
Marshal.

vi. Submission of a cash bond to the Village in the amount of $1,000 conditioned
on compliance with all Village codes and ordinances.

vil. The submission to the Fire Department of sufficient information so that the
Fire Department may file records relative to the pyrotechnic display with the
State Fire Marshal’s office.

PERMIT ISSUANCE

a. Permit Issuance. A permit may issue upon compliance with the above requirements.
Permits shall be signed by the Chief of the Fire Department or his designee, and
shall identify the lead pyrotechnic operator. Upon issuance, the possession, sale,
storage, use or distribution of fireworks for such a display shall be lawful for the
purpose of conducting the permitted display only. Permits issued pursuant to this
Section are non-transferable to another person or entity.

CONDUCT OF PERMITTED PYROTECHNIC DISPLAYS.
a. A permitted pyrotechnic display of fireworks must be conducted in accordance
with the following requirements and conditions:

1.

1l

1il.

1v.

V1.

Vil.

Viil.

iX.

The lead pyrotechnic operator of a display must have a copy of the display
permit in his possession at all times during the preparation for, conduct of,
and clean-up following a pyrotechnic display.

Due to the hazardous nature of materials involved, no fireworks shall be
stored on location prior to set up and show time.

Pyrotechnic assistants setting up and shooting the fireworks display should
be 18 years of age or older and be experienced and professional shooters.
Sufficient security should be provided to keep all persons except company
employees and authorized Village officials a minimum of 500 feet from
the display during set up and firing or a minimum distance indicated by
NFPA 1123 Code for Fireworks Display, whichever is greater.

The pyrotechnic distributor of the fireworks should have a current Illinois
permit number.

There shall be no trees, utility poles, or any type of obstruction within 50
feet of the firing range. The firing range shall be no less than 200 feet
from railroads, highways, or general public or other structures, nor 600
feet from any hospital, asylum, or infirmary.

The grass must be wetted down around the mortar eight hours before
firing. This requirement may be waived by the Fire Chief or his designee
if weather conditions warrant.

The Fire Department shall be at the sight of the firing with equipment and
manpower as necessary.

In-ground mortars for launching pyrotechnics are prohibited.

The lead pyrotechnic operator, loaders, shooters and other pyrotechnic
assistants shall wear tight-fitting noncombustible clothing and shall not



have been under the influence of alcoholic beverages, drugs, or controlled
substances for 12 hours before firing.
xi.  No firing shall take place if the wind is at 20 miles an hour or above.
xii.  All pyrotechnic displays indoor or outdoor shall be electronically ignited.
xiii.  The pyrotechnic operator of the display and pyrotechnic distributor of the
pyrotechnics used therein shall be responsible for the recovery of
fireworks (aerial displays that did not fire).

1. Recovery or the search for un-fired displays shall start immediately
or, at a minimum, at sunrise.

2. The area of a misfired shell shall be guarded by the pyrotechnic
operator at their cost from the time of the misfiring until the discovery
of the shell.

3. The cost of recovering the shell shall be borne by the pyrotechnic
distributor.

b. The pyrotechnic display must be conducted in full compliance with NFPA
Standard 1126, Standard for Use of Pyrotechnics Before a Proximate Audience,
2006 Edition, which is incorporated herein by reference, to the extent the
Standard is applicable to the specific display. Three copies of the Standard have
been placed on file with the Village Clerk.

c. The pyrotechnic display must be conducted in full compliance with NFPA
Standard 1123, Code for Fireworks Display, 2006 Edition, which is incorporated
herein by reference, to the extent the Standard is applicable to the specific
display. Three copies of the Standard have been placed on file with the Village
Clerk.

d. The pyrotechnic display must be conducted in full compliance with and in
compliance with NFPA Standard 160, Standard for Use of Flame Effects before
an Audience, 2014 Edition, which is incorporated herein by reference, to the
extent the Standard is applicable to the specific display. Three copies of the
Standard have been placed on file with the Village Clerk.

6. FLAME EFFECTS, SPECIAL EFFECTS FIREWORKS; PERMITS

a. Displays of flame effects or special effects fireworks, as those terms are
defined in the State Acts, by professionals in conjunction with theatrical,
musical, or other productions, are subject to the same permitting
requirements as pyrotechnic displays above, and are permitted only upon
issuance of such permit. Conduct of such displays must comply with
applicable NFPA Standards, including, but not limited to, NFPA
Standard 160, Standard for Use of Flame Effects before an Audience,
2014 Edition, and are subject to any additional conditions imposed by
the Chief of the Fire Department that in his estimation are necessary for
the public health, welfare and safety, and must be in strict conformance
with State and local regulations.



7. STORAGE
a. The storage of explosives and blasting agents within the Village is prohibited,
with the exception of fireworks to be used for a permitted pyrotechnic display
within 24 hours when such fireworks are stored in compliance with federal and
State law and local regulations.

SECTION 757-FLAMMABLE LIQUIDS

The following requirements are in addition to the requirements of Chapter 57, Flammable and
Combustible Liquids of the Adopted 2012 International Fire Code. Any conflicts in code
language shall be resolved as specified in Section 701.2.a of the VoTP amended code.

1. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS
a. The storage of flammable liquids in outside above-ground tanks is prohibited. New bulk
plants for the manufacture, use or storage of flammable or combustible liquids are
prohibited. Bulk storage of liquefied petroleum gas is prohibited
b. Bulk storage is hereby defined as a total of over one thousand (1,000) U.S. gallons
capacity in any container or containers of liquefied petroleum gas or propane is
prohibited. Not withstanding the foregoing, the above ground storage of gasoline or fuel
oil may be allowed when approved by a special use permit, provided said above ground
storage meets the following requirements. Liquefied petroleum gas or propane is
prohibited.
c. EXCEPTION: Above ground storage of flammable or combustible liquids is not allowed
except when approved by a special use permit meeting the following requirements:
1. A limit of one (1) tank, no larger than 2,000 U.S. Gallons.
ii. Cannot be located within 1,000 feet of residential property.
iii. Tank and dispensing equipment must meet all NFPA standard requirements and
must have U.L. Underwriters) or Factory Mutual approval.
iv. Meet all requirements of Illinois State Fire Marshal.
v. Storage is prohibited inside any building.
vi. Leak containment must be 110% of the tank volume and must include any
underground piping.
vii. Unprotected steel or fiberglass tanks are prohibited.
viii. A two (2) hour fire rated construction is required for tank construction to protect
from exposure fires.
ix. Approved leak detection must be provided.
x. Spill containment must be provided.
xi. Approved protection will be provided around the tank to insure against damage
from motor vehicles.
xii. Ordinary combustibles, i.e. wood, paper, cloth, trash, etc. must be kept a maximum
of 20 (feet) away from all tank storage.
xiii. Approved only for storage of gasoline or fuel oil.



2.

All Articles in the National Fire Protection Association’s National Fire Code pertaining
to flammable liquids (NFPA 30, Flammable and Combustible Liquids Code) other than
the above shall be complied with.

CHAPTER XIII
PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE

Section-800 900: Deletions and Amendments The following deletions and amendments to the
2012 International Property Maintenance Code shall be incorporated into this chapter.

Section 101.1 Title. Amend this section to read as follows: These regulations shall be
known as the Property Maintenance Code of the Village of Tinley Park, hereinafter
referred to as “this code”.

Section 102.3 Application of other codes. Amend this section to read as follows: Repairs,
additions or alterations to a structure, or changes of occupancy, shall be done in
accordance with the procedures and provisions of the adopted ICC Codes 2012 as
indicated in the Tinley Park Building Code as amended. Nothing in this code shall be
construed to cancel, modify or set aside any provisions of the Tinley Park Zoning Codes.

Section 111.1 Application for appeal: Delete this section and refer to Section 100.L of the
Chapter I of this Code.

Section 111.8 Stays of enforcement. Amend as follows: Appeals of notice and orders
(other than Imminent Danger notices) shall stay the enforcement of the notice and order
until the appeal is heard by the Building Committee.

Section 201.3 Terms defined in other codes. Amend as follows: Where terms are not
defined in this code and are defined in the adopted Tinley Park Comprehensive Building
Code as amended, such terms shall have the meanings ascribed to them as in those codes.

Section 302.4 Weeds. Amend as follows: All premises and exterior property shall be
maintained free from weeds or plant growth in excess of eight (8) inches. All noxious
weeds shall be prohibited. Weeds shall be defined as all grasses, annual plants and
vegetation, other than trees or shrubs provided; however, this term shall not include
cultivated flowers and gardens. Each notice of violation shall be valid for entire calendar
year.

Section 304.7 Roofs and drainage. Amend as follows: The roof and flashing shall be
sound, tight and not have defects that admit rain. Roof drainage shall be adequate to
prevent dampness or deterioration in the walls or interior portion of the structure. Roof
drains, gutters and downspouts shall be maintained in good repair and free from
obstructions. Roof water shall not be discharged in a manner that creates a public
nuisance and the discharge hose must be at least five (5) feet away from all property



lines. Sump pump discharges must be directed to the rear of the property and must be at
least ten (10) feet from property lines.

Section 304.14 Insect Screens. Amend as follows: During the period from April 15" to
October 15", every door, window and other outside opening required for ventilation of
habitable rooms, food preparation areas, food service areas or any areas where products
to be included or utilized in food for human consumption are processed, manufactured,
packaged or stored shall be supplied with approved tightly fitting screens of not less than
sixteen (16) mesh per inch, and every screen door used for insect control shall have self-
closing devices in good working condition.

Exception: Screens shall not be required where other approved means, such as air
curtains or insect repellent fans are employed.

Section 602.3 Heat Supply. Amend as follows (not including exceptions): Every owner
and operator of any building who rents, leases, or lets one or more dwelling units or
sleeping units on terms, either expressed or implied, to furnish heat to the occupants
thereof, shall supply the use of a heat during the period from September 1% to May 15" to
maintain a temperature of not less than 68 degrees F in all habitable rooms, bathrooms
and toilet rooms.

Section 602.4 Occupiable work spaces. Amend as follows: Indoor occupiable work
spaces shall be supplied with heat during the period from September 1% to May 15" to
maintain a temperature of not less than 65 degrees F during the period the spaces are
occupied.

Section 603.1 Mechanical appliances. Amend as follows: All mechanical appliances,
solid fuel-burning appliances, cooking appliances, cooling appliances, refrigeration
appliances, freezing appliances and water heating appliances shall be properly installed
and maintained in a safe working condition, and shall be capable of performing the
intended functions.

Seetion-801- 302.3.1 Parking Lot and Private Commercial Roadways.

It is the intent of this Section to provide a uniform guideline for the maintenance of, and
subsequent submittal requirements for permits for the maintenance of, existing and future private
and public parking lots and private roadways in the Village and for resurfacing and
reconstruction.

Definitions:

Parking Area: The parking area is to be defined as the pavement required for the number
of parking stalls needed to accommodate the business customers and employees of the
owners/tenants served by said parking lots as determined by Village ordinance and/or as



determined and installed by the owner thereof, whichever is greater. The parking area
covers striping, signage, lighting, drainage, and the ingress/egress areas to the business.
The parking area also includes delivery and loading dock pavement. Related landscaped
areas are also included.

Street, Private: Any right of way or area set aside to provide vehicular
access within a development that is not dedicated or intended to be dedicated by the
Village and is also not maintained by the Village.

Application: The parking area shall be inspected and evaluated in unison with the
property owner. After inspection, if the following items are determined to exist the owner
will be notified in writing of the deficiencies.

1) When the pavement begins to fail (i.e., potholes, severe settlement or heaving,
tripping hazards, asphalt failure due to sub-base failure, severe cracking) as
determined by the Code Compliance Officer or Department of Public Works.

2) When the pavement condition presents a hazard to vehicular and/or
pedestrian traffic.

3) When curb and gutter and utility structures have failed.

4) When the striping and signage become unrecognizable or does not meet  current
standards.

5) When there is a change in use, or additions are being made.

6) When sidewalks become out of repair or dangerous (e.g. a difference in  inches

between any two adjacent slabs).

7) All pavements are to meet the minimum requirements of the Village of  Tinley
Park Development Ordinance, the IDOT Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge
Construction, the International Property Maintenance Code, and the Illinois Accessibility
Code, current editions.

Enforcement: After an inspection of the property deficiencies, a written
notice of the deficiencies will be provided to the property owner for
response.

Application/Submittal for Permit.

A copy of the original approved design plans should be used for reference, where
practical. The plan submittals are to delineate the proposed improvements
including repair strategy, extent of repairs or modifications, and location. Four
copies of the repair plans are to be submitted for review and comments, including
a cost estimate.



F.

Repairs

1) Pavement

a)

b)

When pavement removal has been determined to be necessary (i.e.: severe
alligatoring, potholes, etc.), the pavement is to be repaired in accordance with the
Village Development Ordinance and the IDOT standard Specifications for Road
and Bridge Construction, Section 440 Pavement Rehabilitation, current editions.
The pavement shall be neatly saw cut before removal. The asphalt is to be
removed and replaced with the required pavement cross-section. Should the sub-
base be determined to be unstable, a proof roll may be required to determine the
scope of repairs. If the sub-base is determined to be failing after the asphalt has
been removed, then the appropriate repairs will be required.

All patching areas will be re-graded and compacted. The saw cut asphalt edges
require prime before the asphalt is replaced. For areas where the complete asphalt
surface has been removed, aggregate prime coat shall be installed per the current
specifications.

All necessary milling to maintain drainage is to be shown in plan.

Milling is required around any structure that is not to be adjusted or
repaired.

Milling is required were asphalt surface meets concrete surfaces.

Milling is required along all B-6. 12 type curbs. Asphalt overlays within  gutters

are not permitted without Village approval.

g)

h)

)

Milling is required along all "B” type curb if the height of the curb shall be
3 inches or less after the overlay.

Milling of large cracks and sealing, the use of geo-textile fabric for
alligatored areas and longitudinal cracks may be considered by the Village
Engineer for less severe failures.

A butt joint is required where existing pavement meets new pavement.

Pavement area shall be mechanically swept clean before prime coat is applied at
the required application rate. Apply prime, in advance of paving, following the
Village of Tinley Park and IDOT specifications, current editions. The use of
aggregate (sand) for prime is recommended if traffic will be allowed through the
construction area.



k)

A geotechnical engineer is recommended to be present for all paving operations to
verify that the proper compaction is being obtained. Paving is to be installed per
the Village of Tinley Park and IDOT specifications, current editions.

1) Concrete pavement shall be patched in accordance to the IDOT Standard
Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction, Section 442 Pavement
Patching, current edition.

2) Manhole Structures (storm, sanitary, water)
a) All structures in the paved areas shall be reconstructed as
necessary to maintain planned drainage and integrity of the
structure.

b) Broken or deteriorated adjusting rings shall be replaced. Two (2)
adjusting rings totaling eight (8) inches maximum is required.
Adjusting rings shall be of a recycled rubber material.

C) All broken castings and lids shall be replaced.

d) Adjustments to any valve vaults or sanitary sewer structures shall
obtain the approval of the Public Works Department.

e) Use of frame insets shall be permitted.
f) Structures and manhole lids shall be cleaned after paving.
3) Curb and sidewalks

a) All curb that is broken, not allowing proper drainage, missing, or
creates a trip hazard is to be replaced.

b) All sidewalk that is broken, missing, or creates a trip hazard shall
be replaced.

c) Spalled or deteriorated sidewalk shall be replaced when it fails to
meet the 20642 2021 edition of the International Property

Maintenance Code

d) Curb and sidewalk shall be replaced in accordance to the current
Village Standards.

4) Lighting

a) Lighting shall be verified after reconstruction of the parking lot to
assure that damage has not occurred.



5)

6)

7)

Signage and Striping

a)

Signage and Striping shall be updated to the current

standards.

b)

The originally approved striping plans, including the required
amount of handicapped parking stalls as specified by Chapter 11 of
the 2642 2021 edition of the ICC International Building Code,
current edition of the Illinois Accessibility Code and the ADA,
shall be used unless current standards require changes. Any
changes to the plan not otherwise required by the Village shall be
approved by the Building Department.

Handicapped parking spaces and signs shall comply with Chapter
11 of the 2042 2021 edition of the ICC International Building
Code and current edition of the Illinois Accessibility Code.

Two (2) coats of paint are required for re-stripping applications.
All signposts shall conform to the current Village codes and/or
standards and shall be plumb and securely embedded into the

pavement.

All sign panels missing, illegible or lacking reflectivity shall be
replaced to meet the current Village codes and/or standards.

Grading within the parking lot (islands)

a)

b)

All areas within the parking lot shall be graded to drain, and settled
areas filled in.

Plans for any alterations to the existing parking lot islands shall be
submitted for approval.

Traffic Control

a)

b)

It is the responsibility of the permit applicant to provide advance
warning and safe access to the adjacent businesses during
construction.

Proper notification shall be provided prior to the start of
construction.

The construction area shall be properly barricaded, and any
required informational signs shall be provided and maintained.



d) The storage of equipment and construction material shall be
confined to areas that are well lit and properly barricaded. At no
time shall the area block drainage areas, fire hydrants, fire lanes, or
entrance/exits.

Seetion-802 302.8 Motor vehicles. Except as provided for in other regulations, no inoperative,
unlicensed or unregistered motor vehicle shall be parked, kept or stored on any premises, and no
vehicle shall at any time be in a state of major disassembly, disrepair, or in the process of being
stripped or dismantled. Painting of vehicles is prohibited unless conducted inside an approved
spray booth.

Exception: A vehicle of any type is permitted to undergo major overhaul, including body work,
provided that such work is performed inside a structure or similarly enclosed area designed and
approved for such purposes.

Seetion-803 302.8.1 Motor vehicle parking. No motor vehicle shall be parked on any lot unless
parked on a concrete or asphalt driveway.

Seetion-804 308.4 Size of dumpsters/containers. All dumpsters/containers shall be of sufficient
size to accommodate all garbage and disposable items generated by the premises they serve for a
minimum of one (1) pickup per week. If in the judgment of the Code Compliance Officer, the
accumulation of garbage and disposable trash is consistently greater than the capacity of the
provided dumpster/container, the Code Compliance Officer shall direct the responsible person to
increase the size of the dumpster/container or increase the number of pick ups per week. Failure
to comply shall be a violation of this code and result in the fines and penalties as prescribed by
code.

Seetion-805 308.4.1 Dumpster Storage Areas. All outdoor dumpster/container collection and
storage areas shall be completely obscured from surrounding property by a solid screen six (6)
feet in height constructed of masonry, wood, plastic, or material approved by the Code
Compliance Officer and the dumpster/container must be set on a surface of concrete or asphalt.
All existing storage areas not screened in accordance with this code shall comply within one (1)
year of this code or within 6 months of notification by the code official. Any screened areas in a
damaged condition, must be repaired within 14 days of such notification by the Code
Compliance Officer. Failure to obtain an extension to make repairs after the 14 days shall
require the area to conform to this code. Construction dumpsters stored on site for a temporary
period not exceeding 60 days need not conform to this code.

Seetion—806 309.1 Infestation. All structures shall be kept free from insect and rodent
infestation. All structures in which insects or rodents are found shall be promptly exterminated
by approved processes (by a licensed qualified contractor) that will not be injurious to human
health. After extermination, proper precautions shall be taken to prevent re-infestation. A copy
of the most recent exterminator’ report is required, as proof of service.

Seetion-807 309.1.1 Proof of Extermination



The owner of any rental unit shall provide proof that the unit had been exterminated prior to
tenant occupying unit, if requested.

Seetion-808 404.5 Overcrowding
The number of persons occupying a dwelling unit shall not create conditions that, in the opinion
of the Building Official, endanger the life, safety or welfare of the occupants.

Seetion-809 404.5.2 Area for sleeping purposes: Only rooms designated as bedrooms may be
occupied for sleeping purposes and/or considered to be rooms occupied for sleeping purposes.
Every room occupied for sleeping purposes (bedroom) shall contain at least fifty (50) square feet
of floor area for each occupant thereof.

Section 810 Boarding Standards All boarding sheets shall be painted an approved color. The
maximum time for any boarding shall be eight (8) weeks.

Appendix A (Boarding Standards) shall be considered part of this code.

CHAPTER IX - MAINTENANCE OF PUBLIC STREETS AND
RIGHT-OF-WAYS

SECTION 900 — CLEANING OF STREETS
A. General

The current adopted Village of Tinley Park Code of Ordinances is hereby incorporated
into this Code, and is as effective and binding as if fully set forth herein.

SECTION 901 — STREET & ALLEY LITTERING

All streets and alleys adjoining the construction site shall be kept clean and free of all mud,
waste, and debris caused by construction operations. Such materials shall be removed from the
public way immediately.

SECTION 902 - RESPONSIBILITY

The applicant to whom a building permit has been issued shall be responsible for policing all
streets and alleys adjoining the site of his operations and he shall be liable for any fines or
penalties relating to Sections 900, 901, 903 and 904.

SECTION 903 — SPOIL PILES, EXCESS EARTH, BUILDING MATERIALS, ETC.
Streets and public right-of-ways shall not be used for storage of these materials and they shall be

deposited away from the right-of-way a sufficient distance to prevent sliding, spilling, or
washing onto public property.



SECTION 904 — DUMPSTERS, CONTAINERS FOR DEBRIS, ETC.

No dumpsters, or other containers for debris, shall be placed on, or shall project into, any
improved street or public right-of-way.

CHAPTER X - ACCESSIBILITY STANDARDS

SECTION 1000 - GENERAL

The current provisions of "accessibility standards" adopted by the State of Illinois Capital
Development Board and the State of Illinois Accessibility Code 1997 edition and Chapter 11
International Building Code 2012 are hereby adopted as the standards of minimum requirements
for facilities for disabled persons in public buildings, and each and all of the regulations,
provisions, conditions and terms of the aforesaid provisions are hereby referred to, adopted and
made a part hereof, as if fully set out in this Ordinance.

SECTION 1001 - GENERAL - DESIGN

Buildings and facilities shall be designed and constructed to be accessible in accordance with the
current edition of the State of Illinois Accessibility Code and Chapter 11 of the International
Building Code 2012 and the 2009 ICC A117.1.

SECTION 1002 - PLANS & SPECIFICATIONS

No building permit or other official authorization for construction by any person is valid unless
said building permit recites that the plans and specifications for such structure meets the
minimum accessibility requirements provided for by this Ordinance.

SECTION 1003 - AUTHORITY

Any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this Ordinance shall upon
conviction be fined not less than One Hundred ($100.00) Dollars, nor more than Seven Hundred
Fifty ($750.00) Dollars. A separate offense shall be deemed committed on each day during, or
on which, a violation occurs or continues.

CHAPTER XI - DANGEROUS AND ABANDONED
BUILDINGS AND STRUCTURES

SECTION 1100 - DEFINITIONS

As used in this Chapter, the following words and terms shall have the meanings prescribed
herein:



Abandoned Building or Structure

A.

Any vacant building which is frequented by persons who are not lawful occupants
of such structure.

Any vacant building which, by reason of lack of maintenance, or by reason of the
boarding up of its doors and windows, or other reasons, has a substantial adverse
effect on the value of the property in the immediate neighborhood.

A building or structure, the principal use of which has been abandoned, and that
no longer has any function or use.

Any vacant building which has had its doors or windows boarded up for
emergency reasons for a period of in excess of eight (8) weeks.

Building or Structure

Includes anything constructed or erected, the use of which requires permanent of temporary
location on or in the ground including, but not limited to, buildings of all types and use groups,
advertising signs, billboards, swimming pools, sheds, garages, fences or any other manmade

structure.

Dangerous Building or Structure

A.

Any building or structure which is dangerous to the public health or safety
because of its construction or condition, or which may cause or aid in the spread
of disease or which may become a harborage for rodents or other animals, or
which may cause injury to the occupants thereof or of a neighboring building or
structure.

Any building or structure which, because of faulty construction, age, lack of
proper repair or any other cause, constitutes or creates a fire hazard.

A building or structure, the principal use of which has been abandoned, and that
no longer has any function or use.

Any vacant building which has had its doors or windows boarded up for
emergency reasons for a period of in excess of eight (8) weeks.

SECTION 1101 - NUISANCE DECLARED

Any dangerous or abandoned building or structure, as defined by Section 1200 of this Chapter,
within the Village is hereby declared to be a nuisance.



SECTION 1102 - MAINTENANCE/OCCUPANCY OF DANGEROUS OR ABANDONED
BUILDINGS OR STRUCTURES

It shall be unlawful to maintain or permit the existence of any dangerous or abandoned building
or structure in the Village, and it shall be unlawful for the owner, occupant or person in custody
of any dangerous building to permit the same to remain in a dangerous condition, or to occupy
such building or permit it to be occupied while it is or remains in a dangerous condition.

SECTION 1103 - OCCUPYING UNSANITARY BUILDINGS OR STRUCTURES

It shall be unlawful to occupy for human habitation any building or structure which is declared
by the Property Code Compliance Officer, or Health Officer and State Certified Plumbing
Inspector to be unfit for such habitation by reason of defective sanitary conditions until such
conditions have been remedied and the premises approved by the Property Code Compliance
Officer or Health Officer as fit for occupancy.

SECTION 1104 - ACTION BY VILLAGE OFFICIALS

A. Notice: Whenever it shall come to the knowledge of the Building Official, or any Village
Inspector, that a building or structure is in a dangerous or abandoned condition, such
official shall affix a notice on the building or structure, in a conspicuous place on the
exterior wall thereof, informing all persons to keep out of said building.

B. Evacuation of Building: Whenever it shall come to the knowledge of the Building
Official, or any Village Inspector that a dangerous building exists with structural faults
that may cause the imminent collapse of the said building, or if any building is in such
condition as to make it dangerous to the health, morals, safety or general welfare of its
occupants, or that other conditions exist of an emergency nature which may cause the
death or injury of the occupants thereof, such officer shall order the immediate
evacuation of the occupants from any such building.

C. Emergency Repair, Vacation or Demolition: In cases where it reasonably appears that
there is immediate danger to the lie or safety of any person, unless a "dangerous building
or structure", as defined herein, is immediately repaired, vacated or demolished, the
Building Official or his designee shall cause the immediate repair, vacation or demolition
of such dangerous building or structure. The costs of such emergency repair, vacation or
demolition shall be collected in the same manner as provided in Section 1209.

SECTION 1105- AUTHORITY TO CLOSE BUILDING, SUSPEND OR REVOKE
LICENSE

A. The Building Official or any Village Inspector may order that no person shall be
permitted to enter, occupy or use a dangerous building or structure or any portion thereof
until the same shall have been made safe and habitable, and may post such order in a
conspicuous place on the exterior of such building or structure. No person shall enter,
occupy or use (except for the purpose of repairing and making safe) any building or



structure, or portion thereof, after the posting of such notice until such building or
structure or portion thereof shall have been made safe and habitable.

If any building or structure or portion thereof which is dangerous or abandoned shall be
devoted to any purpose requiring a license, the license may be suspended in accordance
with the Municipal Code pending the making of repairs; the Village may begin
revocation proceedings the regard to such license if the owner or person having an
interest in such dangerous or abandoned building or structure or portion thereof fails to
make the same safe immediately and at the Owner’s expense.

SECTION 1106 - COST TO OWNERS

If work has been done and expense incurred by the Village in connection with the repair and
demolition of any dangerous building or structure as provided herein, a bill for such expense
shall be rendered by the Village to the owner, lessee, occupant or agent of the property. The
Village may refuse to issue a permit for the reconstruction, alteration or repair of any such
building or portion thereof until the expenditures incurred by the Village on account of such
repairs or demolition have been repaid.

SECTION 1107 - BOARDING UP BUILDINGS

A.

Every owner or occupant of a building shall maintain all doors and windows therein with
glass or such other glazing materials as are permitted by the Village of Tinley Park
Comprehensive Building Code.

No owner or occupant of a building shall enclose, nor permit the enclosure, of any door
or window by enclosing or covering any door or window with plywood, masonite,
particle board or other lumber product (so-called boarding-up).

Nothing in this Chapter shall prohibit:

1. The boarding-up of buildings damaged by fire, tornado or other
catastrophe for a period not to exceed eight (8) weeks, provided, however,
the period of such permitted board-up may be extended by the Building
Official.

2. The Chiefs’ of Police and Fire Department, Building Official or any
Village Inspector, from causing a building to be boarded up when it is
otherwise authorized by law for such official to do so, or when the public
health, safety and welfare are endangered by the condition of any such
building. Refer to Appendix A of IPMC and Chapter 8 for Boarding
Standards.

SECTION 1108 - ABATEMENT



A. The Building Official or any Village Inspector may, prior to the action of the Board of
Trustees authorized in Section 1209 hereof, give written notice to the owner or owner's
agent of a dangerous or abandoned building or structure, as defined herein, to repair or
demolish it within fifteen (15) days. Where, upon diligent search, the identity or
whereabouts of the owner or owner's agent of any building or structure is not ascertained,
notice mailed to the person or persons in whose name such real estate was last assessed is
sufficient notice under this Section.

B. If, at the end of no less than thirty (30) days from the date of the aforesaid written notice,
the owner or owner's agent has failed to take positive action to put such building or
structure in a satisfactory condition or to demolish it, the Building Official , or their
designee shall notify the Village Manager of such failure, and the Village Manager shall
advise the President and Board of Trustees that a dangerous or abandoned building or
structure exists and that no action has been taken by the owner or owner's agent after
written notice to repair or demolish it.

SECTION 1109 - COURT PROCEEDINGS

After notification to the President and Board of Trustees by the Village Manager that no action is
being taken to demolish or repair a dangerous or abandoned building or structure, the President
and Board of Trustees may authorize the Village Attorney to apply to the Circuit Court of Cook
or Will County for an order authorizing the demolition or repair of a dangerous or abandoned
building or structure, as defined herein, in addition to the penalties provided for in Section 1211,
if the owners thereof, including the lien holders of record after at least thirty (30) days' written
notice by mail to do so, have failed to put such building or structure in a satisfactory condition or
to demolish it. It is not a defense to such cause of action that the building is boarded up or
otherwise enclosed, where, upon diligent search, the identity or whereabouts of the owner or
owners of any such building or structure, including the lien holders of record, is not
ascertainable, notice mailed to the person or persons in whose name such real estate was last
assessed is sufficient notice under this Section. The cost of such demolition or repair incurred by
the Village or by a lien holder of record is recoverable from the owner or owners of such real
estate and is a lien thereon, which lien is superior to all prior existing liens and encumbrances,
except taxes, provided that the Village or the lien holders of record who incurred such cost and
expense shall file notice of lien of such cost and expense incurred in the office of the Recorder of
Deeds of Cook or Will County or in the Office of the Registrar of Titles of Cook or Will County,
if the real estate affected is registered under the Torrens system, whichever is applicable. The
notice must consist of a sworn statement setting out:

A. A description of the real estate sufficient for identification thereof.
B. The amount of money representing the cost and expense incurred.
C. The date or dates when the cost and expense was incurred by the Village or by the lien

holder of record.



Upon payment of the cost and expense, including the cost of recording the notice and, in
addition, the payment of a $50.00 release fee, by the owner of or persons interested in the
property after notice of lien has been filed, a release of the lien by the Village or person in whose
name the lien has been filed shall be delivered to the person so paying the cost and expenses.
The lien may be enforced by proceedings to foreclose as in case of mortgage or mechanic's lien.

SECTION 1110 - ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS

In addition to the other remedies provided for herein, the Village may proceed in accordance
with the provisions of Chapter 24 of the Illinois Revised Statutes, or may pursue any other
remedy provided by law.

SECTION 1111 - PENALTY

The violation of any provision of this Chapter shall be punished by a fine of not less than One
hundred dollars ($100.00), nor more than seven hundred fifty dollars ($750.00). Each day a
violation of any provision of this Chapter shall continue shall constitute a separate offense.
Imposition of any penalty for a violation of this Chapter shall not be construed as a waiver of the
right of the Village to collect the costs of demolition or repair of any dangerous or abandoned
building or structure as provided by the provisions of this Chapter.

CHAPTER XII- DEMOLITION OF BUILDINGS AND
STRUCTURES

SECTION 1200 - GENERAL REQUIREMENTS
A. Scope.

The rules and regulations of this section shall apply to all buildings and structures or portions
thereof, which are to be demolished or removed from the site.

License required. All contractors engaged in the demolition of buildings or structures shall be
licensed by the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois to perform such work.

Bond required. All contractors engaged in the demolition of buildings or structures, prior to
issuance of any permit shall furnish to the Village a bond in amount of $20,000.00, secured by a
surety company which is acceptable to the Village of Tinley Park, Illinois. Bond shall be
payable to the Village and shall, in effect, guarantee that contractor will comply with all
requirements of this code and all applicable Village ordinances and codes.

B. Permits

A permit is required for all work covered by this Chapter.



Exception: The removal of sheds, fences, decks, gazebos and aboveground pools.

SECTION 1201 - PROCEDURES

A.

Service Connections:

The Owner or Designated Agent shall be responsible for complying with all County and
IEPA requirements. Before a permit to demolish can be issued, the owner or agent shall
notify all utility companies having service connections to the building, i.e.; electric, gas,
telephone and other connections.

Water and Sewer Connections:

All water service lines, sanitary and storm sewers shall be disconnected and removed or
severed at the main. After lines are disconnected do not backfill until work has been
approved by Public Works Department of the Village of Tinley Park.

Notify the Village Department of Public Works twenty-four (24) hours in advance before
making any water or sewer disconnections. All water meters shall be returned to the
Department of Public Works.

Removal of Materials:

All wood and other combustible and organic materials shall be removed from the site.
All excess building materials shall be removed from the site.

Backfilling:

All excavations shall be filled-in, level with existing grades, with clean earth, sand, Site
shall be leveled off to provide suitable drainage. Site shall also be seeded and blanketed.

Storage Tanks

Non-hazardous materials. Septic tanks and cisterns and other underground tanks not
containing hazardous materials shall be removed and excavation backfilled or tanks shall
be completely filled with lake sand.

Hazardous materials. Underground storage tanks used for storage of hazardous,
flammable, combustible or other materials listed by the current “Illinois Right-to-Know
Law” shall be removed from the premises within ninety (90) days of Abandonment”. A
copy of the State Fire Marshal’s permit shall be provided to the Village of Tinley Park.

Curbs and Public Walks



Upon completion of work, all existing public walks, curbs and/or Village right-of-ways
shall be restored to a safe and useable condition.

G. Street Openings, etc.

Openings, excavation or tunneling of any street, alley or other public place in the Village shall be
in compliance with CHAPTER IV, Section 400 D.

CHAPTER XIII PERMIT AND INSPECTION FEES

SECTION 1400 - FEE SCHEDULE

The following fees shall be charged for permits, reviews, inspections and services pertinent to
certain buildings, structures or work:

SECTION 1401 - GENERAL BUILDING

A. Building Permit

Work Costing:

1. $100 but less than $1,500 30.00
2. $1,500 but less than $3,000 40.00
3. $3,000 but less than $6,000 50.00
4. $6,000 but less than $12,000 80.00
5.$12,000 but less than $18,000 110.00
6. $18,000 but less than $24,000 130.00
7. $24,000 but less than $30,000 160.00

8. $30,000 or more 6.00 for each $1,000.000r part thereof

B. Plan Check Fees

Work Costing:

1. $100 to $1,500 10.00
2. $1,500 to $3,000 20.00
3. $3,000 to $18,000 40.00

4. $18,000 to $24,000 50.00



5. $24,000 to $30,000 60.00
6. Over $30,000 $2.00 for each $1,000.00 of cost or part thereof.
C. Inspection Fees for Inspections Made by Building Official

An inspection fee of fifty (50.00) dollars shall be charged for each inspection of any building
whether residential, commercial or otherwise, made by the Building Official. In the event it is
necessary for the Building Official to make a re-inspection of any building whether residential,
commercial, or otherwise, necessitated by improper work previously performed by the
contractor, then the fee for said re-inspection can be up to one hundred (100.00) dollars.

D. Certificate of Occupancy and Compliance:
The Fees for Certificates of Occupancy and Compliance shall be $25.00
Condo Conversion Fee shall be $25.00 per unit in each building

F. Payment of Fees:

All Fees for examination of plans, building permits, inspections, and Certificates of Occupancy
shall be paid to the Village prior to the issuance of Building Permit; re-inspection fees shall be
paid prior to issue of Certificate of Occupancy.

1. The Plan Check Fee and/or Filing Fee may be waived at the discretion of the Building
Official.
2. Inspection Fees shall be not waived without approval of the respective inspector.

SECTION 1402 - PLUMBING, SEWER & WATER DISTRIBUTION

A. Inspection Fees:
For each fixture $5.00
For each sprinkler system $15.00 each

plus .50 each for each sprinkler head.

The term plumbing fixture, or fixtures, shall be construed to mean each piece of equipment
requiring a trap and/or having a fixed connection to a waste or drain. Hot water heaters shall
also be construed to be plumbing fixture for purpose of determination of fees. Each floor drain,
catch basis, manhole and yard drain shall be counted as a fixture when located on-site.

Minimum Inspection Fee $50.00

B. Water Tap Fees:



The fees for water tapping are as follows:

Building Size of Service Tap Fee

Water taps 1" $ 100.00

Water taps over 1" $ 100.00 per inch
SECTION 1403 — FIRE & BURGLAR ALARM $50.00 ea.

SECTION 1404 - SWIMMING POOLS

Above Ground Pool $100.00
In Ground Pool $200.00

SECTION 1405 - DRIVEWAYS, WALKWAYS, PATIOS & BRICK MAILBOXES

Driveways $50.00
Widen Driveway $50.00
Service walks $50.00
Patios $50.00
Brick Mailboxes $50.00
SECTION 1406 —- ACCESSORY STRUCTURES

Fences $50.00
Decks $50.00
Sheds $50.00
Shed with concrete floor $50.00
Porches $50.00

SECTION 1407 - SIGNS

Every applicant, before being granted a permit for a sign, shall pay the following permit fee for
each sign to the Village Clerk:

A. $1.00 per square foot of facing, but not less than $25.00 for all signs requiring a permit,
other than temporary signs, canopies, awnings or marquees.

B. $15.00 for a temporary sign other than those described in Tinley Park Zoning Code,
Section IX Temporary signs.

SECTION 1408 - ELEVATOR INSPECTIONS

Fees for inspections of all elevators, escalators and similar equipment will be a pass though
based on the current rate charged by the Inspection Company hired to do the inspections.



SECTION 1409 — PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS

In the event the installation of any public improvement should require the services of the
corporation counsel of the Village for the preparation of agreements, the party desiring to install
such public improvements shall pay to the Village a fee commensurate with the usual and
customary fees charged by attorneys in Cook County, Illinois.

SECTION 1410 — SINGLE & MULTI FAMILY (by units) ALL INCLUSIVE FEES FOR
CERTAIN ITEMS

For single family and multi family (by units) residences, an all-inclusive fee of $550.00 shall be
charged for those items included in Section 2, paragraph 1 - General Building, Section 2,
paragraph 2 - Plumbing, Sewer and Water Distribution (excluding water tap fees), Section 2,
paragraph 3 - Electrical Work and Section 2, paragraph 4 - Heating, Air Conditioning and Gas
Piping. Re-inspection fees, however are not included in the above.

SECTION 1411 - MISCELLANEOUS INSPECTIONS

The fee for any item not covered by the provisions of this CHAPTER shall be commensurate
with the costs incurred by the Village.

SECTION 1412 - ELECTRICAL SERVICE FEES
A. New Services

100 Ampere 30.00
200 Ampere 40.00
400 Ampere 60.00
600 Ampere 70.00
800 Ampere 80.00
1200 Ampere 120.00
1600 Ampere 140.00
2000 Ampere 160.00
3000 Ampere 180.00
4000 Ampere 225.00

B. 15 & 20 Ampere Branch Circuits

0-50 5.00 each

51 or more 2.50 each

Branch circuits exceeding 20 Amperes 8.00 each
C. Motors-Commercial, Industrial & Multi-Family

1% Motor or Appliance $12.00



Each additional $ 6.00
D. Electrical Lamp Posts $10.00 each pole
E. Plan Examination Fee $50.00 per hour
SECTION 1413 GRADING DEPOSITS

A. The cost for residential home grading deposits can now be paid using a corporate check
instead of a cashier’s check by developers with 20 plus units within the development.

B. The builder or homeowner will provide a $500.00 cash bond or cashiers check for each
Single-Family home, to be used as a grading deposit, in exchange for a conditional certificate of
occupancy.

C. The builder will provide a $250.00 cash bond or cashiers check for each Townhouse unit,
to be used as a grading deposit, in exchange for a conditional certificate of occupancy.

D. The builder will provide a $100.00 cash bond or cashiers check for each Condo unit, to
be used as a grading deposit, in exchange for a conditional certificate of occupancy.

SECTION 1414 - LAWN & SPRINKLER FEES $50.00
SECTION 1415 - FIREPLACE PERMITS $50.00
SECTION 1416 — RESIDENTIAL CENTRAL AIR OR HEATING SYSTEM $50.00
SECTION 1417 - COMERCIAL CENTRAL AIR OR HEATING SYSTEMS $75.00
SECTION 1418 - ATTACHED & DETACHED GARAGE PERMITS $125.00

SECTION 1419 - FEES & DOCUMENTS REQUIRING FILING WITH COUNTY
RECORDER OF DEEDS $50.00

SECTION 1420 - PENALITIES

Any person or persons who violate any provision of the Tinley Park Comprehensive Building
Code which requires that they apply for a permit before commencing any or all construction
covered in said Building Code shall be personalized in an amount equal to double the applicable
fee or fees. Nothing in this section shall be construed to limit such other legal remedies as may
be available to the Village under other provisions of this Building Code or as otherwise provided
by law.

SECTION 7

Interpretation



In their interpretation and application, the provisions of this code shall be held to be the
minimum requirements for the promotion of the public health, safety and welfare.
Where the conditions imposed by a provision of this code upon the construction,
alteration or maintenance of buildings or structures are either more restrictive or less
restrictive than comparable conditions imposed by any other provision of this code or of
any other applicable law, ordinance, resolution, rule or regulation, the regulations which
are more restrictive or which impose higher standards or requirements shall govern.
This code is not intended to abrogate any easement, covenant or any other private
agreement, provided that where the regulations of this code are more restrictive or impose
higher standards or requirements than such easement, covenant or other private
agreement, the requirements of this code shall govern.

No building or structure which was not lawfully existing at the time of the effective date
hereof shall become or be made lawful solely by reason of the adoption of these
provisions; and to the extent that, and in any manner that such building or structure is in
conflict with the requirements of this code, said building or structure remains unlawful
hereunder.

Nothing contained in this code shall be deemed to be a consent, license or permit to
locate, construct or maintain any building, structure or facility, or to carry on any trade,
industry, occupation or activity.

SECTION 8

Validity

That if any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this legislation is, for any reason,
held to be unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of
this ordinance. The Village of Tinley Park hereby declares that it would have passed this law,
and each section, subsection, clause or phrase thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or
more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses and phrases be declared unconstitutional.

SECTION 9

Saving Clause

That nothing in this legislation or in the Building Code of Tinley Park (2016) hereby adopted
shall be construed to affect any suit or proceedings impending in any court, or any rights

acquired, or liability incurred, or any cause or causes of action acquired or existing, under any
act or ordinance hereby repealed as cited in Section 1 of this law; nor shall any just or legal right
or remedy of any character be lost, impaired or affected by this legislation.

SECTION 10

Effective Date



That the Village Clerk is hereby ordered and directed to cause this legislation to be published.
That this law and the rules, regulations, provisions, requirements, orders and matters established
and adopted hereby shall take effect and be in full force and effect from and after the date of its
final passage and adoption.

PASSED this 6™ day of September, 2016, by the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley
Park on a roll call vote as follows:

AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT:

APPROVED this 6™ day of September, 2016, by the President of the Village of Tinley
Park.

By:

Village President

ATTEST:

By:

Village Clerk



PAMPHLET

BACK OF PAMPHLET

ORDINANCE NO. 2016-0-055

ESTABLISHING MINIMUM REGULATIONS GOVERNING THE DESIGN,
CONSTRUCTION, ALTERATION, RELOCATION, ENLARGEMENT,
EQUIPMENT, REPAIR, DEMOLITION, REMOVAL, CONVERSION, USE AND
MAINTENANCE OF ALL BUILDINGS AND STRUCTURES; PROVIDING FOR
THE ISSUANCE OF PERMITS, COLLECTION OF FEES, MAKING OF
INSPECTIONS; PROVIDING PENALTIES FOR THE VIOLATION THEREOF FOR
THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, COOK AND WILL COUNTIES, ILLINOIS.

Published in pamphlet form by Order of the Corporate Authorities of the Village of
Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois.






Exhibit #2

Municipal code adoptions comparisons

Municipality code cycle year adoption NEC electrical code
Orland Park 2018 ICC July 2019 2017 NEC
Frankfort 2012 1CC May 2018 2017 NEC
Mokena 2018 ICC 2017 NEC
New Lenox 2018 1CC June 2019 2017 NEC
Oak Forest 2018 1CC April 2019 2018 Chicago Electrical Code
Joliet 2015 1CC March 2018 2014 NEC

Qak Lawn 2018 1CC July 2021 2018 Chicago Electrical Code.



Interoffice

Memo

Date: April 5, 2022

To: Committee of the Whole

From: Michael J. Coleman AIA NCARB - Building Official

Subject: Significant changes to the 2022 Village of Tinley Park Code based on adoption of
2021 IRC, 2021 IPMC & 2017 NEC.

Exhibit #3

IRC 2012

1. Decks R507.1 —507.3.1 have minimal guidelines on the proper erection and installation of exterior decks.
This edition of the code has

e No maximum span guidelines for joist & beams.

e No maximum heights allowed for columns.

¢ No maximum allowance for cantilevers of joists

e No criteria for subgrade foundations etc.
IRC 2021

2. Decks R507.1 — R507.10.2 has additional information in regards to the following:

e Table R507.3.1. Minimum footing size for decks

e Table R507.4 Deck post heights

e Section R507.5 indicates specific criteria for multiple beam plies and how connectors shall be
implemented.
Table R507.5(1) maximum deck beam spans
Table R507.6 Maximum deck joist spans
Table R507.7 maximum joist spacing for wood decking.
Table R507.9.1.3 (1) Deck Ledger connection to band joist

e R507 .9.2. lateral connections for decks secured to buildings. More detailed information.
Building official commentary:
The 2021 IRC has basically eliminated the need for a design professional to be involved in designing decks for
single families and townhouses. This would provide much needed cost savings to citizens and allow a more
detailed charted, descriptive approach for a contractor to build a deck correctly. This new edition also allows the
plan reviewer and inspector to have specific language to reference and indicate in writing of any possible
corrections or field remediation needed.

IRC Table R502.3.1 (1) Comparisons.

Typical floor joist spans used in residential construction: 2 x 12 @ 16” o.c. 40 pound per square foot loading:
2012 maximum span allowed = 17' 10”

2021 maximum span allowed = 18- 1”

Increase of 2% in common lumber sizes.

Typical rafter spans used in residential construction: 2 x 10 @ 16” o.c. 30 pound per square foot snow loading
2012 maximum span allowed = 18’- 5”

2021 maximum span allowed = 18’- 9”

Increase 2%

Typical ceiling joist spans used in residential construction: 2 x 8 @ 16” o.c. 20 pound per square foot (limited
storage)

2012 maximum span allowed = 16’- 3”

2021 maximum span allowed = 16’- 6”

3

Life Amplified



Increase 2%

Mechanical exhaust systems: M1502.4.5. prohibits the installation of domestic booster fan systems for dryers.
The 2012 edition of the IRC does not address the installations of booster thus allowing it unless modified by local
amendment.
Building Official Commentary:
The installation of booster fans systems is very risky in terms of being inline with the direction of warm / moist flow
of dryer vent expulsions. When system is not operating, the lint or fibers from the fan cool and harden thus creating
a solid material blocking the proper function and air flow of the booster fan. This can relate to dryer exhaust fires
and also the possibility of carbon monoxide poisoning to the homeowner if the fan cannot discharge due to
blockages. The air will get pushed back into the interior space.
Return air systems cannot be taken via a combustible plenum such as a joist cavity space or a stud cavity
space. The ducts shall be lined with sheet metal in conformance with IRC section and be considered
ducted sheet metal returns.
Building Official Commentary:
Return air is as equally important in a hvac system especially for cooling loads. The use of sheet metal ducts will
allow a friction fee movement of air and also allows these return air ducts both in vertical and horizontal application
to be easily maintained and use the full advantage of duct cleaning capabilities thus allowing a free flow or
movement back to the furnace for re-tempering.
Emergency Egress rescue openings requires 36” in height and 36” in width under cantilevers, decks and
porches
Building Official Commentary:
This language provides clarity that not only do you need min. 36” in height for some one crouching down but need
a min. 36” width for some to move horizontally. This would prohibit certain location of vertical elements (columns)
from being placed directly adjacent to window well openings.
Emergency Egress rescue openings in existing single families with renovations for basement remodel
and basement additions and change of occupancies require a reduction in clear escape area of 4 sq. ft.
in lieu of 5.7 sq. ft.
Building Official Commentary:
This section allows individuals in single family residences to renovate their homes and POSSIBLY not have to go
through the expense of a new opening installed in an existing basement.
Vapor barriers are now required to be 10 mil. in lieu of 6 mil. for slab on grade applications.
Building Official Commentary:
This code section would apply to slab on grade single family homes or other tempered structures and also would
affect the residential industry for attached garages to single family homes.

e The cost per roll (1,200 sq. Ft.) of 6 mil. is about 0.15 per square foot.

e The cost per roll (1,200 sq. ft.) of 10 mil. is about 0.20 per square foot
Analysis of a standard attached 3 car garages:

1. 6 mil. = 600 sq. ft. would cost $100.00 for the vapor barrier material

2. 10 mil. = 600 sq. ft. would cost $150.00 for the vapor barrier material.
Mold or water vapor infiltration is of the upmost importance for protection of the built environment. The use of a
heavier mil. vapor barrier would prevent moisture vapor from infiltrating slabs where small cracks have occurred
over time. This level of protection is also carried over as the structural items that penetrate slabs such as columns
and fasteners and these items are often wrapped around these structural objects.

Code changes NEC 2017
National Electrical Code:
1. NEC 210.11 (C. 4. Garages (attached or detached) shall have at least one 120-volt 20-amp branch circuit
supplying outlets in the garage. This circuits shall be dedicated with no other devices on it.
Furthermore,
NEC 210.50 (G) (1) a receptacle located no higher than 5 %%’ above floor shall be installed in each vehicle
bay.
2. NEC 210.11 (C. 3. Bathroom(s) shall have a dedicated 120v. 20-amp circuit to handle the receptacles in
bathroom spaces. This circuit shall have no other devices on it.
3. NEC 210.8 (E) GFIC protection shall be required for lighting outlets in crawl spaces not exceeding 120

volts.
Tinley Pork
ILLINOIS

Life Amplified



4. NEC 210.12 (A) Arc-Fault Circuit Interrupter Protection is now required in all rooms not requiring
essentially a dfi receptacles such as bathrooms and garages etc. This is basically on all 125v 15- & 20-
amp circuits.

Building official commentary: The previous adopted code section only required arc fault protection on 15-
& 20-amp circuits for sleeping rooms.

5. Meeting rooms greater than 1,000 sq. ft. in other than dwelling units shall have outlets for non-locking
type 125volt, 15-20-amp receptacles.

Building official commentary: The day and age of everyone having phones or other devices leads to a
very important need to have receptacles for power or recharging of devices when in a conference
atmosphere for training or larger scaled meetings.

Staff Direction Request:
1. Approve adoption and amendments for the adoption of the 2021 IRC, IPMC and the 2017
NEC into the new Title XV Chapter 155 Comprehensive building code.
2. Direct Staff as necessary.

Life Amplified



Interoffice

® Memo

Date: April 5, 2022

To: Village Board

From: Pat Carr, Village Manager

Subject: Purchase & Sale Agreement 7551 191°" Street

Staff seeks approval for a purchase and sale agreement for the property located at 7551 191st

Street (southwest corner of 191st and Harlem Avenue) to GSP Development, LLC in the amount
of $1,700,000. Upon approval this will be placed on the April 5, 2022 village board agenda for
execution of agreement.

¥

Life Amplified



Interoffice

Memo

Date: February 10, 2021

To: Committee of the Whole

From: Donna Framke, Marketing Director
Subject: Tinley Park Life Amplified Tourism Website

The marketing department has been working diligently with Point B Communications to develop the
creative design and messaging required to take the Tinley Park Life Amplified brand out to market. |
will unveil that for you in the coming weeks. The next step in the process of building our tourism
infrastructure is the design and development of a dedicated VisitTinleyPark.com website.

Currently, Tinley Park’s visitor information is housed beneath the Visitor tab on the TinleyPark.org
website. Although that site reflects the Tinley Park Life Amplified brand and the visitor content is
accessible via a redirect of the VisitTinleyPark.com URL, the site exists as a content-heavy,
governmental site, which is limited and makes the visitor and event planners’ user experience difficult
to navigate.

The proposed site will be focused on promoting Tinley Park as a destination, using an open source
CMS optimized for organic search and mobile usage. We will build upon the content that exists on
our visitor tab, which simply inventories our hospitality amenities, and develop engaging messaging
and aesthetics that will be supported by multiple heading styles, fonts and photos designed to
encourage users to read more, click through and stay on the site a little longer. The end result will be
a digital touchpoint presented with a fresh, clean and updated look designed to inform potential
visitors of the many entertainment options available. The site will also provide a full-service RFP
submission portal for future convention and meeting event planners.

The creation and development of this website is expected to take 16 — 18 weeks and will be paid for
from Hotel-Motel tax.

3

Life Amplified



Interoffice

@ Memo

Date: March 29, 2022

To: Village Board

From: Pat Carr, Village Manager

CC: Hannah Lipman, Asst. Village Manager
Subject: Staffing Agreement

With continued vacancies in the Finance Department leadership, staff is requesting to enter into
another project based agreement with Brad Bettenhausen from Bettenhausen and Associates, LLC.
Brad has over 37 years of institutional knowledge and finance experience with the Village of Tinley
Park.

In this role, he will provide temporary administrative assistance to the Finance Department in the
following areas:

1. Monitoring spend-out of proceeds (2021 Bond Series) to meet the “safe-harbor” rules to
avoid the necessity of arbitrage calculations.

2. Assist Finance staff in preparing for the FY2022 audit report.

Supervise completion of Annual TIF reporting for FY 2021 and provide other related TIF

analysis and assistance.

Aid in the finalization/assembly of the FY 2023 budget.

Revenue and incentive tracking.

Monitor tax exempt status of Village property acquisitions since 2018.

Continue to work with Cook County regarding properties to be acquired through the No

Cash Bid (NCB) program and related tax exemption applications.

Participation in meetings and discussions relevant to Village financial matters.

Provide any additional work as directed by the Village Manager and authorized separately

by the Board of Trustees, and subject to separate authorization.

w

Nous

L

The rate for this service will be $150 per hour with a not to exceed amount of $90,000. Staff is
recommending approval of this agreement.

3

Life Amplified



INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT

TO PROVIDE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AS INTERIM TREASURER/FINANCE

DIRECTOR AND DEPARTMENT SERVICES FOR THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK

This Professional Services Independent Contractor Agreement ("Agreement") is made this
4th__ dayof __ April , 2022, by and between the Village of Tinley Park, Illinois,

("VILLAGE") and Bettenhausen & Associates LLC ("BA LLC"). The VILLAGE and BA LLC may

be referred to herein individually as "Party" or collectively as the "Parties."

1.

DEFINITION OF BA LLC. As used in this Agreement, BA LLC shall be
construed to include all of BA LLC' s officers, directors, members, managers,
employees and agents.

SERVICES. BA LLC agrees to provide professional services as described in
EXHIBIT A to this Agreement. The performance of the services by BA LLC
under this Agreement shall not be construed as creating any employment

relationship or employment contract or partnership or joint venture relationship
between the VILLAGE and BA LLC. Professional Services will include:

A.

Provide administrative assistance to the Finance Department and support

the execution of the Department's Operating Plan.
Provide assistance with the Village’s recently initiated bond issue.

i Monitoring spend-out of proceeds to meet the “safe-harbor”
rules to avoid the necessity of arbitrage calculations.

Assist Finance staff in preparing for the FY2022 audit report and
related filings.

Supervise completion of Annual TIF reporting for FY 2021 and provide
other related TIF analysis and assistance.

Aid in the finalization/assembly of the FY 2023 budget. Assist with
budget implementation.

Assist in the evaluation and selection process for new ERP (enterprise
resource program) financial, and related software applications.

Revenue and incentive tracking.



H. Monitor tax exempt status of Village property acquisitions since 2018.
Continue to work with Cook County regarding properties to be acquired
through the No Cash Bid (NCB) program and related tax exemption
applications.

L Review and update written procedures and guidance regarding Finance
and related activities. Where feasible, provide training to Finance and
Administrative staff relative to such activities.

J. Assist in the transition of leadership within the Finance Department once
new leadership is hired.

K. BA LLC agrees to provide any additional work as directed by the Village
Manager and authorized separately by the Board of Trustees, and subject
to separate authorization.

TERM. The Term of the agreement shall commence on _4 April, 2022. The
professional services work will coincide with the needs of the VILLAGE to
address issues in the Finance Department. In accordance with Exhibit A to this
Agreement, the Village Manager shall provide a three week notice of project
completion to permit project assignment closeout and any final report
preparation.

COMPENSATION. The compensation will be for the completion of the
Professional Services elements as described in Exhibit A to this agreement.

Additional work elements as may be requested by the Village will be priced
subject to the approval of the parties.

BA LLC shall provide a no less than monthly invoice to the Village Manager or
his designee. The VILLAGE shall make payment to BA LLC within thirty (30)
days thereafter, subject to the approval of the rules governing the VILLAGE. In
compliance with Village requirements, BA LLC will provide a W-9 prior to the
first payment. No deductions of any kind whatsoever shall be made by the
VILLAGE to any compensation paid to BA LLC for any and all applicable federal,
state, local and other taxes and deductions, which shall remain the sole and
exclusive obligation of BA LLC.

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS. BA LLC is retained by the VILLAGE
only for the purposes and to the extent set forth in this Agreement, and BA LLC's
relation to the VILLAGE shall, during the term of this Agreement and period of
its services hereunder, be that of an independent contractor. BA LLC shall be free
to dispose of such portion of its entire time, energy and skill during regular
business hours when BA LLC is not obligated to devote time and



services hereunder to the VILLAGE, in such manner as BA LLC sees fit and to
such persons, firms or corporations as BA LLC deems advisable. It is
acknowledged that at all times BA LLC is separate and independent from the
VILLAGE and that BA LLC will utilize a high level of skill necessary to perform
the services under this Agreement.

A.

Not an Employee. BA LLC shall not be considered as having an
employee status, nor shall the VILLAGE withhold any sums for the
payment of income taxes or FICA taxes, nor shall BA LLC be entitled to
participate in any plans, arrangements or distributions by the VILLAGE
pertaining to or in connection with any pension or retirement plans, or
any other benefits for the regular full-time or part-time employees of the
VILLAGE. As an independent contractor, it is the responsibility of BA
LLC to file all necessary tax returns (federal, state, county and local) and
to pay all income tax, social security, and any and all other taxes due as
an independent contractor in its profession. As an independent
contractor, BA LLC agrees that it is ineligible to file a claim for
unemployment compensation benefits or for workers compensation
benefits against the VILLAGE and agrees not to file such claims in the
event this Agreement is terminated. BA LLC agrees to assume all risk of
death, illness and injury relative to performing all services under this
Agreement. BA LLC understands and agrees that, as an independent
contractor, it is not an employee of the VILLAGE for any purposes of any
kind and all state, federal and county laws or regulations that apply to or
provide benefits or protections to employees do not apply to it,
including, but not limited to, the application of the Fair Labors Standards
Act minimum wage and overtime payments, Federal Insurance
Contribution Act, the Social Security Act, the Federal Unemployment
Tax Act and the Worker's Compensation Act (820 ILCS 305/1, et seq.).

No Insurance Provided by System. The VILLAGE will not provide any
form of insurance coverage, including but not limited to health, worker's
compensation, professional liability insurance or other employee benefits
for or on behalf of BA LLC.

INDEMNIFICATION. BA LLC agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless

the VILLAGE, its representatives, officers, trustees, agents, and employees from
and against any and all claims, actions, suits, damages, costs, expenses and
liabilities, including the reasonable fees and expenses of their attorneys, expert
witnesses and consultants, court costs and fines, asserted against them or sought
to be imposed upon them, individually, jointly or severally, and which arise
directly or indirectly out of or in connection in any way with BA LLC's
performance of the terms of this Agreement, except to the extent that those



claims, actions, suits, damages, costs, expenses and liabilities arise from the sole
negligence of the VILLAGE, its representatives, officers, trustees, agents and
employees.

The scope of BA LLC's indemnification shall include, but is not limited to:

A. Any negligent, tortuous or wrongful act or omission of the BA LLC, its
officers, agents, employees, contractors or subcontractors, resulting in
personal injury, bodily injury, sickness or death to any person, loss or
damage of any kind to the property of any person, including BA LLC, its
officers, agents, employees, and licensees, or damage to or loss of other
intangible property rights or personal rights, including but not limited to
libel, slander and invasion of privacy; and

B. Loss or damage of any kind resulting from the BA LLC's failure to
comply with any provision of this Agreement, or of any federal, state or
local law or regulation applicable to the BA LLC.

INSURANCE. As part of the indemnification required by this Agreement, but
without limiting the same, BA LLC agrees to carry, during the term of this
Agreement, at its expense, public liability insurance, including, but not limited
to coverage for bodily injury, death, and property damage written on the
comprehensive form, in the amount of $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate.

EQUIPMENT. The VILLAGE will provide an office space and any equipment
(e.g., computers), and clerical support to BA LLC to the extent that it is presently
available.

CONFIDENTIALITY. BA LLC agrees to maintain the confidentiality of all
VILLAGE information and documents received or obtained or learned as part of
attending VILLAGE meetings and/or executive sessions or in performing its
duties under this Agreement, unless specifically directed to release such
information or documents by the VILLAGE or a court order or government
regulatory agency order. BA LLC agrees that all conversations by attendees of
and any information or documents reviewed or discussed in any executive
session are confidential and shall not be disclosed or released by BA LLC, unless
specifically directed to release such information or documents by the VILLAGE,
a court order or government regulatory agency order. BA LLC shall faithfully
adhere to the requirements of this Agreement and the professional ethical
principles applicable hereto, including, but limited to, the ICMA Code of Ethics,
and shall avoid all personal acts that might injure the reputation of the
VILLAGE or undermine the business transactions and other operations of the
VILLAGE.




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

TERMINATION.

A. The Village may terminate this Agreement without cause upon thirty
(30) days written notice to BA LLC. In the event of termination pursuant
to this paragraph (10. A.), the Village shall pay BA LLC any Fees then
due and payable for any Services completed up to and including the date
of such termination.

B. The Village may terminate this Agreement in the event that BA LLC
breaches this Agreement.

i The Village shall provide written notice to BA LLC promptly after
a breach has been identified.

ii. BA LLC shall cure such breach within ten (10) days after receipt
of said written notice.

iii. If the breach is not cured, or such breach is incapable of cure, the
termination of the agreement will become effective immediately
thereafter.

WAIVER AND ASSUMPTION OF LIABILITY. BA LLC assumes all risks and
liability for personal injuries or illness of any kind or death that might occur
while performing any services or acting under this Agreement. BA LLC assumes
all risks, liability and responsibility for its personal property while performing
any services under this Agreement. BA LLC agrees to waive any claims or
causes of action of any kind against the VILLAGE, except for non-payment for
actual services rendered under this Agreement.

APPLICABLE LAW. The statutes and common law of the State of Illinois shall
govern the interpretation, validity, enforcement and performance of the terms of
this Agreement. The Parties agree that, for the purpose of any litigation or
proceeding brought with respect to this Agreement and its enforcement, venue
shall be in the Circuit Court of Cook or Will County, Illinois, as determined by
the VILLAGE and the Parties agree to voluntarily submit to the jurisdiction of
such court for the purpose of any such litigation or proceeding.

ASSIGNMENT. This Agreement may not be assigned, transferred or conveyed
by BA LLC without the prior written consent of the VILLAGE.

NOTICES. All written notices of any kind to be given or delivered under this
Agreement shall be deemed to have been properly given if (a) delivered by
hand, (b) delivered by a nationally recognized overnight courier service, or (c)
sent by registered or certified United States Mail, return receipt requested and
first class postage prepaid. Such notices shall be sent to the Parties at their
respective addresses as follows:



If to the VILLAGE:

Mr. Patrick Carr, Village Manager
Village of Tinley Park

16250 Oak Park Ave

Tinley Park, Illinois 60477

With a copy to:

Village President Michael Glotz
Village of Tinley Park

16250 Oak Park Ave

Tinley Park, Illinois 60477

If to Bettenhausen Associates LLC:
Brad Bettenhausen

Bettenhausen & Associates LLC
16620 Fulton Ter

Tinley Park, IL 60477-1908



15. AUTHORITY. This Agreement shall be in full force and effect, and legally
binding, after it is signed by the duly authorized officer of each party. Each of
the signatories to this Agreement are the duly authorized representatives of
their respective entity and each such person has signed this Agreement
pursuant to the authority duly granted to him or her by the authorities of said
entity, who have acted by motion or approved a resolution (in the VILLAGE's
case, at an open public meeting) that authorized and directed the
representatives to sign this Agreement. This Agreement shall be binding upon
and shall inure to the benefit of the parties agreeing hereto and to their
successor corporations, officers, officials, trustees, successors in office, heirs,
representatives, and assigns.

16. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Agreement shall become effective on the date of the
last signatory to sign and authorize this Agreement.

VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, ILLINOIS

Michael W. Glotz
Village President

Date

Bettenhausen & Associates LLC

B it~

Brad Bettenhausen
Managing Director

Date 4 Apr 2022



EXHIBIT A

The Managing Director of BA LLC, is a Certified Public Accountant with over forty years of
experience in public and governmental accounting, including previously serving as the
Village’s Treasurer/Finance Director for over 37 years spanning across five decades. There are
few individuals that can bring both the governmental accounting and financial background
and institutional knowledge of Tinley Park (as well as its history) to the table to address the
current crisis created by the unexpected and untimely departure of the Treasurer/Finance
Director with a minimum of familiarization lead time required. In other words, BA LLC can hit
the ground running.

BA LLC has identified key work elements with importance to the Village of Tinley Park. The
work plan itself will proceed with concurrent work plan tasks, as all of the issues BA LLC has
identified are very important to Tinley Park. There are some functions, that are foreseen as
being potentially beneficial to be handled on an ongoing basis over a longer horizon to assist
the overall finance and administration activities and staff transitions. Upon approval of the
agreement, BA LLC and the Village Manager will identify the specific tasks and priorities. The
identified tasks include:

1. Provide administrative assistance to the Finance Department and support the execution
of the Department's Operating Plan.

2. Provide assistance with the Village’s recently initiated bond issue.
BA LLC would suggest that Assistant Village Manager Hannah Lipman, and at least
one of the senior finance staff member, assist in this process so that BALLC’ Principal
Consultant may provide training for the future and hopefully transfer some institutional
knowledge in the process.
A. Monitoring spend-out of proceeds to meet the “safe-harbor” rules to avoid the
necessity of arbitrage calculations.

3. Assist Finance staff in finalizing FY2021 audit report and related filings. Furthermore,
assist staff in preparing for the FY2022 audit.
A. State Comptroller
B. County Clerks
C. Cook County Treasurer Debt Disclosure Ordinance (DDO)



D.

Participation in the GFOA Certificate of Achievement program

Supervise completion of Annual TIF reporting for FY 2021 and provide other related
TIF analysis and assistance.

A.

B.

C.

Filings with State Comptroller

Distribution of copies to Joint Review Board overlapping taxing bodies

TIF activity monitoring including TIF EAV analysis, incremental property tax
projections, Tax Base analysis.

L For potential new projects
ii. For existing TIF incentive agreements
iii. For overall TIF status

Prepare charts and graphs to be utilized for annual Joint Review Board meetings
and for presentation to the Village Board.

Assist Finance and administrative staff in the process of assembling and preparing the
FY 2023 budget.

Assist in the evaluation and selection process for new ERP (enterprise resource
program) financial, and related software applications.

Revenue and incentive tracking.

A.

Sales Tax

(This will require updated authorizations under the Reciprocal Information
Exchange agreement with the Illinois Department of Revenue. BA LLC will
assist in preparing the necessary documents.)

State Revenue Distributions

(Income/LGDEF, MFT, Cannabis, Video Gaming, etc.)

Incentive tracking

It is important to remain on top of the various existing incentive agreements and
payments in order to not default on the Village's obligations under these
arrangements. With familiarity of the requirements and timetables under
agreements approved prior to June 2021, BA LLC would also review any
incentive payments paid subsequent to June 2021 to assure that they have been
calculated properly.

Confirm that any newly approved/activated sales tax incentive disclosures have
been filed with Illinois Department of Revenue as required by state statute.
Assist with implementation of the approved Storage Facilities Tax. Shortly after
adoption, action had been deferred in 2020 due to COVID and it is unlikely it
has moved forward to live status.

Assist in reviewing/implementing other revenue options (e.g. Food and
Beverage Tax).



10.

11.

12.

Assess status of Village grants and reporting requirements. Assist Finance staff as
necessary.

Monitor Village real estate property records
L Monitor status of tax exemption applications pending at end of June 2021, and
any parcels that may have been subsequently acquired by the Village. The tax
exempt status of two Village property acquisitions in 2018 had not been
approved as of June 2021 and continued monitoring of status is required.
ii. Properties to be acquired through the Cook County No Cash Bid (NCB) program
and related tax exemption applications.
A. Continue monitoring the status of properties that the Village is
attempting to acquire through the NCB program that remained pending
and in limbo due to COVID delays at end of June 2021.
B Prepare any related reporting required to the County.
C. Review and monitor for additional potential parcels that the Village
would benefit by acquisition through the NCB and related programs.
iii. Annual Tax Exemption filings with Cook and Will Counties for Village owned
properties.
iv. Provide training to appropriate finance and administrative staff relative to this
annual process/requirement.

Property tax levy
BA LLC is aware that the Village Board has already provided its required
determination of estimate of levy reflecting a 1% increase over the prior year.

L Review the levy ordinance and related tax abatement ordinances prior to
adoption.

ii. Assist the Deputy Clerk with the preparation of appropriate Certificate of
Compliance with regard to the Truth in Taxation Act to be submitted with the
approved levy.

iii. Assist the Deputy Clerk with County filings of adopted ordinances.

iv. Provide additional training to appropriate finance and administrative staff

relative to this process for the future.

Review and update written procedures and guidance regarding Finance and related
activities. Where feasible, provide training to Finance and Administrative staff relative
to such activities in an attempt to transfer institutional knowledge and promote greater
"self-sufficiency" amongst the Finance and Management teams going forward.

Assist in the transition of leadership within the Finance Department once new
leadership is hired.



13.

Assist with the ERP (Enterprise Resource Program) financial software selection and
implementation.

As the current ERP software is nearing its end of life (i.e. will soon be no longer
supported by the software company), it is critical that this process not be delayed or
stalled. It has long been a Village goal and objective that financial activities are directly
integrated into the ERP as much as possible or have direct interfaces to the selected
ERP. (By an analogy - stimulating the growth of one big tree, rather than a forest of
small trees). Integration with the ERP is viewed as critically important for related

applications such as HR software that is being considered.

14. BA LLC agrees to provide any additional work as directed by the Village Manager and
authorized separately by the Board of Trustees, and subject to separate authorization.
Other Terms

Brad Bettenhausen will serve as Principal Consultant under this agreement.

The Tinley Park engagement is complex and some tasks are under a tight time line, but both
are expected to be well within the capabilities of BA LLC and its representatives to execute and
perform the required tasks.

While BA LLC will be heavily relying on Department personnel for support, some additional
support may be necessary; Associate Consulting time could also be required to help in the
project work elements. BA LLC envisions spending no more than three days a week on site,
with possibly some exceptions as may be required from time to time due to the task or activity.

Billing rates:

Principal Consultant $150 per hour
Associate Consultant $125 per hour (if required)

Out of pocket costs, if any, will be billed in addition to the above amounts.
Transportation to and from the Village is not charged, and will not be included in the
billing.

B i~

Brad Bettenhausen
Managing Director
Bettenhausen & Associates LLC



Interoffice

Memo

Date: March 28, 2022

To: Pat Carr — Village Manager
Hannah Lipman — Assistant Village Manager/Interim Village Treasurer
John Urbanski, Public Works Director

From: Terry Lusby, Jr. — Facilities/Fleet Superintendent

Subject: Intergovernmental Agreement for School District 140 School Safety Lights at 80™
Ave./167th St.

Presented for Committee of the Whole/Village Board Meeting consideration and possible action:

Description:
Village staff met with Kirby School District 140 administration and investigated the need to install two

solar powered school zone safety flashing beacon assemblies. Based on the collected data, staff
recommends both entities split the costs to install the two (2) safety flashing beacon assemblies to
increase driver awareness and enhance safety precautions for children, adults, and Village
employees (crossing guards) utilizing the crosswalk at 80" Ave and 167" St. Kirby School District
140 will be fully responsible for the maintenance, operation, and any future costs for the safety
flashing beacon assemblies after construction and installation. The plans and specifications were
prepared by Christopher Burke Engineering.

The total estimated project cost will be $40,000 with the Kirby School District 140 providing $20,000
and the Village providing $20,000.

Staff Direction Request:

1. Approve the Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) between the Village and Kirby School District
140.
2. Direct Staff as necessary.

Attachments:

1. Intergovernmental Agreement with Kirby School District 140.
2. Safety flashing beacon assembly plans and specifications.

3

Life Amplified



INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE VILLGAGE OF
TINLEY PARK AND SCHOOL DISTRICT 140 FOR THE INSTALLATION OF
SCHOOL ZONE SAFETY LIGHTS

WHEREAS, the Village of Tinley Park is a Municipal Corporation situated in Will
and Cook Counties, (hereinafter referred to as “VILLAGE”) under and by virtue of the
Constitution and laws of the State of Illinois and has acted in the exercise of its statutory
authority in the exercise of this agreement; and

WHEREAS, Kirby School District 140 is a body corporate and politic (hereinafter
referred to as the “DISTRICT”); and

WHEREAS, Article VII, Section 10, of the Constitution of the State of Illinois of
1970 provides that units of local government may contract or otherwise associate among
themselves to obtain or share services and to exercise, combine or transfer any power or
function in any manner not prohibited by law or by ordinance; and

WHEREAS, the Illinois Intergovernmental Cooperation Act, (Illinois Compiled
Statutes, Chapter 5, Section 220/1 et seq.), authorizes municipalities to exercise jointly with
any public agency of the State, including other units of local government, any power,
privilege, or authority which may be exercised by a unit of local government individually,
and to enter into contracts for the performance of governmental services, activities, and
undertakings; and

WHEREAS, the VILLAGE and DISTRICT, in order to facilitate the safe passage
of students and faculty, are desirous of installing two solar powered school safety light
flashers at 167™ Street and 80" Avenue in the VILLAGE.

WHEREAS, the VILLAGE and the DISTRICT have elected to cooperate with
each other and set forth the rights and responsibilities of each party regarding the cost of
the two solar powered school safety light flashers.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, obligations and
undertakings set forth herein, the VILLAGE and the DISTRICT agree as follows:

1. The above Recitals are substantive and are incorporated herein by reference as if
fully set forth in this paragraph 1.

2. The VILLAGE shall install, at the DISTRICT’S shared expense, two solar powered
school safety light flashers pursuant VILLAGE and the DISTRICT specifications,
and as further described in Exhibit A.



3. Upon completion of the project, the DISTRICT shall be solely responsible for the
maintenance, damage/repair, and energy costs of the two solar powered school
safety light flashers at 167" Street and 80™ Avenue.

4. The VILLAGE shall, at its own expense, make or cause to be made all surveys,
construction plans, specifications, and estimates, furnish resident engineering and
the construction engineer and provide or cause to be provided the material
inspection of the project which is to be built in accordance with the approved plans
and specifications.

5. Upon award of the contract for the improvement, the VILLAGE will invoice the
DISTRICT for 50% of the amount of the estimated DISTRICT share of the
construction costs not to exceed forty thousand dollars ($40,000.00). Upon
completion of the improvement and final acceptance by the DISTRICT, the
VILLAGE and the DISTRICT will agree on each agency’s final share of the costs
for the improvement based on the final actual costs.

6. This document shall be the final embodiment of the Agreement by and between the
DISTRICT and VILLAGE. No oral changes or modifications for this Agreement
shall be permitted or allowed. Changes or modification to this Agreement shall be
made only in writing and upon the necessary and proper approvals of the
DISTRICT and the VILLAGE.

7. All provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed severable, and if for any reason
any portion of this Agreement is deemed invalid or unenforceable, or contrary to or
in conflict with then applicable law then in any of such events, the invalid,
unenforceable, conflicting or materially incompatible provisions shall be severed
and deleted from this Agreement, without affecting the validity or enforceability of
other provisions hereof.

8. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefits of the parties hereto,
their successors and assigns.

9. Venue for this agreement shall be in the courts of the Twelfth Judicial Circuit, Will
County, Illinois and shall be governed by the laws of the State of Illinois

irrespective of choice of law considerations.

10. Any notices under this Agreement shall be sent as follows:

If to the DISTRICT:




If to the VILLAGE:

Village of Tinley Park Peterson, Johnson & Murray Chicago, LLC
16250 S. Oak Park Avenue 200 West Adams St., Suite 2125
Tinley Park, IL 60477 Chicago, IL 60606

The PARTIES agree that each shall be responsible to notify the other of any changes in
notification procedures.

Dated at Joliet, Illinois this day of ,20

ATTEST:

By By
DISTRICT CLERK DISTRIC Executive

(Seal)

Dated at Tinley Park, Illinois, this day of ,20__

ATTEST:

By

Village Clerk Mayor of the Village of Tinley Park

(Seal)



EXHIBIT A



SCHOOL ZONE FLASHING BEACON SIGN

ASSEMBLY INSTALLAT

ION

80TH AVENUE AT 167TH STREET

TINLEY PARK, ILLINOIS 60477

16250 OAK PARK AVENUE
TINLEY PARK, IL 60477

4 INDEX N\ [/ LOCATION / VICINITY MAP N\ /7 IDOT STANDARDS )
1 TITLE SHEET @ STD.NO.  DESCRIPTION
) SUMMARY OF QUANTITIES NTS. 000001-08  STANDARD SYMBOLS, ABBREVIATIONS AND PATTERNS
001006 DECIMAL OF AN INCH AND OF A FOOT
3 SIGN REMOVAL PLAN 70110105  OFF - ROAD OPERATIONS, MULTILANE, 15' TO 24" FROM EOP
4.5 SCHOOL ZONE FLASHING BEACON 701602:10. URBAN LANE CLOSURE, MULTILANE, 2W WITH BIDIRECTIONAL
INSTALLATION AND SIGNING PLAN
70180106 SIDEWALK, CORNER OR CROSSWALK CLOSURE
6-21 TRAFFIC CONTROL HIGHWAY STANDARDS 701901-08  TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES
72000101 SIGN PANEL MOUNTING DETAILS
720006-04  SIGN PANEL ERECTION DETAILS
/_PROJECT LOCATION
72800101  TELESCOPING STEEL SIGN SUPPORT DETAIL
87300102  TRAFFIC SIGNAL GROUNDING AND BONDING
878001-11  CONCRETE FOUNDATION DETAILS
(~  BENCH MARK LOCATION N\
3-14-2022
CALL JULIE 1-800-892-0123
WITH THE FOLLOWING:
county _COOK
crty-Townskip _ TINLEY PARK
SEC. & 1/4 SEC. NO..
48 HOURS BEFORE YOU DIG.
\ j EXCLUDING SAT., SUN., & HOLIDAYS
CHRISTOPHER B. BURKE ENGINEERING, LTD.
CLIENT : VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK

Rosemont, lllinois 60018
(847) 823-0500

PROFESSIONAL DESIGN FIRM No.: 184-001742
EXPIRATION DATE: 04-30-2023

C B 9575 W. Higgins Road, Suite 600

=

N:QTINLEVPARKQ16037ﬁ160373.0002ﬁ'(rGfﬂcQOl,CVR,160373*028.dgh




SUMMARY OF QUANTITIES

ITEM
CLIENT. Doo E;{;J TITLE: PROJ. No. 160373.00028]
CHRISTOPHER B. BURKE ENGINEERING, LTD. Vi LLAGE OF TINLEY PARK CHKD- oMz SUMMARY OF QUANTITIES DATE:  3/3/2022 I
9575 W. Higgins Road, Suite 600 SCALE: SHEET 2 OF 21
B Rosemont, lllinois 60018 1 6250 OAK PARK AVENUE Z';STUEQ;':':‘ 3: }:; 2:3]2 80TH #Yl\fll.\lEliE PAAI\fI{ﬁ Iﬁjl.l\;';l Ss TREET DRAWING NO.
(847) 823-0500 Default '

TINLEY PAR K, IL 60477 NO.| DATE NATURE OF REVISION CHKD. | MODEL:

FILE NAME Nl\ﬂNLEYPARK\I60373\50373.00026\Tra‘Fflo\OZ_SOQ_IGOBTJ-OZ&dgn
—




[ZC N
EXISTING SCHOOL CROSSING SIGN = > EXISTING “AHEAD” W16-9P
TO BE REMOVED 3 < EXISTING_SCHOOL CROSSING SIGN TO BE RELOCATED
m T
o o S
Al 16-
EXISTING “SPEED LIMIT 40 MPH”
SIGN TO BE RELOCATED TO BE RELOCATED S
= J
@ ~
Sy
80TH AVENUE =
d ™
o n
) |
n
®©
EXISTING_SCHOOL CROSSING SIGN
EXISTING SCHOOL CROSSING SIGN
> TO BE REMOVED TO BE REMOVED
T 7
g
o
CONSTRUCTION NOTES: 2 .
EXISTING “AHEAD” W16-9P EXISTING DOWNWARD ARROW W16-TP SCALE: 17 = 80/
TO BE RELOCATED @ EXISTING SIGN POST TO BE REMOVED. TO BE RELOCATED
z&
EXISTING SIGN ASSEMBLY
TO BE REMOVED
O
®
<T ® o
I m
T
< <
'$ 80TH AVENUE @ EXISTING SIGN ASSEMBLY
= SCHOOL CROSSING AND “AHEAD” W16-9P
~ @ TO BE RELOCATED
) b
S "
~ -
(-7]
§ E >392 w| R :'| w
A3y @]
I G NERE = oo
5 L OZ=83 - O SE
83 2
EXISTING SIGN ASSEMBLY EXISTING SCHOOL ZONE SPEED LIMIT SIGN - EXISTING ““SPEED LIMIT 45 MPH”
SCHOOL CROSSING AND “AHEAD” W16-9P TO BE REMOVED m SIGN TO BE RELOCATED
TO BE RELOCATED -
CLIENT. Doo E;{;J TITLE: PROJ. No. 160373.00028]
CHRISTOPHER B. BURKE ENGINEERING, LTD. VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK - e SIGN REMOVAL PLAN oate: 37372022 ||
9575 W. Higgins Road, Suite 600 SCALE: 1" = 80’ 80TH AVENUE FROM 167TH STREET TO 169TH STREET SHEET 3 OF 21
C > tglll? e 16250 OAK PARK AVENUE PLOT DATE: 371372022 DRAWING NO !
B osemont, lllinois CAD USER: olensen TINLEY PARK, ILLINOIS -
(847) 823-0500 TINLEY PARK IL 60477 NO.| DATE NATURE OF REVISION CHKD. |MODEL: Default
! FILE NAME Nl\TINLEYPARK\|80373\I60373.00026\Tr‘a‘Fflo\OLRELIGO:iTJ-OZB_.dgn




CONSTRUCTION NOTES:

(1) THE CONTRACTOR SHALL RELOCATE THE EXISTING SIGN
PANEL AND/OR INSTALL A NEW SIGN PANEL ON THE PROPOSED
TELESCOPING STEEL SIGN SUPPORT.

(2) THE FLASHING BEACON ASSEMBLIES SHALL BE PROGRAMMED
TO OPERATE FROM 8:15 AM. TO 8:45 A.M. AND FROM 3:15 P.M.
TO 3:45 P.M., MONDAY THROUGH FRIDAY DURING THE SCHOOL YEAR
AND HAVE A HOLIDAY SCHEDULE PROGRAMMED AS WELL. THE CONTRACTOR
SHALL COORDINATE WITH THE VILLAGE FOR PROGRAMMING APPROVAL
OF THE FLASHERS.

(@) ALL SIGNS INSTALLED ON TELESCOPING STEEL SIGN SUPPORTS SHALL
BE OFFSET 2’ FROM FACE OF CURB TO EDGE OF SIGN IN ACCORDANCE WITH
IDOT HIGHWAY STANDARD 720006. FLASHING BEACON CONCRETE FOUNDATIONS
SHALL BE OFFSET 4’ FROM BACK OF CURB TO CENTER OF FOUNDATION IN
ACCORDANCE WITH IDOT D1 DETAIL TS-05.

(# EXISTING SIGNS AND EXISTING SIGN POST SHALL REMAIN.

EXISTING R2-1

SIGN PANEL
(RELOCATED)
—
D= O|a8l:
w= < T Y=
=
$5-3
@47 x 30" X]
NEW ‘SIGN x
PANEL
-
e =
500’ >
|
>
505’

80TH AVENUE

1Ivid
H10LlL

>
T
g NEW SIGN PANEL
5 W11-2
EXISTING W16-9P (36" x 36")
SIGN PANEL
(RELOCATED)

»

o 20 40

80

SCALE: 1" = 807

NOTE:

1. PROPOSED MUTCD SIGNS, W16-9P AND W11-2, SHALL
HAVE A FLUORESCENT YELLOW-GREEN BACKGROUND.

RESTORATION OF WORK AREA. RESTORATION OF THE FLASHING BEACON
WORK AREA SHALL BE INCIDENTAL TO THE RELATED PAY ITEM SUCH

AS FOUNDATION AND NO EXTRA COMPENSATION SHALL BE ALLOWED. ALL
ROADWAY SURFACES SUCH AS SHOULDERS, MEDIANS, SIDEWALKS, PAVEMENT,
ETC. SHALL BE REPLACED IN KIND. ALL DAMAGE TO MOWED LAWNS

SHALL BE REPLACED WITH AN APPROVED SOD, AND ALL DAMAGE TO
UNMOWED FIELDS SHALL BE SEEDED IN ACCORDANCE WITH STANDARD
SPECIFICATIONS 252 AND 250 RESPECTIVELY.

C
B

CHRISTOPHER B. BURKE ENGINEERING, LTD.
9575 W. Higgins Road, Suite 600

Rosemont, lllinois 60018

(847) 823-0500

CLIENT:

VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
16250 OAK PARK AVENUE
TINLEY PARK, IL 60477

DSGN. EAJ TITLE:
R = FLASHING BEACON INSTALLATION AND SIGNING PLAN
Sor SATE 571705 (SHEET 1 OF 2)
T 80TH AVENUE FROM 167TH STREET TO 169TH STREET
NO.| DATE NATURE OF REVISION CHKD. |MODEL: Default TINLEY PARK’ "_I_INOIS
FILE NAME Nl\TINLEYPARK\I60373\50373.00026\Tra‘Ffl0\05_PED_I60373-028-.din

PROJ. NO. 160373.00028§

patE:  3/3/2022 ||
sHEeET 4 oF 21 |
DRAWING NO.




—
>
] EXISTING SIGN PANEL
= W16-7P
(RELOCATED)
]
= PROPOSED PROPOSED ~ EXISTING SIGN PANEL
m Wil-2 SIGN W11-2 SIGN W16-9P
- (36" X 36") (36" X 36') (RELOCATED) -
I
< O @
482’ — w
| | | E
< 500’ =
i ==
= | 260” ‘ 160" -5
- 80TH AVENUE \ %
=
5 505 ‘ @ XD
1
<
= XD
>
SIGN @ ASSEMBLY Z
m
>
EXISTING SSI%L\I PANEL iggéasﬁmv O
(REL OCATED) WhoPosE EXISTING RELOCATED
(36 X 36" $4-5 SIGN Wi6-op Rt SToN
] 12" YELLOW L.E.D. PLAQUE
SIGNAL SECTION
CONSTRUCTION NOTES: .
=} }
(D) THE CONTRACTOR SHALL RELOCATE THE EXISTING SIGN I WUTCD SIGNS
PANEL AND/OR INSTALL A NEW SIGN PANEL ON THE PROPOSED . - Rely 567 x 480 o x 12
TELESCOPING STEEL SIGN SUPPORT. NOTE AND S4-4P PLAQUE (36" x 18"
@) THE FLASHING BEACON ASSEMBLIES SHALL BE PROGRAMMED L EE\?EOSEELSAOURTECSDCESNITGNYSEL&?/V_-Q;REAE'LD BWAICllzé;R ()SJ‘I\IAIZl)_L
TO OPERATE FROM 8:15 AM. TO 8:45 A.M. AND FROM 3:15 P.M. °
TO 3:45 P.M., MONDAY THROUGH FRIDAY DURING THE SCHOOL YEAR
AND HAVE A HOLIDAY SCHEDULE PROGRAMMED AS WELL. THE CONTRACTOR = @ P Z
SHALL COORDINATE WITH THE VILLAGE FOR PROGRAMMING APPROVAL 12" YELLOW_L,E.D.
OF THE FLASHERS. RESTORATION OF WORK AREA. RESTORATION OF THE FLASHING BEACON SIGNAL SECTION o 20 40 80
WORK AREA SHALL BE INCIDENTAL TO THE RELATED PAY ITEM SUCH -
AS FOUNDATION AND NO EXTRA COMPENSATION SHALL BE ALLOWED. ALL SCALE: 1 = 80’
®ALL SIGNs INSTALLED ON TELESCOPING STEEL SIGN SUPPORTS SHALL ROADWAY SURFACES SUCH AS SHOULDERS, MEDIANS, SIDEWALKS, PAVEMENT,
BE OFFSET 2’ FROM FACE OF CURB TO EDGE OF SIGN IN ACCORDANCE WITH ETC. SHALL BE REPLACED IN KIND. ALL DAMAGE TO MOWED LAWNS SYSTEM ENCLOSURE
IDOT HIGHWAY STANDARD 720006. FLASHING BEACON CONCRETE FOUNDATIONS SHALL BE REPLACED WITH AN APPROVED SOD, AND ALL DAMAGE TO N
SHALL BE OFFSET 4’ FROM BACK OF CURB TO CENTER OF FOUNDATION IN UNMOWED FIELDS SHALL BE SEEDED IN ACCORDANCE WITH STANDARD Q@
ACCORDANCE WITH IDOT D1 DETAIL TS-05. SPECIFICATIONS 252 AND 250 RESPECTIVELY. = &=
@EXISTING SIGNS AND EXISTING SIGN POST SHALL REMAIN. > P
S 14' TS POST
~ . /_ BREAKAWAY BASE
(7 TN 3 -
= (-7) bl | | CONCRETE FOUNDATION
g
LE o
- PROPOSED SIGN ASSEMBLY A
WITH 14 FT. TS POST ON CONCRETE RELOCATE EXISTING RELOCATE EXISTING
FOUNDATION, TYPE A W16-9P
EXISTING EXISTING (SEE DETAIL) PLAQUE
S1-1 SIGN Wie-7P EXISTING
PLAQUE $4-5 SIGN
@ F @
m 235" ‘ @@ 200’ l 263"
-~
" 80TH AVENUE
L
=
= 275 |
— 160" | 235 | \
-
2 g | @D XD RELOCATED
= @ R2-1 SIGN PANEL
wn
c8emN S %4
PROPOSED SIGN ASSEMBLY A = mo = =m
WITH 14 FT. TS POST ON CONCRETE SIERSEA @) =t
FOUNDATION, TYPE A —
(SEE DETAIL) EXISTING NEW S$5-3_SIGN
Wie-7P EXISTING 247 x 30"
PLAQUE S1-1 SIGN
CLIENT. Doo E;{;J TITLE: PROJ. No. 160373.00028]
CHRISTOPHER B. BURKE ENGINEERING, LTD. VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK RS v FLASHING BEACON INSTALLATION AND SIGNING PLAN [oate: 3/3/2022 |
C 9575 W. Higgins Road, Suite 600 SCALE: 1" = 80’ (SHEET 2 OF 2) SHEET 5 OF 21 |
L PLOT DATE: 371372022
B Rosemont, lllinois 60018 16250 OAK PARK AVENUE CAD USER: olensen 80TH AVENUE FROM 167TH STREET TO 169TH STREET | DRAWING No.
(847) 823-0500 TINLEY PARK IL 60477 No.| DATE NATURE OF REVISION CHKD. | MODEL; Default TINLEY PARK, ILLINOIS
! FILE_NAME_| N\ TINLEYPARKN\IE0T3\G03T3.00028\Tr aFio\06.PED2 160373-028-dgn




Median

L/3 min.

Il

Edge of paved
shoulder _\

For contract
construction
projects

W20-1103(0)-48

For maintenance
and utility
projects

I:' ‘ o5 © O ) ) @) @)
o
\ \_ o
500' (150 m) min. ‘ 500"
I

1000' (300 m) max. (150 m)

W21-1(0)-48

W20-1(0)-48

@ Illinois Department of Transportation

PASSED April 1, 2016

-

ENGINEER OF SAFETY ENGINEERING
APPROVED April 1, 2016

L6-T-T Q3NsSI

ENGINEER OF DESIGN AND ENVIRONMENT

TYPICAL APPLICATIONS

Utility operations

Culvert extensions

Side slope changes

Guardrail installation and maintenance
Delineator installation

Landscaping operations

Shoulder repair

Sign installation and maintenance

SYMBOLS
m Work area

IZ' Sign

O Cone, drum or barricade

O (@] (@]
) —
3 _|e
= Zn
NE <
GENERAL NOTES
This Standard is used where any vehicles,
equipment, workers or their activities will
encroach in the area 15' (4.5 m) to 24 (600)
from the edge of pavement.
Calculate L as follows:
SPEED LIMIT FORMULAS
English (Metric)
40 mph (70 km/h) WsS? WS?
@ When the work operation exceeds one hour, or less: L="¢0 =150
cones, drums or barricades shall be placed
at 25' (8 m) centers for L/3 distance, and at 45 mph (80 km/h) L=(W)(S) L=0.65(W)(S)
50" (15 m) centers through the remainder of or greater:
the work area.
W = Width of offset
in feet (meters).
S = Normal posted speed
mph (km/h).
All dimensions are in inches (millimeters)
unless otherwise shown.
DATE REVISIONS OFF-RD OPERATIONS, MULTILANE,
4-1-16 Corrected typo in title. 1 n
15' (4.5m)TO 24" (600 mm)
1-1-14 Revised workers sign

number to agree with

current MUTCD.

STANDARD 701101-05




100' (30 m) L

W20-7(0)-48

@ W21-1(0)-

48

W20-1(0)-48

W20-1103(0)-48

SIGN SPACING

Posted Speed Sign Spacing
55 500' (150 m)
50-45 350' (100 m)
<45 200' (60 m)

@ Illinois Department of Transportation

January 1,

(F

2019

ENGINEER OF SAFETY PROG. AND ENGINEERING

APPROVED January 1,

gl

2019

~C o
ENGINEER OF DESIGN AND ENVIRONMENT

€1-T-T Qa3Inssl

SYMBOLS

Arrow board

Work area

Barricade or drum with steady
burning mondirectional light

Flagger with traffic control sign

Cone, drum or barricade

Sign on portable or permanent support

Type III barricade with flashing lights

N
HTO.*@-‘g-

® ©O ©

@ ©

Refer to SIGN SPACING TABLE
for distances.

Required for speeds > 40 mph (70 km/h).

Required if work exceeds 500' (164 m)
or 1 block, repeat every 1 mile (1.6 km).

Cones at 25' (8 m) centers for 250' (75 m)
on approach. Additional cones may be
placed at 50' (15 m) centers. When drums
or type I or II barricades are used, the
interval between devices may be doubled.

For approved sideroad closures.

Cones, drums or barricades at
20' (6 m) centers in taper.

Use flagger sign only when flagger is
present.

<= l <=
— o 0O 0 O OfO0 O O O O@0 g o
< T ' (@] le) o 5 <
O - T o
f o [e) o o | o O j f
= 7o o | =>
© o¥%®5 6 0 0 0 0o odo o o o
—> | —>
N 4
[ 1
\o bom | 7 awsom | 1
® | |
- _-8 1S
@ e
W21-1(0)-48 ‘F’\ézro'l(o)"ls
Or - maintenance
GENERAL NOTES
W20-1103(0)-48
For
W20-1103(0)-48 construction This Standard is used where at any time, day or
night, any vehicle, equipment, workers or their
W20-5L(0)-48 W20-1103(0)-48 M activities encroach on the pavement requiring

the closure of one traffic lane in an Urban area.

If the work operation is performed between

9:00 a.m. and 3:00 p.m. and does not exceed 15 min.
Traffic protection shall be as shown for

Standard 701426.

Calculate L as follows:

SPEED LIMIT FORMULAS
English (Metric)
40 mph (70 km/h) |_ZWSZ _ws?
or less: 60 150
45 mph (80 km/h) L=(W)(S) L=0.65(W)(S)
or greater:
w = Width of offset

in feet (meters).

Normal posted speed
mph (km/h).

All dimensions are in inches (millimeters)
unless otherwise shown.

DATE

REVISIONS

URBAN LANE CLOSURE,

1-1-19

Revised to allow cones at night.

MULTILANE, 2W WITH

BIDIRECTIONAL LEFT TURN LANE

1-1-18

Moved arrow boards into

(Sheet 1 of 4)

closed lanes for CASE 1.

STANDARD 701602-10




W20-7(0)-48

W21-1(0)-48

W1-3L(0)-48
Speeds 30 mph
(50 km/h) or less.

X X
W13-1(0)-2424 “

Or

W1-4L(0)-48

W1-3R(0)-48
Speeds 30 mph
(50 km/h) or less.

X X
W13-1(0)-2424
Or

W1-4R(0)-48

W13-1(0)-2424 ‘
MPH

W20-1(0)-48

@ Illinois Department of Transportation

(F

January 1, 2019

ENGINEER OF SAFETY PROG. AND ENGINEERING

APPROVED

January 1, 2019

€1-T-T Qa3Inssl

gl

~C o
ENGINEER OF DESIGN AND ENVIRONMENT

W20-1103(0)-48

CASEIl

\ b
— // \
</
faY o o Qo o o Qo faY o o faY o o O
) 0] e}
5 ¢ K/ || o °F0 o . P ¢
O O O O o o o O & o o & & A A
é o / l:' ¢ =
o) oO- 0 -0 @
)
—> o) ' @ =
\ T -
F\ ( B | B ) g,).& &i( ; ) (
2 L
@ | @ | L \ @ Type 1l Barricade
T T with
| & / \ — |
Qle Type III
< @ ROAD Bamcade@ W-1-6R(0)-6030
CLOSED (Above barricade
on both sides)
R11-2—
RIGHT LANE For @
CLOSED maC:ntelrll.ance
and utility
W20-11 -4 |
0-1103(0)-48 Drojects W6.3(0).48
W20-5R(0)-48
For
contract
construction
projects

URBAN LANE CLOSURE,
MULTILANE, 2W WITH
BIDIRECTIONAL LEFT TURN LANE

(Sheet 2 of 4)

STANDARD 701602-10




W21-1(0)-48 W21-1(0)-48
Or
W20-7(0)-48
@
100' (30 m) \ 100 (30 m) @
) L J | J L ™~ ® J

S
b8[S0 0
«O
o\

200
(60 m)
200
(60 m)

W20-5L(0)-48

W20-1103(0)-48

W20-1103(0)-48

W20-1103(0)-48

CASE Il

— . URBAN LANE CLOSURE,
@ lllinois Department of Transportation MULTI LAN E, 2W WITH

O i BIDIRECTIONAL LEFT TURN LANE

ENGINEER OF SAFETY PROG. AND ENGINEERING (Sheet 3 of 4)

€1-T-T Qa3Inssl

APPROVED January 1, 2019 STAN DARD 70 1602' 10

g

~C o
ENGINEER OF DESIGN AND ENVIRONMENT




W21-1(0)-48
Or
W20-7(0)-48

\ | =
\ ) _— Type 1 or Type Il barricades b 73
—_— 0 o CZ otO o 7/ 7 < ; /‘[tb/ 2
( @ \llj L | j e,Q\_Type 11 w (
O/é I @)/ I Barricade @

@ ROAD |

W20-1(0)-48 CLOSED

R11-2

W20-1103(0)-48

W20-1103(0)-48

CASEIV

— . URBAN LANE CLOSURE,
@ lllinois Department of Transportation MULTI LAN E’ 2W WITH

OFTN BIDIRECTIONAL LEFT TURN LANE

ENGINEER OF SAFETY PROG. AND ENGINEERING (Sheet 4 of 4)

€1-T-T Qa3Inssl

APPROVED January 1, 2019 STAN DARD 70 1602' 10

g

~C o
ENGINEER OF DESIGN AND ENVIRONMENT




SYMBOLS
Work area

b Sign on portable or
permanent support

— Barricade or drum
o Cone, drum or
barricade

. Type Ill barricade

Detectable pedestrian

channelizing barricade

@ Illinois Department of Transportation

PASSED April 1, 2016

-

ENGINEER OF SAFETY ENGINEERING
APPROVED April 1, 2016

ENGINEER OF DESIGN AND ENVIRONMENT

L6-T-T Q3NsSI

J g -
\ parki @ Omit whenever duplicated by
t;[;iclglg space, <:| road work traffic control.
I:\,> 25' (8 m) Spacing E-J‘El
B~y
“——l =ﬁ= =v=) ==° <5 '——||<r n
o U U o 1
o — [¢) I
N s ' s
W20-1103(0)-48 for
contract
construction
projects
W20-1(0)-48 for
maintenance
and utility
projects
SIDEWALK DIVERSION GENERAL NOTES
This Standard is used where, at any time, pedestrian
traffic must be rerouted due to work being
| T | | | | | performed.
This Standard must be used in conjunction with
JE— — other Traffic Control & Protection Standards when
) \_ \_ roadway traffic is affected.
<:, Temporary facilities shall be detectable and
accessible.
10' (3 m) Spacing The temporary pedestrian facilities shall be
I:,> provided on the same side of the closed facilities
o o whenever possible.
N 4 [ I 4
o The SIDEWALK CLOSED / USE OTHER SIDE sign shall be
| //I | placed at the nearest crosswalk or intersection
o to each end of the closure. Where the closure
| —— | | | — | occurs at a corner, the signs shall be erected on
the corners across the street from the closure.
The SIDEWALK CLOSED signs shall be used at the
W20-1103(0)-48 for ends of the actual closures.
contract
construction SIDEWALK Type Il barricades and R11-2-4830 signs shall be
projects CLOSED positioned as shown in "ROAD CLOSED TO ALL TRAFFIC"
SIDEWALK SIDEWALK detail on Standard 701901.
CLOSED R11-1101-2418 CLOSED All dimensions are in inches (millimeters)
unless otherwise shown.
USE OTHER USE OTHER
W20-1(0)-48 for SIDE SIDE DATE REVISIONS
maintenance
and utility R11-1102-2430 R11-1102-2430 4-1-16 _ |Omitted orange safety fence SIDEWALK, CORNER OR
projects from standard as this is
S|DEWA|.K CLOSURE covered in the std. spec. CROSSWALK CLOSURE
1-1-12 Added SIDEWALK DIVERSION. (Sheet 1 of 2)

Modified appearance of

STANDARD 701801-06

plan views. Renamed Std.




@ Illinois Department of Transportation

PASSED April 1, 2016

-

ENGINEER OF SAFETY ENGINEERING
APPROVED April 1, 2016

L6-T-T Q3NsSI

ENGINEER OF DESIGN AND ENVIRONMENT

SIDEWALK
CLOSED

USE OTHER
SIDE

R11-1102-2430

10" (3 m)

> /: Spacing
o o) o | o)

1 — |

SIDE

CLOSED
N A
USE OTHER

W20-1103(0)-48 for
contract SIDEWALK
construction
projects CLOSED
SIDEWALK R11-1101-2418
CLOSED SIDEWALK
CLOSED
USE OTHER
W20-1(0)-48 for SIDE R111101-2418
gﬁzniiﬂf;ce R11-1102-2430
projects
CORNER CLOSURE
SIDEWALK
CLOSED
USE OTHER
SIDE
SIDEWALK R11-1102-2430

R11-1102-2430 \L

R3-2-2424

CROSSWALK CLOSURE

R3-1-2424

SIDEWALK
CLOSED

USE OTHER
SIDE

R11-1102-2430

W20-1103(0)-48 for
contract
construction
projects

W20-1(0)-48 for
maintenance
and utility
projects

SIDEWALK, CORNER OR
CROSSWALK CLOSURE

(Sheet 2 of 2)

STANDARD 701801-06




28 - 36
(700 - 900)

18-36
(450-900)

Orange
posted speed

Orange
Posted speed < 45 mph

DAYTIME USE

Any

8-12
(200-300)

| 24 (600) |
! min. !

min.

36 (900)

¢ - 5 4

TYPE | BARRICADE

@ Illinois Department of Transportation

January 1, 2019

AP@iOVED
ENGINEER OF SAFETY PROG. AND ENGINEERING
2019

€1-T-T Qa3Inssl

APPROVED January 1,

gl

8-12
[ T 4-6 NY
(700-150) = >/Xo, ’Q *
_r 3 (75) 3| -
= 4-6 mn. — olS ¥
5 3 (T00-1507 m E /Xo/
83 2 - —m B 4 =
. : | E E
®lg A ] e 1
= T = g = 4-6 (100-150)
%g : N "~ 4-6 (100-150)
= ]
Orange Orange
Any posted speed Any posted speed _ /=\ _ ; : )
DAY OR NIGHTTIME USE V V '
CONES TUBULAR MARKER VERTICAL PANEL DRUM
POST MOUNTED
NS NE
o 24 12
LS S R (600) (300] —
* 7 //\ A * *
o ] s }
| o < - 2
g c K S = /\/ o
e RIS B 218 2
© 4' (1.2 m) = ~ =
min.
24 (600) k4 <
min. //007 /\/Ooj
TYPE Il BARRICADE TYPE Ill BARRICADE DIRECTION INDICATOR VERTICAL BARRICADE
BARRICADE
NS NE =
Dy ) NS
o %
* Warning lights (if required)
| GENERAL NOTES
,S\C- All heights shown shall be measured above the
= pavement surface.
off | 4' (1.2 m) ,
) | min. | . All dimensions are in inches (millimeters)
Q % unless otherwise shown.
~le
~N DATE REVISIONS
— . TRAFFIC CONTROL
B 4 2 p p R ' 1-1-19 Revised cone usage and
- o ’ o added cones >36" (900 m) height. DEVICES
DETECTABLE PEDESTRIAN 1-1-18 | Revised END WORK ZONE (Sheet 1 of 3)
CHANNELIZING BARRICADE SPEED LIMIT sign from STANDARD 701901-08
orange to white background.

~C o
ENGINEER OF DESIGN AND ENVIRONMENT




wood post

Edge of pavement

4' (1.2 m) rural
6' (1.8 m) urban

Metal or 7/;—

Warning light
(if required)

) min. rural

313

of pavement

5' (1.5 m) min.

embedment

POST MOUNTED SIGNS

## When curb or paved shoulder are present

this dimension shall

be 24 (600) to the

face of curb or 6' (1.8 m) to the outside
edge of the paved shoulder.

MAX WIDTH

MI - M"

X MILES
AHEAD

W12-1103-4848

WIDTH RESTRICTION SIGN

XX'-XX" width and X miles are variable.

@ Illinois Department of Transportation

AP@iOVED January 1, 2019

ENGINEER OF SAFETY PROG. AND ENGINEERING
APPROVED

January 1, 2019

€1-T-T Qa3Inssl

gl

~C o
ENGINEER OF DESIGN AND ENVIRONMENT

) min. urban

—
\ Elevation of edge

18x18 (450x450)
Orange flags

FLAGGER TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGN

24 - 10 .
Edge of (600 - 3 m) 8%
pavement ol SIGN
C
g; gcrg ~IE (IF SPECIFIED)
¥ B
<<
g
o)
Elevation of edge
of pavement
SIGNS ON TEMPORARY SUPPORTS /\
##4 When work operations exceed )
four days, this dimension shall
i A Sl HIGH LEVEL WARNING DEVICE
behind other devices, the height
shall be sufficient to be seen
completely above the devices.
24
(600)
5 | 7
(125) 1 (175)
=) —
3. 0
o "=
8 (200) Federal series C i
7 (180) Fed‘eral series B e
vg '-“§
_ — _ _ | -~ wg
m) e e
1 ~ U
20% 10 — { I_ 16 if _J
513
(>13) (400)
%2
(15)
B
NN L
©|&
o
FRONT SIDE REVERSE SIDE

ROAD
CONSTRUCTION END
NEXT X MILES CONSTRUCTION

G20-1104(0)-6036 G20-1105(0)-6024

This signing is required for all projects
2 miles (3200 m) or more in length.

ROAD CONSTRUCTION NEXT X MILES sign shall
be placed 500' (150 m) in advance of pro-
ject limits.

END CONSTRUCTION sign shall be erected at
the end of the job unless another job is
within 2 miles (3200 m).

Dual sign displays shall be utilized on multi-
lane highways.

WORK LIMIT SIGNING
oRk W21-1115(0)-3618
ZONE
SPEED
LIMIT e
PHOTO
ENFORCED]|| R10-1108p-3618 *o
SXXX FINE R2-1106p-3618
MINIMUM

Sign assembly as shown on Standards
or as allowed by District Operations.

END
WORK ZONE
SPEED LIMIT

G20-1103-6036

This sign shall be used when the
above sign assembly is used.

HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION
SPEED ZONE SIGNS

% R10-1108p shall only be used along roadways
under the juristiction of the State.

TRAFFIC CONTROL
DEVICES

(Sheet 2 of 3)

STANDARD 701901-08




r A
8' (2.4 m) @) i) // /
min. -
030 [ S ) S S —m l l
4' (1.2 m) min. N s | | il i o©®
min. c N T T T o
. X 1011 10000 10000 o
3 ~|E m Weep holes I:'
— . = - | | L_-____________| L____/________
Jsc oI - 25' 25’ 25' \
Neo & = ~ 0 C/ (8 m) (8 m) ‘ (8 m)
200 200 200
ﬁﬁﬂ 60 m) = 60 m) 60 m =
oi_g' [ - E_E E_E L a 'Et
,: a % |§ SIE dE ] ] E
© { — ] ~ ~ I | PLAN =
()T Lﬂ]mrE“ém”[ s 8 m)
- - - | 1% (45) =+ | Face may be (1.5 m) I—_
| stepped or smooth -
TYPEA TYPEB TYPEC -
ROOF ROOQF OR TRAILER TRAILER i Traffic
MOUNTED MOUNTED MOUNTED R H \ <=
— |
\\— Epoxy channels —/ ‘
1
ARROW BOARDS 37(90) = |
SECTION A-A TYPICAL INSTALLATION
TEMPORARY RUMBLE STRIPS
U U U U U U U U | ] ) U
| < 12 (300
\ f e
Type A 6 (150) 6 (150) 6 (150) =
ﬂégﬁer 4-‘ max. max. RlleA‘ max. EE
o Q Q o / o o 3
= AN NN N ROAD rzz 77 o
I U 1 [T Qe
N mﬂ K_"T\" hl_ﬂ CLOSED % od iS]
— I NN P27 I Edge of
5 T R TH | 12 2~ shoulder o v U
TR //N?A}:I : Dol - : .: ".‘{%\\ SRS
S Sl 12 (300)
Pavement min.
Type A R11-4
ROAD CLOSED TO ALL TRAFFIC flasher /
Q Q
Reflectorized striping may be omitted ROAD CLOSED 4 ROAD CLOSED
on the back side of the barricades. TO P TO
If a Type Il barricade with an attached THRU TRAFFIC THRU TRAFFIC
sign panel which meets NCHRP 350 is not K\ AN 7
available, the sign may be mounted on an = | I— "‘" * "‘" —— H
NCHRP 350 temporary sign support directly SN T e S S S R SRR 2N
in front of the barricade. <\///x< N x\\\ﬁ
Pavement

@ Illinois Department of Transportation

TYPICAL APPLICATIONS OF
TYPE Il BARRICADES CLOSING A ROAD

(F

January 1,

2019

ENGINEER OF SAFETY PROG. AND ENGINEERING

APPROVED

January 1,

2019

gl

~C o
ENGINEER OF DESIGN AND ENVIRONMENT

€1-T-T Qa3Inssl

ROAD CLOSED TO THRU TRAFFIC

Reflectorized striping shall appear on
both sides of the barricades. If a

Type III barricade with an attached

sign panel which meets NCHRP 350 is
not available, the signs may be mounted
on NCHRP 350 temporary sign supports
directly in front of the barricade.

Construction
advance
warning signs

DEVICES

TRAFFIC CONTROL

(Sheet 3 of 3)

STANDARD 701901-08




S~

Sign panel 36 (900) wide or less

41

"

See DETAIL A

[

See DETAIL B

Sign panel over 36 (900) wide

WOOD OR TELESCOPING

STEEL POSTS

@ Illinois Department of Transportation

L TE T

PASSED January 1,

2009

ENGINEER OF OPERATIONS

APPROVED January 1,

Coe € Mo

2009

ENGINEER OF DESIGN AND ENVIRONMENT

L6-T-T Q3NsSI

-

%6 (M8) dia.

/— Sign panel \

P -

|

-

DETAILA

bracket

T~ % (19) Stainless
\\, steel band
Stainless I
steel \[ |

Y6 (M8)
dia.

Sign panel 36 (900) wide or less

11 ga. (3.1) mild steel,
hot-dipped galvanized

DETAIL A

Sign panel over 36 (900) wide

LIGHT OR SIGNAL STANDARDS

Mounting
bracket

] i

B 5 §]s

=

— I~

DETAILB DETAILC

e+ Ve
(20.5+1.5)

DETAIL A
)/

BREAKAWAY STEEL

Secthn modulus Axis A Axis B
(minimum)
Steel 0.050 in.? (819 mm?) 0.105 in.? (1720 mm?)
Aluminum 0.150 in.? (2458 mm?3) 0.315 in.? (5162 mm?3)
n
ol .
~l£
RS A
_ |=. Optional
~ - N
g g dp
s E =
i — |=, Optional

L % (10) dia. at

1 (25) centers

(typ.)
SUPPORTING CHANNEL DETAILS
ROUTE MARKER ASSEMBLY

TUBING POSTS

(All sign panel sizes)

All dimensions are in inches (millimeters)
unless otherwise shown.

DATE REVISIONS
1-1-09 Switched units to

English (metric).
1-1-97 Renum. Standard 2319-6.

SIGN PANEL

MOUNTING DETAILS

STANDARD 720001-01




12' (3.7 m)
min.
6' (1.8 m)
min. DIVIDED
HIGHWAY
WM
£ 5
8 8
~ ~
] ——C
[ —
Shoulder MULTILANE HIGHWAYS
12' (3.7 m)
min. 27
6' (1.8 m)
min. t
3 [=FAVBURG
= o) [ MOZIER == |
€|,
=
=€
wn
Shoulder

24 (600) min.

* In any area where parking is likely to
occur or where there are obstructions
to view or where signs are located over
sidewalks, the height shall be at least

7' (2.1

SPEED
LIMIT

30

7
(2.1 m)

@ Illinois Department of Transportation

PASSED

January 1,

2014

ENGINEER (OF OPERATIONS

APPROVED

January 1,

2014

ENGINEER OF DESIGN AND ENVIRONMENT

L6-T-T Q3NsSI

m).

TWO LANE RURAL HIGHWAYS

URBAN LOCATIONS

(2.1 m)

Sidewalk IL

TYPICAL INSTALLATIONS

Signs in any area shall be erected to
a uniform height above the edge of the
pavement.

Shoﬁ\/

Secondary
sign

W
15 W 35 W 35 W 15 W 2 W 6 W w
12' (3.7 m) ] ] ] 12 (3.7 m) ] ]
min. min. | | | |
6' (1.8 m) 6' (1.8 m)
min. min. | | | |
/é .
—|<
e
~
o

|
]

o0t TR
POST SPACING FOR NON-FREEWAY SIGN PANELS
93° + 1°
i
P
TANGENT SECTION 937 £ 1°
90° + 1°
g
/ - ~

p

90° + 1°

CURVE SECTION

GROUND MOUNT SIGN POSITIONING

All dimensions are in inches (millimeters)
unless otherwise shown.

DATE REVISIONS

SIGN PANEL

1-1-14 Added shoulders and slopes.

Changed sign distances

ERECTION DETAILS

from roadway and shoulder.

1-1-12 Rev. sign elev. for multilane

hwy's. Revised sign elev. and

STANDARD 720006-04

dist. to curb for rural loc.




@ Illinois Department of Transportation

PASSED January 1, 2009 @
Z

&

ENGINEER OF OPERATIONS ©
APPROVED January 1, 2009 =
Coo <

Mo =

ENGINEER OF DESIGN AND ENVIRONMENT

@Top E—

= %
o

o~
° Qr

x|

NN R

7
)\
min. /&

E

T

T

@ Base 4

T

E

T

/OOO/OOOOOOK
5
(15 m)

of
i/

GROUND MOUNT DETAIL

@ Top O
O
~2 i o [
1o M|
‘| ‘_T 3| : f{‘
O W e o
. e} . 3 Aq“ ‘q;
DRNRNRY o i Y R
. =] I
TR ~ | S _
"\a)\ S oS ©3
bH = — Q MK
@ Sleeve 5/ 24 - =
T O e
7 O [
@ Base ;ﬁi’é\'

PAVEMENT MOUNT DETAIL

2 x 2 x var. (51 x 51 var.)

1% x 1% x 12 (44 x 44 x 300)

2% x 2% x 60 (57 x 57 x 1500)

2% x 2% x 18 (64 x 64 x 450)

@ ©@0E®®

2Y x 2% x 36) (57 x 57 x 900)

®

&

©

% (3)
© ©

min.

&
° 6 of
c, O © ©

/

@/l

S © & ¢
L2 <

(75]25)

(75]25)

SPLICE DETAIL

6 (150)

6 (150)

min.

min.

GENERAL NOTES

All bolts % (M10) hex head zinc or cadmium plated.

All dimensions are in inches (millimeters)
unless otherwise shown.

TELESCOPING STEEL

SIGN SUPPORT

STANDARD 728001-01

DATE REVISIONS

1-1-09 Switched units to
English (metric).

1-1-07 New Standard. Used to
be part of Standard
720006.




See Detail "A" See Detail "B"
1\ /_[ — Recessed cover
. =\ LVl e Y, g

Cable hooks —| = K—
! o . Handhole cover handle
';_'bg : | _— Equipment grounding | |
s conductor to controller \\I \L ]—®
double handhole. v/l 7
U.L. listed : VD, . Handhole frame
direct burial RIS
splice kit el
e To pole or post Cast corner
I frame web
- Heavy-duty compression
. N e ;5:’ v / terminal with stainless
N e Heavy-duty ) steel nut. Anti-corrosion
No. 6 AWG . R S compression Stainless steel bolt, nut, compound shall be applied
equipment grounding QOO%(QU@OOOé)O%QQ terminal and two washers. Anti- to the assembly.
conductor (green) (\OOQAOSPOAO(}\OOO%A corrosion compound shall

be applied to the assembly.

DETAIL "A" DETAIL "B"

BONDING A HANDHOLE
COVER & FRAME

Access cover

Grounding electrode
G dl /
round fug conductor
Handhole frame and cover /
g Equipment grounding W%
§E H il

(N )

T
LR | SIS

et Mo N

% x 1% (13 x 31) stainless steel bolt with v \( )
split lock washer and nylon insert lockout o - V,\ % x 10' (19 x 3.0 m) copper
welded to frame and to cover (typical). v v ’

clad grounding electrode

Anti-corrosion compound shall be applied Voo v
to each assembly.

BONDING AN EXISTING GROUNDING A MAST ARM POLE/POST
HANDHOLE COVER & FRAME

Yo o

% (19) CI Si . ) L .
4 (19) Clamp Size All dimensions are in inches (millimeters)
unless otherwise shown.

HEAVY-DUTY HEAVY-DUTY DATE REVISIONS
COMPRESSION TERMINAL GROUND ROD CLAMP 1-1-09 | Switched units to TRAFFIC SIGNAL

@ Illinois Department of Transportation

PASSED January 1, 2009

frotn el GROUNDING & BONDING
ENGINEER OF OPERATIONS Z 1-1-07 Revised terminology.
move el 20| STANDARD 873001-02

ENGINEER OF DESIGN AND ENVIRONMENT




No. 6 bare
copper wire

1 (25) Bevel

W
\
1
(

Anchor —_ | | |
rod

36
(900)

Concrete
\ Ja

4 a

.

Ground clamp

Bushing

-

Finished

grade line

~

(600) Square or /

24
24 (600) diameter Ground

) rod
Conduit (size

as required)

TYPEA

@ Illinois Department of Transportation

January 1, 2021

PASSED @
v

[

&

ENGINEER OF OPERATIONS ©
APPROVED January 1, 2021 =
~ N

v/
ENGINEER OF DESIGN AND ENVIRONMENT

24 (600)

min.

Finished
grade lin

Controller

36 4 (100)
(900) 4" (typ.)

cabinet base

RN

Battel’y a—/— T — :A pr— L —
cabinet m @:I £ :@ @ @:}]:B
b
L=_ _g_ =
2
TOP VIEW
No. 6 bare

Ground
=) clamp
n

0|2
==
/:",
oo ] s el
a
s ERE
(e} < e
o
e B
,;1 N
P

Concrete /

Conduit (size Ground
as required) rod

TYPEC
FOR GROUND MOUNTED
CONTROLLER CABINET
AND UPS BATTERY CABINET

copper wire

Bushing

1 (25)

Controller
cabinet base

fomm] [
b a <
2 ——F— — —p—
Cr 13
<

36 (900) Apron

TOP VIEW

No. 6 bare
copper wire

Bushing
n

Finished
grade Iinej\
AN

L

36
(900)

<

Concrete /

Conduit (size
as required)

TYPED
FOR GROUND MOUNTED
CONTROLLER CABINET

All dimensions are in inches (millimeters)
unless otherwise shown.

DATE

REVISIONS

CONCRETE

1-1-21

Revised anchor rod end in

Type E detail.

FOUNDATION DETAILS

1-1-15

Revised TYPE E detail.

(Sheet 1 of 2)

STANDARD 878001-11




Bolt circle and
quantity of anchor
rods as specified.

TOP VIEW

No. 6 bare

copper wire

.

\ Vertical rebar @

equally spaced

Ground clamp

Stainless Bushing
steel mesh
1 o
1% (40) 2 — 12 —
Bevel E 2 .
Finished g | | Z|s
grade Iint\ — \ x| E
N1 ' -
N\ S o
T q NI S
_/ ? e s
9 (225) Formed H=—1| ~IE 3le
top below A —H <€
grade line g = N
Anchor rods,—/ | | | B
quantity and -\‘\_:
c - : . —!
-% @ size as specified. | | —
SE I —— |
€ c |
£5 /_<_/
Sl o \_
SR Vertical rebar - =]
a5 8 equally spaced L |
cls 2 =
HE v -<_/
S|y 2
S|2 3  Thread bottom of — T rGOrgumd
2|2 @ anchor rod 2 (50) \_<_/
£3 and provide matching \ \_>_
@ g a hex head nut fully | B —
<z H
Qs
H ~
~~— No. 4 (No. 13)
spiral with 6 (150)
pitch
G \-
=
m|E
\ Three loops min.
@ top and bottom.

@ Illinois Department of Transportation

PASSED January 1, 2021

ENGINEER OF OPERATIONS
APPROVED January 1, 2021

gt

v/
ENGINEER OF DESIGN AND ENVIRONMENT

20-T-T a3nssl

TYPEE

Loops shall be
spaced 2 (50) apart.

2% (63) Conduit

Foundation Foundation Spiral Quantity of Size of
Mast Arm Length @ Depth * ®Diameter %Diameter @ Rebars Rebars
Less than 30' (9.1 m) 10'-0" (3.0 m) 30 (750) 24 (600) 8 6 (19)
Greater than or equal 13'-6" (4.1 m) 30 (750) 24 (600) 8 6 (19)
to 30' (9.1 m) and less
than 40' (12.2 m) 11'-0" (3.4 m) 36 (900) 30 (750) 12 7 (22)
Greater than or equal
to 40' (12.2 m) and less 13'-0" (4.0 m) 36 (900) 30 (750) 12 7 (22)
than 50' (15.2 m)
Greater than or equal
to 50' (15.2 m) and up 15'-0" (4.6 m) 36 (900) 30 (750) 12 7 (22)
to 55' (16.8 m)
Greater than or equal
to 56' (16.8 m) and less 21'-0" (6.4 m) 42 (1060) 36 (900) 16 8 (25)
than 65' (19.8 m)
Greater than or equal
to 65' (19.8 m) and up 25'-0" (7.6 m) 42 (1060) 36 (900) 16 8 (25)

to 75' (22.9 m)

X For standard and combination mast arm assemblies. Foundation depths for
standard dual mast arms with the longest arm length upto and including
55' (16.8 m) shall be increased by 1' (0.3 m) of that shown in the table,
based on the longer of the two arms.

These foundation depths are for sites which have cohesive soils (clayey silt,
sandy clay, etc.) along the length of the shaft, with an average Unconfined
Compressive Strength (Qu) > 1.0 tsf (100 kpa). This strength shall be verified by
boring data prior to construction or with testing by the Engineer during
foundation drilling. The Bureau of Bridges & Structures should be contacted

for a revised design if other conditions are encountered.

CONCRETE
FOUNDATION DETAILS

(Sheet 2 of 2)

STANDARD 878001-11




TABLE OF CONTENTS

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT ..ottt ettt e s bt e e e s e s snana e e e e e e e 2
CCDOTH PERMIT ettt sttt e e s e et e e e s s e et e e e e s s s s snb b et e e e s e s esannrnneeees 2
TRAFFIC SIGNAL WORK GENERAL ....ettiiiiiiiieitteet ettt rrrte e s s e e e e s s semeraeeee e e e 3
TRAFFIC SIGNAL POST ..ttt st a e s bs s e s s abs b e e e s sabas e e saarasee s 16
CONCRETE FOUNDATION. ...ttt ittt sttt sttt ettt et e st e s st e e s s e e e s eabe e e s smnee e e s e sarenesennnens 18
FLASHING BEACON INSTALLATION, SOLAR POWERED .....ccccitiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiirtcnce et 19
REMOVE EXISTING SIGN POST ..ottt s saas s 20

TRAFFIC CONTROL AND PROTECTION, COMPLETE......coiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii it 21



COOK COUNTY

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

The following Special Provisions supplement the "Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge
Construction,” adopted January 1, 2022, the latest edition of the "Manual on Uniform Traffic Control
Devices for Streets and Highways," and the Supplemental Specifications (if applicable) which apply to and
govern the flashing beacon installation for the project area along 80th Ave (County Hwy W32) at 167th
Street; and in case of conflict with any part or parts of said Specifications, the said Special Provisions shall
take precedence and shall govern.

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT

The work consists of signage changes and installing solar powered flashing beacon sign assemblies for the
school zone located along 80t Ave (County Hwy W32) near 167 Street.

CCDOTH PERMIT

The work involves County right-of-way and a permit is required to construct this project. The contractor will
be required to acquire a $20,000 bond and submit associated permit and insurance documentation. The
costs associated with acquiring the bond and submitting associated documents shall be included in the
contract cost.



SPECIAL PROVISION
FOR
TRAFFIC SIGNAL WORK GENERAL

Effective: 01/01/18
Revised: 5/1/21 (Revised Phone Number)

All work and equipment performed and installed under this contract, shall be governed and shall comply to
the State of Illinois "Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction” latest edition, herein referred
to as the Standard Specifications and the “District One Standard Design Details”; the State of Illinois "Manual
on Uniform Traffic Control Devices for Streets and Highways", latest edition; the "National Electrical Code"
latest edition herein referred to as the NEC; the National Electrical Manufacturers Association, herein referred
to as NEMA (all publications for traffic control items) latest editions; the International Municipal Signal
Association, herein referred to as IMSA "Official Wire & Cable Specifications Manual" latest edition; the
Institute of Transportation Engineers, herein referred to as the ITE, Technical Report No.1, "A Standard for
Adjustable Face Vehicular Traffic Control Heads"; AASHTO "Standard Specifications for Structural Supports
for Highway Signs, Luminaries and Traffic Signals" and the "Supplemental Specifications" and "Recurring
Special Provisions" noted herein.

The following Special Provisions supplement the above specifications, manuals, and code. The intent of
these Special Provisions is to prescribe the materials and construction methods commonly used for traffic
signal installations. All material furnished shall be new unless otherwise noted herein. The locations and the
details of all installations shall be as indicated on the Plans or as directed by the Engineer. Traffic signal
construction and maintenance work shall be performed by personnel holding IMSA Traffic Signal Technician
Level Il certification. The work to be done under this contract consists of furnishing and installing all traffic
signal work as specified in the Plans and as specified herein in a manner acceptable and approved by the
Engineer. In case of conflict with any part or parts of said documents, these Special Provisions shall take
precedence and shall govern.

In order to reduce possible vehicular conflicts with fixed objects and avoid public criticism, it is necessary to
require that no posts, poles, heads, or controller cabinets be installed until all traffic signal control equipment
is brought to and located on the job site.

The construction, installation and/or removal work shall be accomplished at all the intersections within the
limits of this project or as shown in the plans.

Description of Work. The work to be done under this contract consists of furnishing and installing all traffic
signal work as specified on the Plans and as specified herein in a manner acceptable and approved by the
Engineer.

Control of Traffic Signal Materials.

All work shall meet the requirements of the "Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction”,
except as follows:



The controller and all control equipment shall be of a manufacturer that is approved by this Department. All
equipment shall have a representative and shop located in the six (6) county Chicago areas. All equipment
installed in the controller cabinet shall be from a single supplier. The supplier shall be responsible for service
and support for this equipment.

The intent of this Section is to prescribe the materials and construction methods commonly used for traffic
signal installations. All material furnished shall be new unless otherwise noted herein. Traffic materials and
equipment shall bear the U.L. label whenever such labeling is available.

All iron and steel products, which are to be incorporated into work shall be domestically manufactured or
produced and fabricated. The contractor shall obtain from the iron or steel producer and/or fabricator, in
addition to the mill analysis, a certification that all iron or steel materials meet these domestic source
requirements.

The application of all coatings, epoxy, galvanizing, painting, etc., to metal products shall be domestically
applied.

Metal material other than iron and steel, which are not domestically produced, may be accepted provided:

(a) The contractor notifies the Department in advance of his/her intension to use other than domestically
manufactured or produced material.

(b) Written evidence is provided in English of compliance with all requirements of the specifications.
(c) Physical tests conducted by the department verify the acceptability of the material.

Before any signal equipment, including mast arm assemblies, poles, controller cabinets, all control equipment
and signal heads, are delivered to the job site, the Contractor shall obtain and forward to the Engineer a
certified, notarized statement from the manufacturer, containing the catalog numbers of the equipment and/or
material, guaranteeing that the equipment and/or material, after manufacture, comply in all respects with the
requirements of the Specifications and these Special Provisions.

All material approval requests shall be within thirty (30) consecutive calendar days after the Contract is
awarded, or at the pre-construction meeting, whichever is first. A list of major traffic signal items can be found
in Article 801.05. Material or equipment which is similar or identical shall be the product of the same
manufacturer, unless necessary for system continuity. Traffic signal materials and equipment shall bear the
U.L. label whenever such labeling is available.

All cost of work and materials required to comply with the above requirements shall be included in the pay
item bid prices, under which the subject materials and signal equipment are paid, and no additional
compensation will be allowed. Materials and signal equipment not complying with the above requirements
that have been installed on the job will be done at the Contractor's own risk and may be subject to removal
and disposal at the Contractor's expense.



The Contractor must submit the following for approval by the Engineer:

Four (4) complete set of manufacturer's descriptive literature, drawings, and specifications of the traffic signal
equipment, handholes, junction box, cable, conduit and all associated items that will be installed on the
contract. If the literature contains more than one item, the Contractor shall indicate which item or items will
be furnished.

Partial or incomplete submittal will be returned without review.

The contractor shall supply samples of all wire and cable, and shall make up and supply samples of each
type of cable splice proposed for use in the work for the-Engineer's approval.

Seven (7) complete shop drawings of the mast arm assemblies and poles including combination mast arm
poles are required, showing in detail the fabrication, anchor bolts, reinforcing materials, design material,
thickness of sections and weld sizes. These drawing shall be approved by IDOT at least 11" x 17" (275mm
x 425mm) in size and adequate quality for microfilming.

Certain non-standard mast arm poles and assemblies will require additional review. The Contractor shall
account for additional review time in their schedule.

Seven (7) copies of a letter from the Traffic Signal Contractor on company letterhead listing contract number
or permit number, project location limits, pay item number and description and listing the manufacturer's name
and model numbers of the proposed equipment to be supplied and stating that the proposed equipment meets
all Contract requirements. The letter will be reviewed by the Engineer to determine whether the equipment to
be used is approvable. The letters will be stamped as approved or not approved accordingly and returned to
the Contractor.

Five (5) copies of a letter from the Traffic Signal Contractor listing the System Coordination and Timing
(SCAT) consultant's name shall be supplied. The letter will be reviewed by the Engineer to determine whether
the SCAT consultant to be used is approved. The letters will be stamped as approved or not approved
accordingly and returned to the Contractor.

Where certifications and/or warranties are specified. The information submitted for approval shall include
certifications and warranties. Certifications involving inspections and/or tests of material shall be complete
with all test data, dates and times.

All above shall be stamped with the Section Number, Permit Number, or Contract Number and Intersection(s)
name(s). Pay item numbers shall also be included. If the above required information is not on each sheet of the
above literature or letters, the equipment and material cuts will not be reviewed and shall be returned to the
Contractor.

All submitted items reviewed and marked ‘APPROVED AS SUBMITTED', ‘APPROVED AS NOTED,
‘DISAPPROVED’, INCOMPLETE’ or * NOT REVIEW are to be resubmitted in their entirety, unless otherwise



indicated within the submittal comments, with a disposition of previous comments to verify contract compliance at
no additional cost to the contract.

e Exceptions, Deviations and Substitutions. In general, exceptions to and deviations from the requirements of the
Contract Documents will not be allowed. It is the Contractor’s responsibility to note any deviations from Contract
requirements at the time of submittal and to make any requests for deviations in writing to the Engineer. In general,
substitutions will not be acceptable. Requests for substitutions must demonstrate that the proposed substitution
is superior to the material or equipment required by the Contract Documents. No exceptions, deviations or
substitutions will be permitted without the approval of the Engineer.

o After the engineer reviews the submittals for conformance with the design concept of the project, the Engineer will
stamp the drawings indicating their status. The Engineer’s review is for conformance with design concept only. It
is the Contractor’s responsibility to coordinate the various items into a working system as specified. The Contractor
shall not be relieved from responsibility for errors or omissions in the shop working, layout drawings, or other
documents by the Departments approval thereof. The Contractor must be in full compliance with contract and
specification requirements.

e Contractor shall not order major equipment such as mast arm assemblies prior to Engineer approval of the
Contractor marked proposed traffic signal equipment locations to assure proper placement of contract required
traffic signal displays, push buttons and other facilities. Field adjustments may require changes in proposed mast
arm length and other coordination.

Marking Proposed Locations.

Revise the following to Article 801.09 of the Standard Specifications:

Revise “Marking Proposed Locations for Highway Lighting System” to read “Marking Proposed Locations for
Highway Lighting System and Traffic Signals.”

It shall be the contractor's responsibility to verify all dimensions and conditions existing in the field prior to
ordering materials and beginning construction. This shall include locating the mast arm foundations and
verifying the mast arms lengths.

Maintenance and Responsihility.

Revise Article 801.11 to read as follows.

a) Existing traffic signal installations and/or any electrical facilities at all or various locations may be
altered or reconstructed totally or partially as part of the work on this Contract. The Contractor is
hereby advised that all traffic control equipment, presently installed at these locations, may be the
property of the State of lllinois, Department of Transportation, Division of Highways, Cook County
Highway Department, Private Developer, or the Municipality in which they are located. Once the
Contractor has begun any work on any portion of the project all traffic signals within the limits of this
contract or those which have the item "Maintenance of Existing Traffic Signal Installation”,
“Temporary Traffic Signal Installation(s)’ and/or “Maintenance of Existing Flashing Beacon



Installation”, shall become the full responsibility of the Contractor. Automatic Traffic Enforcement
equipment is not owned by the County and the Contractor shall not be responsible for maintaining it
during construction. The Contractor shall supply the engineer and the Department's Electrical
Maintenance Contractor a 24-hour emergency contact name and telephone number.

When the project has a pay item for "Maintenance of Existing Traffic Signal Installation”, “Temporary
Traffic Signal Installation(s)” and/or “Maintenance of Existing Flashing Beacon Installation”, the
Contractor must notify both the Design Engineer at (312) 603-1734 and the Department’s Electrical
Maintenance Contractor, of their intent to begin any physical construction work on the Contract or
any portion thereof. This notification must be made a minimum of seven (7) working days prior to
the start of construction to allow sufficient time for inspection of the existing traffic signal installation(s)
and transfer of maintenance to the Contractor. If work is started prior to an inspection, maintenance
of the traffic signal installation(s) will be transferred to the Contractor without an inspection. The
Contractor will become responsible for repairing or replacing all equipment that is not operating
properly or is damaged at no cost to the owner of the traffic signal. Final repairs or replacement of
damaged equipment must meet the approval of the Engineer prior to or at the time of final inspection
otherwise the traffic signal installation will not be accepted.

Regional transit, County and other agencies may also have equipment connected to existing traffic
signal or peripheral equipment such as PTZ cameras, switches, transit signal priority (TSP and BRT)
servers and other devices that shall be included with traffic signal maintenance at no additional cost
to the contract.

Contracts such as pavement grinding or patching which result in the destruction of traffic signal loops
will require a maintenance transfer. The Contractor is required to notify of intent to work and an
inspection. A minimum of seven (7) working days prior to the loop removal, the Contractor shall notify
the Design Engineer at (312) 603-1734, the Department’s Electrical Maintenance Contractor and the
owner of automatic traffic enforcement prior to the loop removal, at which time arrangements will be
made to adjust the traffic controller timing to compensate for the absence of detection. Damaged
Automatic Traffic Enforcement equipment, including cameras, detectors, or other peripheral
equipment, shall be replaced by others, per Permit agreements or other agreements, at no cost to
the contract except for City of Chicago projects in which the detectors shall be replaced. See
additional requirements in these specifications under Inductive Loop Detector.

The Contractor is further advised that the existing traffic signal(s), and/or the existing temporary
installation(s), must remain in operation during all construction stages except for the most essential
down time. Any shutdown of the traffic signal installation(s), for a period to exceed fifteen (15)
minutes, must have the prior approval of the Engineer. Such approval will generally only be granted
during the period extending from 10:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. on weekdays. Shutdowns will not be allowed
during inclement weather or during Holiday periods. Any other traffic signal shutdown, either for
periods in excess of one (1) hour or outside of the 10:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. weekday period must
have prior approval of the Engineer. The Contractor, prior to the commencement of his work, shall



notify the State Electrical Maintenance Contractor, the Cook County Electrical Maintenance
Contractor, or the concerned Municipality, of his intent to perform this work.

f)  The Contractor shall be fully responsible for the safe and efficient operation of the traffic signals. Any
inquiry, complaint or request by the Department, the Department’s Electrical Maintenance Contractor
or the public, shall be investigated and repairs begun within one hour. Failure to provide this service
will result in liquidated damages of $1000 per day per occurrence. In addition, the Department
reserves the right to assign any work not completed within this timeframe to the Electrical
Maintenance Contractor. All costs associated to repair this uncompleted work shall be the
responsibility of the Contractor. Failure to pay these costs to the Electrical Maintenance Contractor
within one month after the incident will result in additional liquidated damages of $1000 per month
per occurrence. Unpaid bills will be deducted from the cost of the Contract. The Department’s
Electrical Maintenance Contractor may inspect any signalizing device on the Department’s highway
system at any time without notification.

g) Any proposed activity in the vicinity of a highway-rail grade crossing must adhere to the guidelines
set forth in the current edition of the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD) regarding
work in temporary traffic control zones in the vicinity of highway-rail grade crossings which states
that lane restrictions, flagging, or other operations shall not create conditions where vehicles can be
queued across the railroad tracks. If the queuing of vehicles across the tracks cannot be avoided, a
uniformed law enforcement officer or flagger shall be provided at the crossing to prevent vehicles
from stopping on the tracks, even if automatic warning devices are in place.

h) The Contractor shall be responsible to clear snow, ice, dirt, debris or other condition that obstructs
visibility of any traffic signal display.

) The Contractor shall maintain the traffic signal in normal operation during short or long-term loss of
utility or battery back-up power at critical locations designated by the Engineer. Critical locations
may include traffic signals interconnected to railroad warning devices, expressway ramps,
intersection with an SRA route, critical corridors or other locations identified by the Engineer.
Temporary power to the traffic signal must meet applicable NEC and OSHA guidelines and may
include portable generators and/or replacement batteries.

Damage to Traffic Signal System.
Add the following to Article 801.12(b).

a) Any damaged equipment or equipment not operating properly from any cause whatsoever shall be
replaced with new equipment provided by the contractor at no additional cost to the Contract and/or
owner of the traffic signal system all as approved by the Engineer. Final repairs or replacement of
damaged equipment must meet the approval of the Engineer prior to or at the time of final inspection



c)

otherwise the traffic signal will not be accepted. Cable splices outside the controller cabinet will not
be allowed.

Temporary replacement of damaged or knockdown of a mast arm pole assembly shall require
construction of a full or partial span wire signal installation or other method approved by the Engineer
to assure signal heads are located overhead and over traveled pavement. Temporary replacement
of mast arm mount signals with post mount signals will not be permitted.

Automatic Traffic Enforcement equipment, such as Red-Light Enforcement cameras, detectors, and
peripheral equipment, damaged or not operating properly from any cause whatsoever, shall be the
responsibility of the municipality or the Automatic Traffic Enforcement Company per Permit
agreement or other agreements.

Traffic Signal Inspection (Turn — On).

Revise Article 801.15b to read as follows.

a)

The Contractor must have all electric work completed, the electrical service installation connected
by the utility company and equipment field tested by the Vendor prior to the Department's "turn-on"
field inspection. If in the event the Engineer determines the work is not complete and the inspection
will require more than two (2) hours to complete, the inspection shall be canceled and the Contractor
will be required to reschedule at another date. The maintenance of the traffic signals will not be
accepted until all punch list work is corrected and re-inspected. The Department will not grant a field
inspection until written certification is provided from the Contractor stating the equipment has been
field tested and the intersection is operating according to Contract requirements.

When the road is open to traffic, except as otherwise provided in Section 850 of the Standard
Specification, the Contractor may request a turn-on and inspection of the completed traffic signal
installation at each separate location. This request must be made to the Design Engineer at (312)
603-1734 a minimum of seven (7) working days prior to the time of the requested inspection. The
Department will not grant a field inspection until notification is provided from the Contractor that the
equipment has been field tested and the intersection is operating according to Contract
requirements. The Contractor must invite local fire department personnel to the turn-on when
Emergency Vehicle Pre-emption (EVP) is included in the project. When the contract includes the
item RE-OPTIMIZE TRAFFIC SIGNAL SYSTEM, OPTIMIZE TRAFFIC SIGNAL SYSTEM, or
TEMPORARY TRAFFIC SIGNAL TIMINGS, the Contractor must notify the SCAT Consultant of the
turn-on schedule, as well as stage changes and phase changes during construction.

The Contractor must have all traffic signal work completed and the electrical service installation
connected by the utility company prior to requesting an inspection and turn-on of the traffic signal
installation. The Contractor shall be responsible to provide a Police Officer to direct traffic at the time
of testing.



The Contractor shall provide a representative from the control Equipment Vendor's office to attend
the traffic signal inspection for both permanent and temporary traffic signal turn-ons. Upon
demonstration that the signals are operating and all work is completed in accordance with the
Contract and to the satisfaction of the Engineer, the Engineer will then allow the signals to be placed
in continuous operation. The Agency that is responsible for the maintenance of each traffic signal
installation will assume the maintenance upon successful completion of this inspection.

Acceptance of the traffic signal equipment by the Department shall be based upon inspection results at the
traffic signal turn-on, completeness of the required documentation and successful operation during a minimum
72 hour “burn-in" period following activation of the traffic signal. If approved, traffic signal acceptance shall be
verbal at the turn-on inspection followed by written correspondence from the Engineer. The Contractor shall
be responsible for all traffic signal equipment and associated maintenance thereof until Departmental
acceptance is granted.

All equipment and/or parts to keep the traffic signal installation operating shall be furnished by the
Contractor. No spare traffic signal equipment is available from the Department.

All punch list work shall be completed within two (2) weeks after the final inspection. The Contractor
shall notify the Design Engineer at (312) 603-1734 to inspect all punch list work. Failure to meet
these time constraints shall result in liquidated damage charges of $500 per month per incident.

All cost of work and materials required to comply with the above requirements shall be included in
the pay item bid prices under which the subject materials and signal equipment are paid and no
additional compensation will be allowed. Materials and signal equipment not complying with the
above requirements that have been installed on the job will be at the Contractor's own risk and shall
be subject to removal and disposal at the Contractor's expense.

The Contractor shall furnish the Cook County Highway Department with any special tools or
wrenches that may be required for assembling or maintaining the control equipment and traffic
control signal head assemblies.

All control cable, when complete in place but before permanent connection, shall be subject to
insulation tests at the discretion of the Engineer. The tests shall be made with approved insulation
resistance testing equipment rated at 500 volts D.C. and witnessed by the Engineer. Results of these
tests shall be submitted to the Department in written form, bearing the Engineers signature and shall
become part of the project records. A final inspection of the traffic signal installation shall not be held
until results of this insulation test have been received.

All equipment such as new controllers and allied central equipment with the exception of cable,
conduit, and other materials which require the use of the State of Illinois Materials Testing
Laboratories, shall be built in the suppliers shop and inspected by a representative of this Department
prior to the installation of such equipment, and upon approval of this equipment an inspection ticket
will be issued to the Contractor by the inspection agency (State of Illinois Material Testing Laboratory
or the Cook County Highway Mechanical-Electrical Section). The controller and allied control



equipment shall be prepared in the suppliers shop and run under a load of a minimum of 500 watts
per phase for at least 48 hours before it is inspected for proper operation and sequencing. After it
passes this test an inspection ticket will be issued by the Cook County Highway Mechanical-Electrical
Section representative and it can then be delivered to the job site for installation.

) Upon completion of the installation, a final inspection will be carried out by qualified representatives
of the Highway Agencies involved.

m) If the Contractor fails to comply with any of the requirements, the County shall impose such sanction
as it may determine to be appropriate including but not limited to withholding all payments to the
Contractor on this contract until the provisions of this special provision are complete with and/or
implementation of article 108.10 of the standard specifications.

At the final inspection it will be required that the Contractor will have submitted to the Engineer all necessary
inspection tickets for all new equipment and materials installed under this Contract. If the Contractor has not
obtained the inspection tickets on any portion of the new equipment and materials, the representative of this
Department will have the authority to postpone the final inspection until the above has been satisfied. Any
postponement of the final inspection for this reason shall not relieve the Contractor of his full maintenance
responsibilities until such time as the installation is re-inspected and accepted by the County.

The County requires the following Final Project Documentation from the Contractor at traffic signal turn-ons
in electronic format in addition to hard copies where noted. A CD/DVD shall be submitted with separate
folders corresponding to each numbered title below. The CD/DVD shall be labelled with date, project location,
company and contract or permit number. Record Drawings, Inventory and Material Approvals shall be
submitted prior to traffic signal turn-on for review by the Department as described here-in.

The County requires the following from the Contractor at traffic signal turn-on.

1) The Contractor shall, at the turn-on furnish one hard copy set of signal plans (24"x36") of record with field
revisions marked in red ink to the maintaining agency.

2) Field Testing. Written notification from the Contractor and the equipment vendor of satisfactory field
testing with corresponding material performance measurements, such as for detector loops and fiber
optic systems (see Article 801.13). One hard copy of all contract required performance measurement
testing shall also be provided.

3) A knowledgeable representative of the controller equipment supplier shall be required at the permanent
and temporary traffic signal turn-on. The representative shall be knowledgeable of both cabinet design
and controller functions and shall have sufficient test and spare equipment to make the traffic signal
installation operational.

4) Pictures. Digital pictures of a minimum 12M pixels of each intersection approach showing all traffic signal
displays and equipment. Pictures shall include controller cabinet equipment in enough detail to clearly
identify manufacture and model of major equipment.



9)

Materials Approval. The material approval letter. A hard copy shall also be provided.

Manuals. Operation and service manuals of the signal controller and associated control equipment. One
hard copy shall also be provided.

Cabinet Wiring Diagram and Cable Logs. Five (5) hard copies 11" x 17" of the cabinet wiring diagrams
shall be provided along with electronic pdf and dgn files of the cabinet wiring diagram. Five hard copies
of the cable logs and electronic excel files shall be provided with cable #, number of conductors and
spares, connected device/signal head and intersection location.

Controller Programming Settings. The traffic signal controller’s timings; backup timings; coordination
splits, offsets, and cycles; TBC Time of Day, Week and Year Programs; Traffic Responsive Program,
Detector Phase Assignment, Type and Detector Switching; and any other functions programmable from
the keyboard. The controller manufacturer shall also supply a printed form, not to exceed 11" x 17" for
recording that data noted above. The form shall include a location, date, manufacturer's name, controller
model and software version. The form shall be approved by the Engineer and a minimum of three (3)
copies must be furnished at each turn-on. The manufacturer must provide all programming information
used within the controller at the time of turn-on.

All Manufacturer and Contractor warranties and guaranties required by Article 801.14.

10) GPS coordinate of traffic signal equipment as describe in the Record Drawings section herein.

RECORD DRAWINGS

The requirements listed for Electrical Installation shall apply for Traffic Signal Installations in Article 801.16. Revise
the 2nd paragraph of Article 801.16 of the Standard Specifications to read:

a.

When the work is complete, and seven days before the request for a final inspection, the full-size set of contract
drawings. Stamped “RECORD DRAWINGS’, shall be submitted to the Engineer for review and approval and shall
be stamped with the date and the signature of the Contractor's supervising Engineer or electrician. The record
drawings shall be submitted in PDF format on CDROM as well as hardcopy for review and approval. If the contract
consists of multiple intersections, each intersection shall be saved as an individual PDF file with TS# and location
name in its file name.

In addition to the record drawings, copies of the final catalog cuts which have been Approved or Approved as Noted
shall be submitted in PDF format along with the record drawings. The PDF files shall clearly indicate the pay item
either by filename or PDF Table of Contents referencing the respective pay item number for multi-item PDF files.
Specific part or model numbers of items which have been selected shall be clearly visible.”

Add the following to Article 801.16 of the Standard Specifications:

“In addition to the specified record drawings, the Contactor shall record GPS coordinates of the following traffic
signal components being installed, modified or being affected in other ways by this contract:



Rail Road Bungalow
UPS
Handholes

Controller Cabinets

Conduit Crossings

Datum to be used shall be North American 1983.

Data shall be provided electronically and in print form. The electronic format shall be compatible with MS Excel.
Latitude and Longitude shall be in decimal degrees with a minimum of 6 decimal places. Each coordinate shall

All Mast Arm Poles and Posts
Traffic Signal Wood Poles

Conduit roadway crossings

Communication Cabinets

Electric Service Disconnect locations
CCTV Camera installations

Fiber Optic Splice Locations

have the following information:

1. File shall be named: TSXXX-YY-MM-DD (i.e. TS22157_15-01-01)

2. Each intersection shall have its own file

3. Row 1 should have the location name (i.e. 103" Street at Central Avenue)

4. Row 2 is blank

5. Row 3 is the headers for the columns

6. Row 4 starts the data

7. Column A (Date) — should be in the following format: MM/DD/YYYY

8. Column B (Item) — as shown in the table below

9. Column C (Description) — as shown in the table below

10. Column D and E (GPS Data) — should be in decimal form, per the County special

provisions
Examples:
Date Item Description Latitude Longitude
01/01/2015 | MP (Mast Arm Pole) ggﬁsmfﬁﬁugbe 41580493 | -87.793378
01/01/2015 | HH (Handhole) ﬂ?:éﬁg.“cf% pber 41558532 | -87.792571
01/01/2015 ES (Electrical Service) Ground mount, Pole mount | 41.765532 -87.543571
01/01/2015 | CC (Controller Cabinet) 41.602248 | -87.794053
IL 31 east side crossing
01/01/2015 RSC (Rigid Steel Crossing) south leg to center HH at 41.611111 -87.790222
Klausen

01/01/2015 | PTZ (PTZ) NEQ extension pole 41593434 | -87.769876
01/01/2015 | POST (Post) 41.651848 | -87.762053




01/01/2015 | MCC (Master Controller 41584593 | -87.793378
Cabinet)

01/01/2015 | COMC (Communication 41584600 | -87.793432
Cabinet)

01/01/2015 | BBS (Battery Backup 41558532 | -87.792571
System)

Prior to the collection of data, the contractor shall provide a sample data collection of at least six data points
of known locations to be reviewed and verified by the Engineer to be accurate within 1 feet. Upon verification,
data collection can begin. Data collection can be made as construction progresses, or can be collected after
all items are installed. If the data is unacceptable the contractor shall make corrections to the data collection
equipment and or process and submit the data for review and approval as specified.

Accuracy. Data collected is to be mapping grade. A handheld mapping grade GPS device shall be used for
the data collection. The receiver shall support differential correction and data shall have a minimum 1-foot
accuracy after post processing GPS receivers integrated into cellular communication devices, recreational
and automotive GPS devices are not acceptable.

The GPS shall be the product of an established major GPS manufacturer having been in the business for a
minimum of 6 years.”

Location of Underground State and County Maintained Facilities.

Revise Article 803 to read as follows.

County traffic signal facilities are not part of any of the one-call locating service such as J.U.L.I.E or Digger.
If this contract requires the services of an electrical contractor, the Contractor shall be responsible at his/her
own expense for locating existing IDOT and CCHD facilities prior to performing any work. If this contract
does not require the services of electrical contractor, the Contractor may request one free locate for existing
IDOT and CCHD electrical facilities from the Electrical Maintenance Contractor(s) prior to the start of any
work. Additional requests may be at the expense of the Contractor. The location of underground traffic
facilities does not relieve the Contractor of their responsibility to repair any facilities damaged during
construction at their expense.

The exact location of all utilities shall be field verified by the Contractor before the installation of any
components of the traffic signal system. For locations of utilities, locally owned equipment, and leased
enforcement camera system facilities, the local Counties or Municipalities may need to be contacted, in the
City of Chicago contact D.I.G.G.E.R. at (312) 744-7000 and for all other locations contact J.U.L.I.E. at 1-800-
892-0123.

Restoration. All areas and plant material damaged by the installation of Traffic Signal posts, mast arm poles,
underground cables or conduits, handholes and control cabinets shall be replaced as follows:



e Grass Areas: Replace top soil to a depth of four (4) inches (100 mm), re-grade shoulders, ditch slopes, and
open areas back to former existing grades, fertilize, seed and mulch all damaged areas.

e Sod Areas (areas adjacent to residential, commercial and industrial properties and any other areas as directed
by the engineer): Fertilize and re-sod damaged areas.

¢ Plant Materials: Remove and replace damaged trees, shrubs and vines with the same varieties that existed
prior to damage.

e Shoulders other than Stabilized and Backslopes, medians, sidewalks, pavement, etc.: Replace shoulder to
original condition and restore edge of backslope to original lines and grades. Medians, sidewalks and
pavement shall be replaced in kind.

o All brick pavers disturbed in the work area shall be restored to their original configuration or as directed by
the Engineer. All damaged brick pavers shall be replaced with a comparable material approved by the
Engineer

All damaged landscape shall be replaced in accordance with Section 250 through 254 of the Standard
Specifications.

Any damage, due to the installation of traffic signal equipment; or necessary removal at handholes, jacking
pits, and inspection openings, of sidewalks, curbs, gutters, median and island paving, and/or pavement, shall
be repaired or replaced by the Contractor. Repair or replacement shall be made with a like material of like
thickness to the existing surface. Restoration of traffic signal work area shall be included in related pay items
such as foundation, conduit, handhole, trench and backfill, etc.

Bagaing Signal Heads.

Light tan colored traffic and pedestrian signal reusable covers shall be used to cover dark/un-energized signal
sections and visors. Covers shall be made of outdoor fabric with urethane coating for repelling water, have
elastic fully sewn around the cover ends for a tight fit over the visor, and have a minimum of two straps with
buckles to secure the cover to the backplate. A center mesh strip allows viewing without removal for signal
status testing purposes. Covers shall include a message indicating the signal is not in service.



SPECIAL PROVISION
FOR
TRAFFIC SIGNAL POST

Effective: 7/1/16

Revised: 5/1/21 (Remove Pedestrian Push-button Post)The furnishing and installation of this item shall meet the
requirements of Sections 106.01, 875, 876, 1077.01 and 1077.02 of the Standard Specifications, except as
follows:

All posts (steel), bases (cast iron), and related mounting hardware shall be hot-dipped galvanized in
accordance with AASHTO M 111. A magnetic field tester may be utilized at any time to determine the
thickness of galvanization. Average galvanization thickness shall be 2.0 oz. per square foot and minimum
thickness shall be 1.8 oz. per square foot. The Contractor shall use a fabric post tightener to attach the post
to the base. If the galvanization on the post is removed using a chain post tightener exposing bare metal, the
post shall be rejected and replaced with a new post.

All iron and steel products, which are to be incorporated into work shall be domestically manufactured or
produced and fabricated. The contractor shall obtain from the iron or steel producer and/or fabricator, in
addition to the mill analysis, a certification that all iron or steel materials meet these domestic source
requirements.

If the fabricator elects to cut and thread the post after the galvanization process, the bare metal shall
immediately be cleaned to remove all cutting solvents and oils, then sprayed with two (2) coats of galvanized
compound. If the Department approves painting, powder coating by the manufacturer will be required over
the galvanizing.

At intersections where all the posts are not being replaced, the traffic signal base shall match existing
condition (octagonal or square). Square base shall be used when all new posts and bases are installed at an
intersection.

When octagonal bases are used, the bases shall be cast iron, approximately 15 inches (375 mm) high and
16 inches (400 mm) across the flat sides at the bottom. All bases shall be designed to accept four (4) 5/8"
(15.6 mm) diameter anchor bolts evenly spaced in a 12-1/2" (312 mm) diameter circle.

Bases shall be cast iron and square in shape, approximately 15 inches (375 mm) high and 14 inches (350
mm) across the flat sides at the bottom. All bases shall be designed to accept four (4) 5/8" (15.6 mm)
diameter anchor bolts evenly spaced between 12" (300mm) and 14" (350mm) diameter circle.

Welded extensions onto the post shall not be permitted.

Posts are to erected plumb and no shims are allowed between the bottom of the base and the foundation.



When a new post is installed on an existing foundation, the foundation shall be plumbed before the post is
installed. It shall not be paid for separately but shall be included in cost for TRAFFIC SIGNAL POST..

Basis of Payment. This work will be paid for at the contract unit price EACH for TRAFFIC SIGNAL POST,
GALVANIZED STEEL, of the length specified which price shall be payment in full for furnishing and installing
the traffic signal post, base, foundation for pedestrian post, nuts and washers, and pipe cap complete. If the
Department approves painting, powder coating by the manufacturer will be required over the galvanization
in accordance with TRAFFIC SIGNAL PAINTING Special Provisions.




SPECIAL PROVISION
FOR
CONCRETE FOUNDATION

Effective: 7/1/16
Revised: 5/1/21 (Add a new pay item)

The installation of a concrete foundation shall meet the requirements of Section 106.01, 878 and 1006.09 of
the Standard Specifications, the Standard Drawing for Concrete Foundations and District One Standard
Traffic Signal Design Details with the addition as the following:

All anchor bolts shall be according to Section 1006.09, except all anchor bolts shall be hot dipped galvanized
a minimum of 12 in. (300 mm) from the threaded end.

All iron and steel products, which are to be incorporated into work shall be domestically manufactured or
produced and fabricated. The contractor shall obtain from the iron or steel producer and/or fabricator, in
addition to the mill analysis, a certification that all iron or steel materials meet these domestic source
requirements.

Foundations used for Combination Mast Arm Poles shall provide an extra 2-1/2 inch (65 mm) raceway.
No foundation is to be poured until the Resident Engineer gives approval as to the depth of the foundation.

Basis of Payment: This work will be paid for at the contract unit price per FOOT (METER) of depth for

CONCRETE FOUNDATION, TYPE A

CONCRETE FOUNDATION, TYPE A - 12" Dia.
CONCRETE FOUNDATION, TYPE C

CONCRETE FOUNDATION, TYPE D

CONCRETE FOUNDATION, TYPE E - 30" (750 mm) Dia.
CONCRETE FOUNDATION, TYPE E - 36" (900 mm) Dia.
CONCRETE FOUNDATION, TYPE E - 42" (900 mm) Dia.

which price shall be payment in full for all necessary excavating or drilling, back filling, disposal of unsuitable
material, form work, ground rods and furnishing all materials within the limits of the foundation. The concrete
apron in front of the cabinet and UPS shall be included in this pay item.



SPECIAL PROVISION
FOR
FLASHING BEACON INSTALLATION, SOLAR POWERED

This work shall consist of furnishing and installing a new solar flashing beacon, post mounted as shown on
the plans and as described herein. This item shall consist of furnishing and installing two 12 inch (300 mm)
L.E.D. single section amber flashing LED module on a new traffic signal post as shown on the plans or as
directed by the Engineer. The signal head shall be made of polycarbonate. This item shall include furnishing
and installing a flasher controller in an aluminum cabinet with discrete solar panels, LED module, battery,
electronics, programmable time clock, compact housing, and be capable of operating only during school
ingress and egress time with a programmable holiday schedule.

The flash pattern shall be MUTCD compliant and operate in a wig-wag fashion. The battery shall have a life
span of a minimum of 5 years and be field replaceable. The battery and electronics may be located inside
the solar panel housing or signal head. The sections of the flasher unit shall be secured with stainless steel
hardware and unless otherwise noted, the polycarbonate housing shall be black in color.

The controller and all control equipment shall be of a manufacturer that is approved by this Department. The
manufacturer shall have a representative and shop located in the six (6) county Chicago areas.

Basis of Payment. This work will be paid for at the contract unit price EACH for FLASHING BEACON
INSTALLATION, SOLAR POWERED which price shall be payment in full for furnishing and installing flashing
beacon solar powered complete with the necessary connections for proper operation. The traffic signal post,
concrete foundation, and sign panels shall be paid for separately as TRAFFIC SIGNAL POST, CONCRETE
FOUNDATION and SIGN PANEL of type specified, respectively.




SPECIAL PROVISION
FOR
REMOVE EXISTING SIGN POST

Description: This work shall consist of removing the existing sign post, as indicated in the
plans to at least a depth of 3ft. The pay item shall cover all expenses associated with removing
the sign post, associated hardware, and restoration of the work area per the Traffic Signal
Work General special provision.

Basis of Payment: The work shall be paid for at contract unit price per EACH of REMOVE
EXISTING SIGN POST.



SPECIAL PROVISION
FOR
TRAFFIC CONTROL AND PROTECTION, COMPLETE

Description: This work shall consist of providing traffic control and protection, complete within
the work zone in accordance with all applicable IDOT standards for lane closures, sidewalk
closures and shoulder closures. The IDOT standards include, but are not limited to, the items
listed under STANDARDS below.

Standards: 701101, 701602, 701801, 701901

Basis of Payment: The work shall be paid for at contract unit price per EACH of TRAFFIC
CONTROL AND PROTECTION, COMPLETE.



Interoffice

Memo

Date: March 28, 2022

To: Pat Carr, Village Manager

From: John Urbanski, Public Works Director

Subject: 15t Amendment to 175" Street Oak Park Ave. to Ridgeland Ave. CCDOTH

Intergovernmental Agreement

Presented for April 5, 2022 COW & Village Board Agenda discussion and possible action:

Background:
On September 13, 2017, the Village of Tinley Park and Cook County Department of Transportation

and Highway (CCDOTH) entered into an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA), to establish the
responsibilities and costs associated with Part A Preliminary Engineering Services and Part B Design
Engineering Services for improvements along 175th Street from Oak Park Avenue to Ridgeland
Avenue, Ridgeland Avenue from 175th Street to Oak Forest Avenue, and Oak Forest Avenue from
Ridgeland Avenue to 167th Street.

Description:
In coordination with adjustments needed to be had during the design phase which has constituted this

requested amendment for Subsection 3.1 of the original IGA:

3.1 County’s Share of the PROJECT. The County shall pay for one hundred (100%) percent of the
costs of the PROJECT as described in this Agreement, less the costs for the Village Work as
described in Section 5.8 herein. The County’s total estimated cost for the PROJECT is Five
Hundred Thirty-Two Thousand Five Hundred Sixty and 00/100 Dollars ($532,560.00).

This amendment still follows that costs associated with the details of the work as described for the
“design Engineering” Phase will be 100% CCDOTH share as shown in the following table.

3

Life Amplified



Budget / Finance:

TEM Tl " VILLAGE COUNTY
COST SHARE SHARE
Original Agreement
Part A Preliminary
Engineering and
Part B Design $482,562 $0 $482,562
Engineering Costs
September 13, 2017
First Amendment
Additional Part B $49,998 $0 $49,998
Design Engineering
Costs
REVISED TOTAL $532,560 $0 $532,560
Staff Direction:
1. Approve amendment to IGA with Cook County and amendment to Resolution 2017-R-
040.
Attachments:

1. First Amendment to Intergovernmental Agreement.
2. Original 2017-R-040 Resolution and IGA.

3

Life Amplified



FIRST AMENDMENT TO INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT

COUNTY OF COOK 175™ STREET
Oak Park Avenue to Ridgeland Avenue

RIDGELAND AVENUE
175%™ Street to Oak Forest Avenue

OAK FOREST AVENUE
Ridgeland Avenue to 167" Street

VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK Section: 17-B6125-00-EG

This First Amendment to Intergovernmental Agreement (the “FIRST AMENDMENT”) is entered into this

day of , 2022, by and between the COUNTY OF COOK, a body politic and
corporate of the State of lllinois (the “COUNTY”), acting by and through its DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION AND HIGHWAYS (the “DEPARTMENT”), and the VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, a municipal
corporation of the State of lllinois (the “VILLAGE”). The COUNTY and VILLAGE are sometimes referred to
herein collectively as the “PARTIES.”

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the COUNTY and VILLAGE entered into an Intergovernmental Agreement (the “AGREEMENT”)
on September 13, 2017, to establish the responsibilities and costs associated with Part A Preliminary
Engineering Services and Part B Design Engineering Services for improvements along 175" Street from
Oak Park Avenue to Ridgeland Avenue, Ridgeland Avenue from 175 Street to Oak Forest Avenue, and
Oak Forest Avenue from Ridgeland Avenue to 167" Street (the “PROJECT”);

WHEREAS, the AGREEMENT is incorporated herein as EXHIBIT 1;

WHEREAS, the PARTIES wish to amend certain financial provisions in the AGREEMENT as additional scope
was identified for the PROJECT, including extended timelines for project management, right-of-way and
utility coordination, and updates to the plans, specifications and estimates for final submittal to the
COUNTY;

WHEREAS, the COUNTY, by virtue of its powers as set forth in the Counties Code, 55 ILCS 5/1-1 et seq.,
and the lllinois Highway Code, 605 ILCS 5/1-101 et seq., is authorized to enter into this FIRST
AMENDMENT;

WHEREAS, the VILLAGE, by virtue of its powers as set forth in the lllinois Municipal Code, 65 ILCS 5/1-1-1
et seq., is authorized to enter into this FIRST AMENDMENT; and

WHEREAS, this FIRST AMENDMENT is further authorized under Article VII, Section 10 of the lllinois
Constitution and by the provisions of the Intergovernmental Cooperation Act, 5 ILCS 220/1 et seq.



FIRST AMENDMENT TO INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
County of Cook/Village of Tinley Park
Section: 17-B6125-00-EG

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the aforementioned recitals and the mutual covenants contained
herein, the PARTIES agree as follows:

A. All provisions contained in the original AGREEMENT that are not in conflict with the terms of this
FIRST AMENDMENT shall remain in full force and effect.

B. Subsection 3.1 of the AGREEMENT is hereby stricken and replaced with the following:

3.1 County’s Share of the PROJECT. The County shall pay for one hundred (100%) percent of
the costs of the PROJECT as described in this Agreement, less the costs for the Village
Work as described in Section 5.8 herein. The County’s total estimated cost for the
PROJECT is Five Hundred Thirty-Two Thousand Five Hundred Sixty and 00/100 Dollars
($532,560.00).

C. ARevised Funding Breakdown is incorporated into this FIRST AMENDMENT and the AGREEMENT
and is attached hereto as REVISED EXHIBIT A. The Revised Funding Breakdown is only an estimate
and does not limit the financial obligations of the PARTIES as described herein.

D. In the event there is a conflict between the terms contained in this document and the attached
exhibits, the terms included in this document shall control.

E. This FIRST AMENDMENT shall become effective upon proper execution by authorized signatories
of the PARTIES and shall remain in effect until the AGREEMENT is terminated by both PARTIES in
writing.

F. This FIRST AMENDMENT may be executed in two (2) or more counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original and all of which shall be deemed one and the same instrument.

G. This FIRST AMENDMENT shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the PARTIES hereto and
their respective successors and assigns.

H. The introductory recitals included at the beginning of this FIRST AMENDMENT are agreed to and
incorporated into this FIRST AMENDMENT.

THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK



FIRST AMENDMENT TO INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
County of Cook/Village of Tinley Park
Section: 17-B6125-00-EG

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the COUNTY and the VILLAGE have caused this FIRST AMENDMENT to be executed
by their respective officials on the dates shown.

EXECUTED BY COUNTY OF COUNTY: EXECUTED BY VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK:
Toni Preckwinkle Michael W. Glotz
President Mayor

Cook County Board of Commissioners

This ____ day of A.D. 2022. This ____ day of A.D. 2022.
ATTEST: ATTEST:
County Clerk Village Clerk
(SEAL) (SEAL)
RECOMMENDED BY: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Kimberly M. Foxx, State's Attorney

Jennifer “Sis“ Killen, P.E., PTOE Assistant State’s Attorney
Superintendent

County of Cook

Department of Transportation and Highways



FIRST AMENDMENT TO INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
County of Cook/Village of Tinley Park
Section: 17-B6125-00-EG

REVISED EXHIBIT A

Funding Breakdown

ITEM Es-_ll-_lol\{:_/:[ED VILLAGE COUNTY
COST SHARE SHARE

Original Agreement
Part A Preliminary
Engineering and $482,562 $0 $482,562
Part B Design
Engineering Costs
September 13, 2017
First Amendment
Additional Part B $49,998 SO $49,998
Design Engineering
Costs

REVISED TOTAL $532,560 1] $532,560




STATE OF ILLINOIS )
COUNTYOFCOOK ) SS.
COUNTYOFWILL )

CLERK'S CERTIFICATE

I, KRISTIN A. THIRION, the duly elected and qualified Village Clerk of the Village of
Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, I1linois, do hereby certify that attached hereto is a true and
correct copy of the Resolution now on file in my office, entitled:

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-R-040
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OFAN INTERGOVERNMENTAL
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK AND THE COUNTY OF COOK
FOR 175" STREET — OAK PARK AVENUE TO RIDGELAND AVENUE
which was passed by the Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park at a regular meeting held on

the 1 day of August. 2017. at which meeting a quorum was present. and approved by the President of
the Village of Tinley Park on the 1 day of August, 2017,

I further certify that the vote on the question of the passage of the said Resolution by the Board
of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park was taken by the Ayes and Nays and recorded in the Journal
of Proceedings of the Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park, and that the result of said vote
was as follows, to-wit:

AYES: Younker,Pannitto,Berg,Brady,Glotz,Mangin

NAYS: None

ABSENT: None

[ do further certify that the original Resolution, of which the attached is a true copy, is entrusted to my
care for safekeeping. and that | am the lawful keeper of the same.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF. [ have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the Village of

2009

%&L&M A‘L//é g

Wk" vludu{/(:le;k




RESOLUTION NO. 2017-R-040
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OFAN INTERGOVERNMENTAL
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK AND THE COUNTY OF COOK
FOR 175™ STREET — OAK PARK AVENUE TO RIDGELAND AVENUE

WHEREAS, the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, is a Home Rule Unit
pursuant to the Illinois Constitution of 1970; and

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties,
Illinois, have considered entering into An Intergovernmental Agreement with the County of Cook pertaining
to the making of improvements along 175", Ridgeland Avenue, and Oak Forest Avenue, a true and correct
copy of such Intergovernmental Agreement being attached hereto and made a part hereof as EXHIBIT 1;
and

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties,
[llinois, have determined that it is in the best interests of said Village of Tinley Park that said Agreement be
entered into by the Village of Tinley Park;

NOW, THEREFORE, Be It Resolved by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of
Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, as follows:

Section 1: The Preambles hereto are hereby made a part of, and operative provisions of, this
Resolution as fully as if completely repeated at length herein.

Section 2: That this President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park hereby find
that it is in the best interests of the Village of Tinley Park and its residents that the aforesaid
Intergovernmental Agreement be entered into and executed by said Village of Tinley Park, with said
Agreement to be substantially in the form attached hereto and made a part hereof as EXHIBIT 1.

Section 3: That the President and Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties,
Illinois are hereby authorized to execute for and on behalf of said Village of Tinley Park the aforesaid

Intergovernmental Agreement.



Section 4: That this Resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption and approval.
ADOPTED this 1* day of August, 2017, by the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park
on a roll call vote as follows:
AYES:
NAYS:

ABSENT:

APPROVED this 1* day of August, 2017, by the President of t%? Village of Tinley Park.

/ %"ﬂﬁée Prestdent

ATTEST:

\}\U’iut rJ /éf @ ,(,og_,

Deputy Willage Clerk




EXHIBIT 1

AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
AND THE COUNTY OF COOK FOR 175™ STREET —
OAK PARK AVENUE TO RIDGELAND AVENUE



INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT

THE COUNTY OF COOK 175™ STREET
Oak Park Avenue to Ridgeland Avenue

VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK RIDGELAND AVENUE
175" Street to Oak Forest Avenue

OAK FOREST AVENUE
Ridgeland Avenue to 167" Street

Section: 17-B6125-00-EG

This Intergovernmental Agreement (the "Agreement") is made and entered into by and
between the County of Cook (the “County”), a body politic and corporate of the State of Illinois, and
the Village of Tinley Park (the “Village”), a municipal corporation of the State of Illinois. The County
and the Village are sometimes individually referred to as “Party” and collectively referred to as the
“Parties.”

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Constitution of the State of Illinois, 1970, Article VII, Section 10, authorizes units of
local government to contract or otherwise associate among themselves in any manner not prohibited by
law or ordinance; and

WHEREAS, the provisions of the Intergovernmental Cooperation Act, 5 ILCS 220/1 et seq., authorize
and encourages intergovernmental cooperation; and

WHEREAS, the County by virtue of its powers as set forth in the Counties Code, 55 ILCS 5/1-1 et
seq., and the Illinois Highway Code, 605 ILCS 5/1-101 ef seq., is authorized to enter into this
Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Village by virtue of its powers as set forth in the Illinois Municipal Code, 65 ILCS
5/1-1-1 et seq., is authorized to enter into this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the County and the Village are units of local government under the Illinois and have the
constitutional and statutory authority to enter into this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, in order to facilitate the free flow of traffic and ensure the safety of the motoring public, the
County and the Village wish to make improvements along 175™ Street from Oak Park Avenue to
Ridgeland Avenue, Ridgeland Avenue from 175" Street to Oak Forest Avenue, and Oak Forest Avenue
from Ridgeland Avenue to 167" Street; and

WHEREAS, the Village has prepared Part A Preliminary Engineering Study report originally approved
in April 2009 for the 175" Street corridor from Oak Park Avenue to Ridgeland Avenue, Ridgeland
Avenue corridor from 175" Street to Oak Forest Avenue and Oak Forest Avenue corridor from
Ridgeland Avenue to 167" Street; and



175™ STREET
RIDGELAND AVENUE
OAK FOREST AVENUE
Section: 17-B6125-00-EG

WHEREAS, the planned improvements include update of the Part A Preliminary Engineering Study
report, and completing Part B Design Engineering for the improvement along 175" Street from Oak Park
Avenue to Ridgeland Avenue, Ridgeland Avenue from 175™ Street to Oak Forest Avenue and Oak Forest
Avenue from Ridgeland Avenue to 167" Street (hereinafter the planned improvements are collectively
referred to as the “PROJECT?”) and said PROJECT is herein designated as County Section: 17-B6125-00-
EG; and

WHEREAS, the Village and County established terms for updating Part A Preliminary Engineering
Study report and completion of Part B Design Engineering for the PROJECT in a Letter of
Understanding dated June 15, 2016 and accepted by the Village on July 19, 2016; and

WHEREAS, the Part A Preliminary Engineering Study report updates for the improvement will
include general administration, meetings with various agencies, revisions to preliminary design and
drainage study, public involvement, existing right-of-way determination and right-of-way impact
analysis, traffic signal warrant study, and all other related work necessary to complete the revised Part
A project report to current standards and requirements; and

WHEREAS, the Part B Design Engineering for the improvement will include general administration,
coordination with various agencies, municipalities and utility companies; preparation of right-of-way
plans and documents, plats and legals, public involvement, preparation of pre-final and final construction
plans, specifications, estimates and contract documents; project administration, coordination with
regulatory agencies and permit acquisition, field services, construction assistance, shop drawing review
and various meetings; and

WHEREAS, the Part A Preliminary Engineering Study was originally conducted by the Village’s
consultant, Robinson Engineering, Ltd., it is in the mutual best interest of the Parties hereto for Robinson
Engineering, Ltd. to conduct Part A Engineering Study updates and Part B Design Engineering for the
PROIJECT by utilizing its extensive knowledge and understanding of the improvements in order to most
effectively accomplish labor and cost efficiencies; and

WHEREAS, the County has requested assistance from the Village with conducting the Part A
Preliminary Engineering update services and Part B Design Engineering services for the PROJECT and
the Village concurs with this request; and

WHEREAS, the County and the Village, by this instrument, desire to memorialize their respective
obligations and responsibilities toward the PROJECT; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises, covenants, terms and conditions set forth in this
Agreement, the Parties hereto agree as follows:

SECTION 1. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS
The above recitals are incorporated into this Agreement as if set forth herein.
SECTION 2. TERM AND TERMINATION

This Agreement between the County and the Village shall not become effective unless authorized and
executed by the Cook County Board of Commissioners and an authorized representative of the Village.
This Agreement is a legal, valid and binding agreement, enforceable against the Village and, the County,
in accordance with its terms. This Agreement shall terminate two years after completion of the
PROJECT.

Page 2 of 8



175" STREET
RIDGELAND AVENUE
OAK FOREST AVENUE
Section: 17-B6125-00-EG

SECTION 3. PROJECT FUNDS

3.1

32

33

County’s Share of the PROJECT. The County shall pay for one hundred (100%) percent of the
costs of the PROJECT as described in this Agreement, less the costs for the Village Work as
described in Section 5.8 herein. The County’s total estimated cost for the PROJECT is Four
Hundred Eighty-Two Thousand Five Hundred Sixty-Two and 00/100 Dollars ($482,562.00).

Village’s Share of the PROJECT. Except for costs related to Village authorized work that is
outside the PROJECT scope of work and subject to the availability of County Funding, the
Village shall not incur any costs for the PROJECT.

Cost Estimates. The Village Share and the County Share are more fully described in the Funding
Breakdown which is incorporated and attached hereto as Exhibit A and is only an estimate.
Notwithstanding the forgoing, the County’s obligations to pay for eligible items shall be based
upon the actual work performed and the costs as approved for the PROJECT.

SECTION 4. COUNTY’S RESPONSIBILITIES

4.1

4.2

4.3

44

Contract Review. The County shall review the Part A Preliminary Engineering update Services
contract and Part B Design Engineering Services contract for adequacy and acknowledge its
concurrence for same to the Village.

Plan Review. The County shall review and approve plan submittals in a timely manner.
Right-of-Way.
4.3.1 The County shall review and approve the Village’s plats and legal descriptions.

432 The County shall responsible for preparation of appraisals, review of appraisals and
perform negotiations for land acquisition.

4.3.3 The County shall pay for one hundred (100%) percent of the costs for the preparation of
appraisals, review appraisals, negotiations and land acquisition.

Payments to the Village. The costs that the County is obligated to pay as described in Section 3.
Project Funds, shall be paid on a progressive basis as follows:

4.4.1 The first installment in the amount of Seventy-Eight Thousand Nine Hundred Sixty-Six
Dollars ($78,966.00), shall be invoiced by the Village within ninety (90) days following
County execution of this Agreement and the County shall pay the Village within ninety
(90) days after receipt of invoice from the Village.

4.42  The remaining balance of County obligations shall be invoiced by the Village on a

progressive basis thereafter and the County shall pay the Village within ninety (90) days
after receipt of the invoice from the Village.

Page 3 of 8



175" STREET
RIDGELAND AVENUE
OAK FOREST AVENUE
Section: 17-B6125-00-EG

SECTIONS. VILLAGE’S OBLIGATIONS

5.1

5.2

53

54

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

59

5.10

Village as Lead Agent: Appropriation of Funds. The Village will act as Lead Agent for the
engineering phases of the PROJECT and shall finance the Part A preliminary engineering study
update and Part B design engineering costs, subject to the reimbursements provisions found in
Section 3.

Design Engineering. The Village shall execute an engineering services contract with Robinson
Engineering, Ltd., subject to contract review and approval by the County, to conduct Part A
Engineering Study updates, Part B Design Engineering and prepare PROJECT construction
design plans, specifications, estimates and contract documents for bidding purposes and obtain
County and State of Illinois approval of final plans, specifications, estimates and contract
documents.

Right-of-way. The Village’s consultant shall include surveying to reference highway centerlines
to public landlines, preparation of legal descriptions, land surveying to locate boundaries, staking
of proposed right-of-way, preparation of a statutory plat of highways (including cover sheet),
preparation and recording of monument record documents for all U.S. public and survey
monuments referred to in the legal descriptions.

Plan Development. The Village shall have the County participate in plan development and
review of plan submittals by the Village consultant (at 65%, 90% and 100% levels) and await
County approval of Final Plans before advertising the PROJECT for letting. The submittal shall
be directed to the Bureau Chief of Design, Department of Transportation and Highways, 69 W.
Washington Street, 23" Floor, Chicago, I, 60602.

Regulatory Permits. The Village shall prepare, submit the required documentation (including any
associated fees) for and secure any regulatory permits required for the PROJECT.

Meetings and Coordination. The Village will coordinate with the County for identification and
scheduling of all meetings for the PROJECT, including utility coordination, staging, review
meetings and public meetings, adjacent municipalities and regulatory agencies, as required.

County’s Identifier. The Village shall reference all correspondence, invoices and other
documents for the PROJECT with the County’s identifier Section: 17-B6125-00-EG.

Village Work: The Village shall pay for one hundred (100%) percent of the costs for design
engineering, construction, construction engineering preparation of appraisals, review appraisals,
negotiations, land acquisition and regulatory permit approvals for any Village infrastructure or
infrastructure adjustments that may be identified during the Part A Study and/or Part B design
engineering and, said work to include new water main and sanitary sewer.

Street Lighting: The Village shall pay for one hundred (100%) percent of the costs for
construction and construction engineering for Street Lighting. The County shall pay for one

hundred (100%) percent of the costs for design engineering for Street Lighting.

Final Plans. The Village shall supply the County with Final PROJECT plans, specifications and
contract documents for bidding purposes.

Page 4 of 8



175™ STREET
RIDGELAND AVENUE
OAK FOREST AVENUE
Section: 17-B6125-00-EG

SECTION 6. GENERAL PROVISIONS

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

Governing Law and Venue. This Agreement shall be interpreted under, and governed by, the laws
of the State of Illinois, without regard to conflict-of-law principles. Any claim, suit, action, or
proceeding brought in connection with this Agreement shall be in the Circuit Court of Cook
County and each Party hereby irrevocably consents to the personal and subject matter jurisdiction
of such court and waives any claim that such court does not constitute a convenient and
appropriate venue for such claims, suits, actions, or proceedings.

Default. The Village shall be in default hereunder in the event of a material breach by the Village
of any term or condition of this Agreement including, but not limited to, a representation or
warranty, where the Village has failed to cure such breach within ninety (90) days after written
notice of the breach is given to Village by the County, setting forth the nature of such breach.
Failure of County to give written notice of breach to the Village shall not be deemed to be a
waiver of the County’s right to assert such breach at a later time. Upon default by the Village, the
County shall be entitled to exercise all available remedies at law or in equity, including, but not
limited to, termination of this Agreement upon thirty (30) days’ written notice to the Village.

The County shall be in default hereunder in the event of a material breach by the County of any
term or condition of this Agreement including, but not limited to, a representation or warranty,
where the County has failed to cure such breach within ninety (90) days after written notice of the
breach is given to the County by the Village, setting forth the nature of such breach. Failure of
Village to give written notice of breach to the County shall not be deemed to be a waiver of the
Village’s right to assert such breach at a later time. Upon default by the County, the Village shall
be entitled to exercise all available remedies at law or in equity, including, but not limited to,
termination of this Agreement upon thirty (30) days’ written notice to the County.

Modification. This Agreement may not be altered, modified or amended except by a written
instrument signed by both Parties; provided, however, the Parties agree that provisions required
to be inserted in this Agreement by laws, ordinances, rules, regulations or executive orders are
deemed inserted whether or not they appear in this Agreement and that in no event will the failure
to insert such provisions prevent the enforcement of this Agreement.

Binding Successors. The Parties agree that their respective successors and assigns shall be bound
by the terms of this Agreement.

Compliance with Depariment of Transportation and Highways Permits. This Agreement shall
serve in lieu of a separate County permit for the water main, sanitary sewer, storm sewer,
sidewalks, bike path and street lighting installed as part of the Project; and, by execution of this
Agreement, the Village shall be bound by the General Terms for Department of Transportation
and Highways Permits as they exist on the date of the execution of this Agreement by the County.

Force Majeure. Neither the County nor the Village shall be liable for failing to fulfill any
obligation under this Agreement to the extent any such failure is caused by any event beyond
such Party’s control and which event is not caused by such Party’s fault or negligence. Such
events shall include, but are not limited to, acts of God, acts of war, fires, lightning, floods,
epidemics or riots.

Time of the Essence. The obligations of the Parties as set forth in this Agreement shall be
performed in a timely manner such that it will not result in a delay of the Project timetable as
determined by the Parties.

Page 5 of 8



175™ STREET
RIDGELAND AVENUE
OAK FOREST AVENUE
Section: 17-B6125-00-EG

6.8

6.9

Notices. Unless otherwise specified, any notice, demand or request required under this
Agreement must be given in writing at the addresses set forth below by any of the following
means: personal service, overnight courier or first class mail.

TO THE COUNTY:

Mr. John Yonan, P.E.

Superintendent

Cook County Department of Transportation and Highways
69 West Washington, Suite 2400

Chicago, IL 60602

TO THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK:

Mr. David Niemeyer
Village Manager

Village of Tinley Park
16250 South Park Avenue
Tinley Park, IL 60477

Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the County and the
Village, and merges all discussion between them and supersedes and replaces any and every other
prior or contemporaneous agreement, negotiation, understanding, commitment and writing
with respect to such subject matter hereof.

THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK

Page 6 of 8



175™ STREET
RIDGELAND AVENUE
OAK FOREST AVENUE
Section: 17-B6125-00-EG

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County and the Village have caused this Agreement to be executed by
their respective officials on the dates as shown.

EXECUTED BY COUNTY: EXECUTED BY

VILLAETE 3 'I‘I§£EY PARK:
Toni Preckwinkle Jacob C. Va;l-&gnberg
President Village President

Cook County Board of Commissioners

This__ day of AD.2017. This | day of W AD.2017.

v | A
ATTEST: ATTEST: % Clun i 4—'(/£%F
County Clerk MViliage‘ llerk

(SEAL) (SEAL)

RECOMMENDED BY: APPROVED AS TO FORM:
Kimberly M. Foxx, State's Attorney

John Yonan, P.E. Assistant State’s Attorney
Superintendent

County of Cook

Department of Transportation and Highways

Page 7 of 8



175" S IR

RIDGEHTAND AVENUL
OAK TOREST AVENL I
Seetion: 17-R6123-00-1-G

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County and the Village have caused this Agreement to be exceuted by
their respective officials on the dates as shown.

EXECUTED BY COUNTY: EXECUTEDBY

VILLA T EY PARK:

Toni Preckwinkle aCab C. Vandenbere
President Village President
Cook County Board of Commissioners

M
1his /.; day of ;,{_/'{f" A.D. 2017, This \ day ()I‘kU&U@ A.D. 2017,
ATTEST: il D ATTESI: : b ﬁm

County Clerk

Sk PPROVED BY THE BOARD OF
(SEAL) :\;I:GK COUNTY COMMISSIONE RS

132017

COM__

RECOMMENDED BY:

itk Ml

Assistaht State™s Algarney

Superintendsant

County of Cook
Department of Transportation and Highways

Pag

=

7 0t'8

=
47



|, DAVID D. ORR, County Clerk of Cook County, in the State of lilinois aforesaid and
keeper of the records and files of said Cook County, do hereby certify that The Board of
Commissioners of The County of Cook, at their regular meeting held on September 13,
2017, passed the following Resolution:

17-R-
RESOLUTION

Sponsored by
THE HONORABLE TONI PRECKWINKLE
PRESIDENT OF THE COOK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

RESOLVED, by the members of The Board of Commissioners of Cook County. Hlinois, on
behalf of the County of Cook, to authorize and direct its President to execute, by original
signature or authorized signature stamp, two (2) copies of an Intergovernmental Agreement
with the Village of Tinley Park, attached, wherein the Village will be the lead agency for Part A
preliminary engineering study update and Part B design engineering services for
improvements along 175" Street from Oak Park Avenue to Ridgeland Avenue, Ridgeland
Avenue from 175" Street to Oak Forest Avenue and Oak Forest Avenue from Ridgeland
Avenue to 167" Street; that the County of Cook will pay for a share of the Part A preliminary
engineering study update and Part B design engineering services costs incurred by the
Village and shall reimburse the Village of Tinley Park for its share of said costs (estimated
total County share $482 562.00) under County Section: 17-B6125-00-ES. and. the
Department of Transportation and Highways is authorized and directed to return one (1)
executed copy of the Agreement with a certified copy of this Resolution to the Village of Tinley
Park and implement the terms of the Agreement.

All of which appears from the records and files of my office

APPROVED BY THE BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS
COOK COUNTY IN WITNESS WHEREOF | have hereunto set

SEP 13 20V my hand and affixed the SEAL of said County
at my office in the City of Chicago, in said County,
COM _ ~ this 13™ day of September A.D. 2017.

@;M_&»‘EL {,:_,),./Jf.«'k..ﬂ

County Clerk

(SEAL)

H \Transportation & Planning'Planning\AGREEMENTS4-INTGOVT -REIMB-LOA'Resolutions'Res B6125-00-EG_175th St _Ridgeland
Ave Oak Forest Ave _Part A & Part B IGA doc



175™ STREET
RIDGELAND AVENUE
OAK FOREST AVENUE
Section: 17-B6125-00-EG

EXHIBIT A

Funding Breakdown

ITEM ESTIMATED VILLAGE COUNTY
TOTAL COST SHARE SHARE
Part A Preliminary Engineering $78,966.00 50 $78,966.00
update Services
Part B Design Engineering Services $403,596.00 $0 $403,596.00
TOTAL $482,562.00 $0 $482,562.00

Page 8 of 8




Interoffice

Memo

Date: March 30, 2022
To: Pat Carr, Village Manager
John Urbanski, Public Works Director
From: Arlan Schattke, Village Engineer
Subject: Qualification Based Selection (QBS) Procedures

Presented for April 5, 2022 Village Board Agenda discussion and possible action:

Background:
Qualification Based Selection (QBS) ensures that federal agencies receive highly technical architect

and engineering services from the most experienced and well qualified firms at a fair and reasonable
cost. The QBS process is required by State and Federal law for certain public projects in lllinois.

Description:
The Village is required to adopt a QBS procedure and complete the process for Federally funded

projects. Typically, the Village board has approved the QBS procedure on individual projects;
However, adopting a standard Village QBS procedure provides consistency and expedites projects
moving forward.

The policies and procedures meet all necessary requirements.

Budget / Finance:
There are no budget or financial implications to this resolution.

Staff Direction:
1. Adopt the attached QBS policy and procedures as the Village’s standard.

Attachments:
1. Qualification Based Selection (QBS) Policy and Procedures March 2022.

3

Life Amplified



Village of Tinley Park, lllinois

# Village of
zm% Qualification Based Selection (QBS) Policy and
fremots Procedures
March 2022

When the Village of Tinley Park (VILLAGE) receives federal funds for consultant related
engineering services, the VILLAGE consultant Quality Based Selection (QBS) process will
comply with the following written policies and procedures, which meets the requirements of
23 CFR 172 and the Brooks Act. These policies and procedures, as adopted by the VILLAGE,
substantially follow Section 5-5 of the lllinois Department of Transportation (IDOT) Bureau of
Local Roads and Streets (BLRS) Manual, and specifically Section 5-5.06(e), and therefore
separate approval from IDOT is not required.

l. Responsibility

The VILLAGE QBS policy and procedures assigns responsibility to the following personnel
within the VILLAGE for the procurement of consultant engineering services, negotiations with
the selected consultant engineering firm, and administration of the contract for projects
utilizing federal funding, as described herein:

¢ Village Clerk: Posting of public notice for consultant engineering services in the form
of a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) on the VILLAGE website; Placement of the RFQ
in a local newspaper; Recipient of consultant submittals in response to the RFQ.

o Village Engineer: Point of contact for questions from potential respondents to the
RFQ; Selection committee member; Lead negotiator with the selected consultant;
Project Administrator (PA) after IDOT authorization to proceed.

o Assistant Public Works Director: Selection committee member; Assistant negotiator
with the selected consultant.

Public Works Director: Administrative oversight, selection committee member.
Village Board: Approval of the selection committee results; Approval of the negotiated
consultant contract for submittal to IDOT.

Il. Public Notice

When developing the public notice for consultant engineering services, the VILLAGE will
include the following information, with additional items as necessary when unique
circumstances exist.

e Overall project description including the anticipated need, purpose, and objective of
the project;

e The scope of engineering services being requested and any expected unique
challenges;

e The desired timetable for the engineering services being requested;

¢ |dentify any specific qualification requirements;

¢ Minimum submittal requirements from interested consultant engineering firms;

e Submittal instructions and due date;

e Evaluation criteria that will be used for reviewing and scoring the consultant submittals;

¢ Anticipated timeframe for the consultant selection;

¢ Instructions for retrieving available background information and submitting questions.

Village of Tinley Park QBS Policy and Procedures Page 1 of 4



Village of Tinley Park, lllinois

# Village of
zm% Qualification Based Selection (QBS) Policy and
fremots Procedures
March 2022

The VILLAGE will post the public notice on the “Open Bids and Contracts” page of the
VILLAGE website [https://www.tinleypark.org] and/or publish an ad in a newspaper with
appropriate circulation. The public notice will be advertised for at least 14 days prior to the
due date for consultant submittals with the website posting being continuous and the
newspaper ad being at least twice.

The VILLAGE will require each responding consultant submit one (1) electronic copy and two
(2) hard copies of their response to the RFQ for review by the selection committee. For
consistency and to facilitate manageable review time, the VILLAGE will require that all
submittals be single-sided and limited to a maximum of 20 pages, not including front and back
covers, table of contents, and tabs.

lll. Review of Consultant Submittals

Selection Committee: The VILLAGE will appoint a three (3) person selection committee for
reviewing all consultant submittals. The selection committee members will include the Village
Engineer, Assistant Director of Public Works and the Director of Public Works. The selection
committee members must certify that they do not have a conflict of interest prior to completing
their review of the consultant submittals, in compliance with the IDOT BLRS Manual, Section
5-5.04. If a replacement member of the selection committee is required, the replacement will
be appointed by the Mayor.

Evaluation Factors: The Village Engineer will establish the evaluation factors for reviewing
the consultant submittals for each project. The evaluation factors will typically include the
criterion listed below, which complies with the weighting range guidance in Section 5-5.06(d)
of the IDOT BLRS Manual.

Project Understanding

Similar Project Experience

Work Experience within the Village
Project Team

Project Development Approach
IDOT Prequalification

Overall Completeness of Submittal

These evaluation factors may vary from one project to another depending on unique project
requirements or conditions that may be present. In addition, any required Disadvantaged
Business Enterprise (DBE) and local presence combined will not be more that 10%.

Scoring of Consultant Submittals: Each member of the selection committee will provide an
independent score for each proposal using the form below prior to the selection committee
meeting. For each consultant proposal, the scores will range from O (lowest in comparison
to others) to 10 (highest in comparison to others) for each criterion, with the overall score

Village of Tinley Park QBS Policy and Procedures Page 2 of 4



Village of Tinley Park, lllinois

# Village of
’MM Qualification Based Selection (QBS) Policy and
fLLinots Procedures
March 2022

based on the weight assigned for each criterion.

Scores (0-10)

Criteria Weighting Consultant 1 |Consultant 2.. |Consultant X
Project Understanding 30%
Similar Project Experience 20%
Work Experience within the Village|10%
Project Team 10%
Project Development Approach 10%
IDOT Prequalification 10%
Overall Completeness of Submittal|10%
Total Weighted Score 100%

Final Scoring of Short-Listed Consultants: The selection committee member scores are
averaged for an overall committee score which is used to establish a short list of three firms.
The overall committee score for the short-listed firms is adjusted based on selection
committee discussion, and any additional information gained from interviews of the short-
listed firms, to determine the final scoping of the consultant submittals and the selected
consultant. The VILLAGE reserves the right to waive the need for interviews if they are
determined to be unnecessary due to the completeness of the received consultant submittals.

If less than three (3) consultant submittals are received, then the VILLAGE will request IDOT
approval that the QBS procedures followed are acceptable, before proceeding with final
scoring of consultant submittals received.

The final scoring of the consultant submittals, and the selected consultant will be presented
to the VILLAGE Board for approval.

Suspension and Debarment: The VILLAGE will ensure the eligibility of the short-listed
consultants before the final selection committee scores are prepared, by reviewing the
System for Award Management (SAM) Exclusions website, IDOT’s Chief Procurement
Office’s (CPO)website and the three other state CPO’s websites for suspensions and/or
debarment actions.

IV. Contract Negotiation

The VILLAGE will prepare an independent in-house estimate for the cost of the consultant
engineering services being requested, prior to contract negotiation. The estimate is used in
the negotiation.

The VILLAGE will require a two (2) person team to negotiate with the selected consultant.
The VILLAGE negotiation team will consist of the Village Engineer and the Assistant Public

Village of Tinley Park QBS Policy and Procedures Page 3 of 4



Village of Tinley Park, lllinois

# Village of
’WW Qualification Based Selection (QBS) Policy and
feemots Procedures
March 2022

Works Director; however, members of the negotiation team may delegate this responsibility
to staff members. The negotiation team will review the contract costs and the indirect cost
rates to assure they are compliant with Federal cost principles prior to submission to IDOT.

V. Project Administration

The Project Administrator (PA) for the VILLAGE will be the Village Engineer. The VILLAGE
PA will monitor work on the project in accordance with the contract and provide status reports
with the Mayor and Village Board as required and/or requested. The VILLAGE PA will prepare
a written evaluation of the consultant’'s work at the end of each project. These reports are
maintained in the VILLAGE consultant information database. The VILLAGE will follow IDOT'’s
requirements, including the required submission of BLRS Form 05613 to the IDOT district at
contract close-out along with the final invoice.

The VILLAGE PA will be required review and approve all invoices submitted by the consultant
prior to payment and submission to IDOT for reimbursement.

S:\PWFiles\Engineering\QBS\Tinley Park_QBS Procedures_2022.docx

Village of Tinley Park QBS Policy and Procedures Page 4 of 4



THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK

Cook County, Illinois
Will County, Illinois

RESOLUTION
NO.

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE ADOPTION OF A
QUALIFICATIONS BASED SELECTION POLICY FOR ENGINEERING
AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

MICHAEL W. GLOTZ, PRESIDENT
NANCY O’CONNER, VILLAGE CLERK

WILLIAM P. BRADY
WILLIAM A. BRENNAN
DIANE M. GALANTE
DENNIS P. MAHONEY
MICHAEL G. MUELLER
COLLEN M. SULLIVAN
Board of Trustees

Published in pamphlet form by authority of the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park
Peterson, Johnson, & Murray Chicago, LLC, Village Attorneys
200 W. Adams, Suite 2125, Chicago, IL 60606



VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
Cook County, Illinois
Will County, Illinois

RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE ADOPTION OF A
QUALIFICATIONS BASED SELECTION POLICY FOR ENGINEERING
AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

WHEREAS, Section 6(a) of Article VII of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois
provides that any municipality which has a population of more than 25,000 is a home rule unit,
and the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, with a population in excess of
25,000 is, therefore, a home rule unit and, pursuant to the provisions of said Section 6(a) of Article
VII, may exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government and affairs,
including, but not limited to, the power to tax and to incur debt; and

WHEREAS, the Village of Tinley Park (“Village’) desires to adopt a qualified-based
selection (“QBS”) process before retaining any engineering or professional services related to
projects funded by the State of Illinois or any associated governmental entity; and

WHEREAS, the State of Illinois requires that municipalities utilize QBS procedures and
policies in selecting consultants to oversee projects involving State funds; and

WHEREAS, the Village has established a written QBS Policy based on the requirements
set forth by the State of Illinois, attached hereto as Exhibit 1; and

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will
Counties, Illinois, have determined that it is in the best interest of said Village of Tinley Park and
its residents to adopt said policy; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF
TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, COOK AND WILL COUNTIES,
ILLINOIS, STATE AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1: The foregoing recitals shall be and are hereby incorporated as findings of fact as if
said recitals were fully set forth herein.

SECTION 2: The President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park hereby approve
and adopt said QBS Policy substantially in the form, attached hereto as Exhibit 1, and made a part
hereof.

SECTION 3: Any policy, resolution, or ordinance of the Village that conflicts with the provisions
of this Resolution shall be and is hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict.



SECTION 4: That the Village Clerk is hereby ordered and directed to publish this Resolution in
pamphlet form, and this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage,
approval, and publication as required by law.

PASSED THIS 5" day of April, 2022.

AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT:

APPROVED THIS 5% day of April, 2022.

VILLAGE PRESIDENT

ATTEST:

VILLAGE CLERK



STATE OF ILLINOIS )
COUNTY OF COOK ) SS
COUNTY OF WILL )

CERTIFICATE

I, NANCY O’CONNER, Village Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Counties of Cook
and Will and State of Illinois, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and correct
copy of Resolution No. |, “A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE ADOPTION OF A
QUALIFICATIONS BASED SELECTION POLICY FOR ENGINEERING AND
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES,” which was adopted by the President and Board of Trustees of the
Village of Tinley Park on the 5" day of April, 2022.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the corporate seal of

the Village of Tinley Park this 5" day of April, 2022.

NANCY O’CONNER, VILLAGE CLERK



Interoffice

® Memo

Date: March 7, 2022

To: John Urbanski, Public Works Director

From: Kelly Mulqueeny, Street Superintendent

Subject: Irrigation Maintenance - Service Contract Award-Renewal 2022 (Year 3 of 3)

Presented at the Committee of the Whole and Village Board Meetings for consideration and possible
action:

Scope of Work: This service contract is a renewal to provide start up, winterization, and repair
services to our irrigation systems at 3 (three) Streets Department locations and 4 (four) Facility
locations that includes a total of 190 zones.

LaGrange Road

Harlem Avenue

171t Medians

Fire Station #4

Oak Park Ave. Metra Station
Village Hall

Police Station

Description: Public Works is recommending that we extend our current contract for an additional year
for irrigation services on our seven (7) locations throughout Tinley Park (see above). The contract has
the option of two (2)-one (1) year renewals. This would be the second (2") and final extension of the
contract. The past year Aquamist Plumbing & Lawn Sprinkling, Inc. has proven to be professional,
reliable contractor with reasonable rates.

Budget / Finance: Funding is requested in the FY23 Budget.

Budget Available $49,000.00
Anticipated Costs (3% increase) $41,660.59
Difference (under budget) $7,339.41

Staff Direction Request:

1. Approve the second (2") contract extension for Irrigation Maintenance with Aquamist
Plumbing & Lawn Sprinkling, Inc. at the estimated cost of $41,660.59 for turn on, blow out and
anticipated average repairs.

2. Direct Staff as necessary.

3

Life Amplified



Interoffice

® Memo

Date: March 30, 2022

To: John Urbanski, Public Works Director

From: Kelly Mulqueeny, Street Superintendent

Subject: Stormwater Area Maintenance FY 2023 -Service Contract Award (Year 1 of 3)

Presented at the Committee of the Whole and Village Board Meetings for consideration and possible
action:

Scope of Work: This requested service contract is for a qualified contractor to provide maintenance
for stormwater areas including installation, management, and stewardship for naturalized areas at
various locations throughout the Village.

Background: This RFP was advertised on March 1, 2022 in accordance with state bidding laws; two
(2) sealed proposals were received by the deadline on March 21, 2022, at noon, and recorded by the
Village Clerk’s office.

Cardno, now Stantec Monee, IL $124,417.40
Davey Resource Group Elmhurst, IL $136,624.24

Description: Public Works is recommending that we approve a contract to Cardno, now Stantec who
rated very high on the RFP scoring and has proven on previous contracts to be a professional,
reliable contractor with reasonable rates. The contract has the option of 2 (two) — 1 (one) year
renewals. This would be the first year of the contract.

Budget / Finance: Funding in the amount of $189,500 will be available in the FY23 Budget; Storm
Water Mangement.

Budget Available $228,000
Costs Stormwater Area Maintenance $228,000
Difference $0

Staff Direction Request:

1. Approve the service contract for the FY23 stormwater maintenance contract with Cardno, now
Stantec in the amount of $228,000.
2. Direct Staff as necessary.

3

Life Amplified



Interoffice

Memo

Date: March 29, 2022

To: John Urbanski, Public Works Director

From: Kelly Mulqueeny, Street Superintendent

Subject: Landscape Bed Maintenance — Service Contract Award (Year 1 of 3)

Presented for at the Committee of the Whole and Village Board meetings for consideration and
possible action:

Scope of Work: This requested service contract is for a qualified contractor to provide maintenance to
the Villages 5.6 acres of landscape beds throughout Tinley Park.

Background: This RFP was advertised on March 1, 2022 in accordance with state bidding laws; three
(3) sealed proposals were received by the deadline on March 22, 2022, at noon, and recorded by the
Village Clerk’s office.

City Escape Garden and Design, LLC Chicago, IL $153,089.46
Christy Webber Landscapes Chicago, IL $159,797.75
Semmer Landscape Chicago, IL $299,531.00
Description:

Public Works is recommending that we approve a contract to City Escape Garden and Design, LLC
who rated very high on the scoring for Landscape Bed Maintenance. The contract has the option of 2
(two) — 1 (one) year renewals. This would be the first year out of the possible 3 (three) year contract.

Budget / Finance: Funding is budgeted in the FY23 Budget.

Budget Available $160,000.00
Year 1 of 3 contract $153,089.46
Difference under budget $ 6,910.54

Staff Direction Request:
1. Approve the service contract for the FY2023 Contract with City Escape Garden and Design,
LLC of Chicago, IL in the amount of $153,089.46
2. Direct Staff as necessary.

3

Life Amplified



PUBLIC
COMMENT




ADJOURNMENT




	040522 Cow Agenda
	ITEM # 2- ROLL CALL
	ITEM # 3 - 031522 COW Minutes
	ITEM # 4 - Building Code Update
	ITEM # 5 - 191-Harlem Purchase & Sale
	ITEM # 6 - Tourism website request
	ITEM # 7- Bettenhausen Agreement
	ITEM # 8 - SD 140 IGA - School Safety Lights
	ITEM # 9 - 1st Amendment to Cook County IGA
	ITEM # 10- IDOT QBS Procedure
	ITEM # 11 - Irrigation Maintenance
	ITEM # 12 -  Stormwater Maintenance
	ITEM # 13 - Landscape Bed Maintenance
	ITEM # 14 - PUBLIC COMMENT
	ADJOURNMENT



